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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Thursday, May 10, 2007 - 3:00 pm MDT
Devonian Room

Calgary Petrofeum Ctub

329 - 5 Avenue SW

Calgary, AB

PROFILE: Connacher Oit and Gas Limited is a Calgary-based Canadian oil and natural gas gxploration, development

and production company. Its principal asset is a 100 percent interest in approximately Ef0,000 acres of oil sands
leases at its Great Divide oif sands project near Fort McMurray, Alberta. It also maintains conventional production
at Marten Creek and Three Hills, Alberta and at Battrum, Saskatchewan. Connacher presently owns 26 percent of
and manages Petrolifera Petroleum Limited, which has interests in Argentina, Peru and| Colombia. The Company
also owns and operates a 9,500 bbl/d refinery located in Great Falls, Montana.

In pursuing its objective of maximizing shareholder value, where possible Connacher secures large, operated
interests. Over time, a balanced portfolio of oil and natural gas interests is being pursued. An opportunistic
approach, supported by timely decisions, reflects management's experience and aggressive strategy towards
realizing growth objectives. Connacher pursues its objectives utilizing a conservative financial structure which
reflects its asset base.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Operating and Financial Highlights Certain informalion contained in this Annual Regort including introductory messages.

Letter to Shanelioiders, Review of Operations \and Management’s Discusslon and

Analysis inchide forvard-looking information wihich is subject to risks, uncertainties

Review of Operations and assumptions ihat are desciibed etein. Seg page 30, Management’s Discussion
and Analysis for a discuission of these risks, uricerlainties and assumplions.

Letter to Shareholders

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Financial Statements

Corporate Information
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

2006 2006 % Change

FINANCIAL
(5000 except per share amounts) - Unaudited
Revenues net of 1oyallies §244,684 59,795
Cash flow fiom operations " 40,196 4,358
Basic, per share " 0.22 0.04
Difuted, per share " 0.1 0.04
Net earnings (loss) 6,953 991
Basic and diluted, per shaig 0.04 0
Capital expenditures and acquisitions 451,525 16,807
Proceeds on disposal of oil and gas properties 10,000 -
Bank debt 229,254 -
Working capital 118,626 75,427
Cash on hand 142,31 75,511
Sharehotders’ equity 385,398 129,108
Total assets 712,930 134,813

QPERATING
Production

Natural gas (met/d) 10,473 827
Crude oil (bbi/d) 980 729
Equivalent (boe/d) @ 2,725 867
Pricing

Crude oil ($/bbl) 53.85 42.33
Natural gas ($/mef) 5.85 1.37
Selected Highlights (S/boe) @
Weighted average sales price 41.83 36.91

Royalties 9.87 8.16

Operating and tansportation costs 8.32 7.73

Netback 24.67 23.23
Reserves (mhoe)

Proved (1P) 50,381 1,501

Probable 42 555 70,588

Total proved plus probable (2P 92,936 72,099 29

GOMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Shares outstanding at end of period (000) 197,894 139,940 41
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic (000) 184,469 106,114 74
Diluted (000) 188,432 111,846 68
Volume traded during the year (000) 323,825 338,402 {4}
Common share price ($)
High 6.07 420 45
Low 3.0 0.49 531
Close, end of year 3.49 384 (9)

Cash flow from operations before working capital changes and cash flow per share do not have standardized meanings prescribed by Canadian generally accepted
accaunting principles ("GAAP™) and therefore may not be comparable to simitai measures used by other companies. Cash flow from opesations before working
capital changes includes all cash flow fiom operating aclivilies and is calculated before changes In non-cash workifg capital. The most comparable measuie
calculated in acgordance with GAAP would be net earnings. Cash flow from operations before working capital changes is reconciled with ne! earnings on the
Consofidated Statement of Cash Flows and in the accompanying Management's Discussion & Analysis. Management uses these non-GAAP measurements ok its
own performance measures and to provide its shareholders and investors with a measurement of the company's efficiency and its ability 1o fund a postion of its
future growth expendilures.

Al references to barrels of oil equivalent (bog) are calcutated on Lhe basis of 6 mef : 1 bhi. Boes may be misleading, palgcularly if used in isolation, This conversion
is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primasily applicable at the burner tip and does not 1epresent a value equivalency at the wellhead.

The reserve estimates for 2006 and 2005 weie prepared by an independent professional petroleum engineering lirm in accordance with Hational Instument
51-101 (M8 51-101}. Under Ml 51-101, proved reserve assignments are based on a 90 percent certainty that total quagtities received will equal or exceed proved
reserve estimates. Proved plus probable reserves ate the most likely case and are based on a 50 percent certainty that lhey will equal o exceed estimates. Proved
plus probable plus possible reserves have a 10 percent probability that they wilk equal or exceed estimates.

After production of 1 million boe in 2006,

No dividends have been declared by the company since its incorporation,
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Prospectively,
Connacher anticipates
a great future at
Great Divide.

PROJECTED GREAT DIVIDE PRODUCTION — GLJ REPORT
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NOTE:

The graph above is derived from the GLJ Report as at December 31, 2005 and rapresents their 3P
reserves plus High Estimate Total Resource Forecast. See page 37 in the MD&A for a discussion of
forvrard-looking infarmalion, Readers are cautioned that these forecasted volumes involve higher
tisks than GLJ's proved (1P) or proved + probable (2P) reserves,




Connacher Is
increasing returns ana
owering risk througn
an integrated approach
to the oll sands.

2006/2007 RISK MANAGEMENT & FINANCING STRATEG

Operating risk — bought Luke Energy
Differential risk — hought refinery assets in Montana

Balance sheet risk — completed accretive equity fingncing
with attractively structured term det

Execution risk — plan to control costs through rodular approach
Environmental risk — implement effective “green” strategy
Liberated value — created and financed Petrolifera

providing value appreciation and a financial
safety valve
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CONNACHER QOIL AND
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PETROLIFERA

EQUITY INTEREST
(26% F/D)
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This followed timely resolution of outstanding issues with
interested stakeholders and the thorough review of our
application by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board ("EUB"),
Alberta Environment {“AE") and Alberta Sustainable Resource
Development (“"ASRD").

Everything we did as a company prior to this approval and
stubsequent thereto — from buying Luke Energy Lid. for its
natural gas production, reserves and exploration potental
— to purchasing a refinery in Great Falls, Montana and all
financing related thereto — was directly connected to the
integrated approach we adopted in developing our oil sands
properties.

We had a successful year in 2006, accomplishing everything
we set out to do. While the stock market reaction was not as
supportive as we would have preferred, there were influences
over which we had little contro! which adversely affected our
share price performance in the latter part of 2006. Not the
least of these was negative sentiment towards the oil sands
sector following pronouncements of cost overruns for those
pursuing cil sands exploitation through mining megaprojects.
Nevertheless, our financial and operating results grew to
record levels and we believe Connacher is extremely well-
positioned for continuing growth in years ahead.

Fundamental to our integrated approach in developing our
oil sands property was the execution of a risk management
program to ensure that Connacher could withstand the
exposure associated with bsing a relatively small bitumen
producer in a volatile oll price environment. The general
risks were identified once we established our high quality
resource at Pod One and concluded it could be commercially
developed. This led to our application to the EUB, AE and
ASRD. Early on in the process, we were able to manage
planning risk and prepare for execution risk by hiring
and - contracting experienced individuals and reputable

TSX:CLL THREE YEAR CHART
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engineering and design firms. The financial risks we focused
on mitigating were upstream operating costs (including
natural gas supplies and pricing), downstream differential
risk for heavy oil, especially in a rising price environment;
and ensuring that we had the capital to sustain our company
through the construction phase while retaining our undivided
100 percent ownership of our project. We also needed to
streamline our asset base to be focused on Great Divide
and its potential. This had led to the creation of Petrolifera
Petroleum Limited by Connacher as a means of securitizing
and monetizing our foreign assets while participating in the
upside.

Nothing, of course, could have proceeded without having
the high-quality oil sands assets to develop and it is a credit
to our technical staff that we were able to confirm that Pod
One at Great Divide had the right stuff - excellent reservoir,
sufficient reserves to support a 25 year project at targeted
rates of 10,000 bbl/d and other logistical and infrastructure
advantages which were identified and described in last year's
report and will again be reviewed this year. Our independent
reservoir engineering consultant has identified 110 million
barrels of recoverable reserves at Pod One as at December
31, 20086. It is anticipated these reserves will support a long-

" life viable project. To this end we are constructing our plant,

drilling related horizontal weli pairs and plan to start steam
injection during the summer of 2007,

Our exploration and core hole driling program on the
main lease block surrounding Pod One also suggests that,
following appropriate regulatory approval and stakeholder
consultation, the potential exists to expand our reserve and
production base in this region with additional Pods to be
developed. We continue to be extremely optimistic about our
future at Great Divide.

EVERYTHING WE DID AS A COMPANY —
FRCM BUYING LUKE FOR ITS NATURAL GAS
PRODUCTION, RESERVES AND EXPLORATION
FPOTENTIAL — TC PURCHASING A REFINERY IN
GREAT FALLS, MONTANA AND ALL FINANCING
RELATED THERETO — WAS DIRECTLY
CONNECTED TO QUR INTEGRATED APPRCACH
IN DEVELOPING THE COMPANY'S OIL SANDS

PROPERTIES.

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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While we waited for the regulatory process to be completed
for Pod One, following our application in August 2005,
Connacher focused on the aforementioned risks and how
best to mitigate them. In late 2005 we had Inttiated a multi-
pronged strategy aiming at ensuring we would have the
necessary capital to maintain sole ownership of Great Divide
while addressing the best solutions to risk management. This
entailed raising new equity at attractive prices in a robust
capital market; identifying an upstream acquisition candidate
primarily for a natural gas hedge in view of the significance
of the costs for natural gas necessary to make steam in a
steam assisted gravity drainage {“SAGD"} oil sands project;
identifying 8 downstream hedge to deal with the historical
reatity of heavy oil differentials, which appeared to be rising
in a high price envirenment for crude oil and diluents;
and nurturing a substantial investment in Petrolitera, so
Connacher could concentrate on the challenges of becoming
an oif sands producer. While cognizant of the need for capital,
we wanted to limit the amount of new equity and resist the
temptation of using short-term debt for a long-term project.
In so doing, we avoided the risk that lenders could change
course midstream and leave shargholders vulnerable to a
credit squeeze.

I am pleased to report that we found solutions to the
chailenges identified in late 2005 with a myriad of completed
transactions during 2006.

CONKACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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I AM PLEASED TO REPORT THAT WE FQUND
SGLUTIONS TO THE CHALLENGES [DENTIFIED
IN LATE 2005 WITH A MYRIAD OF COMPLETED
TRANSACTIONS DURING 2006,

In mid-March 2006 we completed the acquisition of Luke, a
conventional off and gas production company, for cash and
Connacher shares. This transaction provided the company
with significant natural gas production and reserves, cash
flow and credit capacity. It also gave our company extensive
undeveloped acreage holdings in the Marten Creek,
Simonette and Three Hills areas ol Alberta and we have since
expanded our resource and reserve position in these regions.
The acquired production was sulficient to physically hedge
our anticipated natural gas use and related costs at Pod One.
While Connacher may never directly burn a single molecule
of Marten Creek natural gas at Pod One, our company
is immunized from natural gas price spikes which could
otherwise impair our project economics in the oil sands.
Luke has since been amalgamated into Connacher and has
ceased to exist as a corporate entity. Certain selected Luke
employees also joined the company at the conclusion of
the transaction,

§2-34954




The acquisition of Luke early in 2006 helped to balance
Connacher's conventional oll production and positioned
Connacher to successfully divest certain high-cost, non-core
conventional oil and gas properties for $10 million cash on
favorabile terms near the end of the year. The proceeds were
used to supplemsnt working capital and the transaction
further streamlined Connacher's operations as the pace of
activity on our key core properties acceierated.

Following an extensive process, in late March 2006
Connacher acquired an 8,300 bbl/d refinery and related
assets, including product and other inventory. The refinery
is situated in Great Falls, Montana. Although small by
international standards, this highly sophisticated refinery
is actually the plant in the United States situated in closest
proximity to the Alberta oil sands. Historically reliant on heavy
Canadian crude for its feedstock, the refinery Is connected to
pipelines originating in Canada and could, with modifications,
process and refine Great Divide bitumen. If necessary, it
potentially could also provide diluent to Great Divide, in
order to meet pipeline specifications for transportation of
praduction from the oil sands. As with Luke, it also provided
a new source of cash flow, added credit capacity and is a
solid profitable business. It effectively serves as a proxy for
an on-site upgrader at Pod One.

The refinery purchase converted Connacher into a mini-
integrated oil company and provided the essential elements
of our hedging strategy to deal with downstream differential
risk. Connacher's refinery can deliver favorable operating
margins, even with widened differentials in an increasingly
volatile crude oil price environment, as was experienced
in 2006. Subsequent to closing the transaction, Connacher
expanded the throughput at the Montana refinery to
approximately 9,500 bbl/d, at low cost and with attractive
financial returns. This is a credit to the management and
staff in both Calgary and Great Falls, Montana. Many of our
Montana-based management and staff elected to remain
with Connacher following the change of ownership. As will be
noted later, ownership of the refinery aiso played a significant
role in our ability to secure long-term debt financing for Pod
One, reinforcing the soundness of this strategic initiative.

A third major element of our risk management program
during 2006 was to ensure we had the financing to
proceed with developing Pod One on our own. Fotlowing an
examination of many joint venture alternatives, including
with larger international cil companies, our conclusion was
to make every effort to retain our sole ownership and control.
As a small company, to the extent we could, we knew we
had to compress our timetable from first identification of an

82-34954

economically-exploitable asset (Pod One) to first production
and cash flow. We concluded this process was hest served
by retaining 100 percent ownership, provided it did not result
in undue equity dilution. Fortunately, capital markets were
strong during the early portion of 2006 and we were able
to raise new funds. As a consequence, our new and existing
shareholders became and remained our equity partners and
indirect owners of Great Divide.

Later in 2006 we successfully completed a limited recourse
US§195 million term loan financing in US capital markets.
This project financing was structured to give Connacher the
remaining capital it needed to fully complete the development
of Pod One and to provide US$15 million of working capital
for our refining operation in Montana. A portion of the
term debt proceeds were also used to discharge a bridge
ioan incurred to acquire the refining assets. The security
for the term loan was comprised of Connacher’s oil sands
and refining assets; it is non-recourse to Connacher's
conventional oil and gas assets and its investment in
Petrolifera. The loan has a term of seven years with minimal
annual repayment requirements. Furthermore, an “accordion
feature” of the term lgan facility provides Connacher access
to a further US$150 million on identical terms and conditions
to help finance the development of its next Pod. Interest rates
were set based on ratings assigned by Moody's and S&P to
this structured debt.

Having secured an expanded base of conventional properties,
Gonnacher devoted capital to facilitate conventional reserve
replacement and production growth during the year by
participating in 16 net weils on its properties in 2006. An
expanded 2007 program is already well underway.

It would be remiss not to mention the great success enjoyed
by Petrolifera Petroleum Limited (“Petrolifera™) during late
2005 and throughout 2006. Connacher created this company
in late 2004 to enable its operating management to focus
on the oil sands, as Connacher did not have the capital,
personnel and wherewithal to conduct foreign ventures
while also pursuing oil sands opportunities in Canada.
When Petrolifera was created, there was limited interest
in Argentinean assets or prospects and raising capital was
challenging. With the addition of new technical expertise and
the Peruvian explorations licenses, additional capital was
secured to faclitate a 30 seismic program over a portion
of the Puesto Morales/Rinconada concession in Argentina,
leading to the definition of numerous drillable prospects.
Petrolifera went public in the fall of 2005 at $1.75 per unit
{one share and one-half warrant, with each full warrant
exercisable into one Petrofifera comman share at $3.00 until

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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May 8, 2007, with Connacher participating as the major
huyer of the financing to assure a successful initial public
offering. The rest is history - 15 successive well completions
with no dry holes; dramatic production growth which reached
13,700 hoe/d of overall production in December 2006 and
a share price which was among the best perfarmers on
the Toronto Stock Exchange during 2006. Connacher's net
cash investment of approximately $2 million for Its 11.4
million common shares and 1.7 million warrants reached a
peak market value exceeding $300 million during the year.
Connacher remains committed to supporting Petrolifera as
that company proceeds with its growth strategy, including
exploratory drilling of world-class prospects in Peru. At the
same time, this investment provides Connacher with an
important financial safety valve in the event of changed
financial or industry circumstances.

As fellow shareholders, you can see our year was really
“all about the oil sands.” We are now executing our
biggest project to date — converting our Pod One assets
into production and cash flow. The early drilling program
on Pod One has gone exceedingly well. We have been able
to extend the horizontal reach of our SAGD well pairs by
about 25 percent over initial plans. This should help per well
productivity and reserve recovery. Due to the absence of
bottom water, we have also been able to drill our horizontal
producers in a manner which enhances the prospect of
higher overall recovery by minimizing the standoff from
basement.

Our modular construction approach has also served us well.
We were able to institute more cost controls than many
other oil sands operators (especially those with mining
mega projects) by pre-ordering key component parts and
constructing them off site. The proximity of established
infrastructure (Highway #63, utilities and pipelines) also
assists in this regard. We will have reduced the time frame
for canversion of assets to cash flow by about half for SAGD
operations of this scale, which is quite an accomplishment
for a company our size. Again, full credit is due to our
management and staff for their focus and dedication.

QUR FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 5 TO
COMPLETE POD ONE IN A TIMELY AND COST-
EFFICIENT MANNER. QUR NEXT ORDER OF
BUSINESS IS TO CAPTURE THE OPPORTUNITIES
FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT ON OUR GREAI
DIVIDE PROPERTIES.

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006

Every one of our team plays an important role in these
accomplishments, especially against the backdrop of the
rapid growth, diversification and integration undertaken by
Connacher in 2006.

We have a strong, compact, committed and focused Board
of Directors. During the year we were fortunate in attracting
new talent to our company. New hires at the officer level
included Steve Marston, Cam Todd, Grant Ukrainetz,
Darren Jackson and Steve De Maio, with responsibility for
Exploration, Refining and Marketing, Treasury, Operations,
and Project Development, respectively. We also rebuilt and
strengthened our conventional exploration group in Calgary,
hired and retained most of the personnel and management
associated with the refinery in Montana, attracted select
personnel from Luke and also attracted and solidified
relationships with experienced contract employees who are
assisting us at Pod One. People are critical to the success
of any company and we appreciate the efforts of all of our
officers, managers, employees and consultants who are
advancing the Connacher cause. We also appreciate our
healthy relationships with our suppliers who are providing
products and services to our company.

QUTLODK

As we move ahead, our priorities are well defined. Qur first
order of business is to complete Pod One in a timely and
cost-efficient manner. In this regard we are on schedule at
this stage. We expect to commission our plant some time this
summer, and start injecting steam with a view to the earliest
possible date for first production. Startup of this long-life
project will be entirely consistent with our goal of developing
sustainable production which can be maintained with high
plant utilization through the various oil price cycles.

Our next order of business is to capture the opportunities
for further development on our Great Divide properties.
Repeatability is the second cornerstone of cur strategy and we
have already initiated the process to apply for development
of Pod Two on our main lease block. Simultaneously, we are
in the midst of a planned 80 well care hole drilling program
this year, likely to be repeated or expanded next year,
following interpretation of the extensive 3D seismic coverage
we are presently shooting. We anticipate this activity has the
potential to result in further reserve and resource recognition
and further growth.

Recently, we have been presented with a number of new
opportunities to expand our base in the oil sands. In addition,
we have quietly but consistently added to our land base
in the region at low cost. As we establish and confirm our
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reputation as a company utilizing SAGD technology in the
oil sands with the ability to get things done in a timely and
cost efficient manner, we expect to see more opportunities
outside our current asset base and we will examine and
pursue those which meet our criteria. Key to this will be
quality reservoir, even if it means a scale of operations which
may not be a headling grabber but instead can result in good,
solid profitable business.

We will endeavor to continue running our conventional
business in a focused and profitable manner, as a desirable
adjunct to our consumption of natural gas in the production
of value added bitumen. In so doing, we will remain vigilant
and mindful of the recent emphasis on environmental issues
and concerns, as we have been in the past. We support
the introduction of new approaches which focus on such
matters as water conservation, efficient recycling and a
minimal environmental footprint while minimizing what
are considered harmful emissions. Additionally, Connacher
continues to stress work safety in its business, good
corporate governance and constructive relationships with
regulators and with stakeholders, including First Nations
people in the region.

Connacher anticipates it will continue to evaluate new growth
opportunities in the refining and wholesale marketing sector.
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As we expand our upstream productive capacity, we will
endeavor to retain an integraled balance in our operations.
This can be accomplished through new acquisitions or
through expansicn of or upgrading of our existing refinery In
Great Falls, Montana. We also are finalizing our transportation
infrastructure to ensure our Great Divide production gets
to market in the most cost-effective manner at the best
possible price.

Our outiook is stong and buoyant. Our commitment
is considerable. Our staff is dedicated to success with
appropriate financial and equity incentives in place to
minimize turngver and participate in the achievements which
lie ahead. Qur shareholders have been loyal and supportive.
We think 2007 witl be another banner year for Connacher
il and Gas Limited and we look forward to constructive and
positive results and having capital markets translate those
results into attractive returns for you, our shareholders.

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Board of Directors,
signed,
“RA. Gusella”

Richard A. Gusella
President and Chief Executive Officer

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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Currently, a plant to generate steam and to process the oil and water
produced in the process is being constructed at a cost of approximately
$125 million. It is anticipated the plant will be commissioned and
placed into operation during the summer of 2007.

During 2006 and inte 2007, Connacher alse continugd its evaluation
of additional portions of its extensive landholdings in the Divide
region. This was comprised of both 3D seismic programs and core
hole drilling programs. The company's land base was also expanded
with selective purchases at Crown sales during the year.

Connacher's operations also include conventional upstream crude
oil and natural gas reserves, production, undeveloped acreage and
facilities, primarily in Alberta and Saskatchewan. This asset and
revenue-generaling base was recently expanded with the March 2006
purchase of Luke Energy Ltd. for cash and Connacher shares. Luke's
principal assets consisted of natural gas properties, Iocated In the
Marten Creek area of north central Alberta, almost due west of our oil
sands properties. The purchase was pursued because of our oil sands
involvement. Considerable volumes of natural gas wlill be utllized, at
least in the early stages of cperations, as fuel for generating the steam
required for a SAGD project. While Connacher may never directly burn
Marten Creek gas at Pod One, the ownership of offsetting production
provides the company with a physical hedge against natural gas price
fluctuations.

Saskatchewan, our legacy conventional producing region, when

combined with the acquired Luke praduction, resulted in a 214 percent

increase in production during 2006 to 2,725 boe/d, compared to only -

867 boefd in 2005. Qur proved and probable conventional reserve

' growth resulted in a conventional reserve replacement ratio of 732

| percent. This is calculated by adding annual production to the change

‘ in 2005 and 2006 year-end 2P reserves, dividing by 2006 production

: and expressing the result as a percentage. Our increased production
markedly contributed to the company's cash flow growth during the
year.

‘ Successful drilling at Three Hills, Alberta and at Battrum,

|
|
! The third leg of our operations is our 100 percent ownership of an
' operating 9,500 bbl/d refinery in Great Falls, Montana, This was
‘ also purchased on favorable terms during 2006 and was pursued
| and acquired by Connacher to mitigate the crude oil price differential
risk assaciated with heavy oil or bitumen production. Our initial il
sands project was considered to be toe small to support a commercial
upgrader on site. The refinery was purchased to avoid the economic
pressures of high oil prices but wide price differentials, which
could impair the economic returns of bitumen production. Refining
| operations accordingly were expected to provide a physical hedge
against these possible adverse circumstances. Even prior to the
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commencement of bitumen production at Great Divide, the
refinery was a significant cash flow and prefit generator
during 2006. Ownership of the refinery also was a
contributing factor to our successful placement of term debt
to finance development Pod One at Great Divide.

During 2006, Connacher's total capital budget, including
acquisitions, was the substantial sum of $452 million. Of this
amount, $271 million of cash and stock was spent on the
purchase of Luke and the refinery, including approximately
$20 million of product inventory. A total of $145 miflion was
invested at Great Divide, $23 million in conventignal land
acquisition, drilling and facilities and $6 million was invested
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in upgrading the refinery, with capacity expanded to current
levels of approximately 9,500 bbi/d of throughput compared
to approximately 8,300 bbl/d at the time of purchase. The
balance of $7 million was invested in minor property
acquisitions during the year. This compares to an outlay
of only $17 million during 2005 and reflects the dramatic
growth of the company during the year.

As a consequence of our expansion, we successfully
expanded our operating staff. A strong exploration
department was developed, with the hiring of a new Vice
President, Exploration as well as two new geologists and
a new geophysicist. Our Operations Group was expanded
with the addition of a new Vice President, Operations and
additional engineering capability to enable more effective
management of our producing assets and expanded drilling,
completion and facllity programs. These individuals will
coordinate our exploration, development and production
programs.

Significantly, we were also able to attract a strong group of
experts with recent oil sands plant construction experience to
assist us with site and plant construction at Great Divide Pod
One. Simultaneously, we have been successfully recruiting the
operating personnel who will run and manage the oil sands
plant once it is up and running. We elected to hire these
individuals, most of whom came with conventional heavy oil
experience, early in the game. Thig was to ensure they were
familiar with all aspects of our plant and facilities during the
critical construction phase. This should help to minimize any
disruptions or dislocation on startup and thereafter. This
pre-planning sensibility, which also characterized our
approach to the construction of our plant at Great Divide, is
expected to yield considerable dividends going forward.

As the year and developments progressed, we also added a
Vice President, Project Development. His initial responsibility
will be to focus on related infrastructure requirements and
subsequent pod development as our oil sands expansion
progresses throughout 2007 and beyond.

During 2006, our conventional and unconventional reserve
base expanded considerably. The results of independent
assessments will be discussed in greater detall in this report.
However, in summary it should be noted our conventional
proved and probable reserves increased over 2.5 times to
reach 8.8 million boe, of which approximately 63 percent
is natural gas. Qur proved and probable bitumen reserves
increased 21 percent to reach 84.1 million barrels. For
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the first time, 43.8 million barrels of our reserve base at
Great Divide were upgraded to proved status. We are one
of the few independent public oil and gas exploration and
production companies with proved bitumen reserves in
its inventary. This is expected to grow further in 2007 as
our plant becomes operative and probable reserves can
sequentially be reclassifle¢ and upgraded to proved status.
Our 3P reserve and high estimate total reserve and resource
hase is estimated at close to 560 million barrels, underlining
Connacher's growth potential, primarily asseciated with our
oil sands properties.

We intend to continue exploring and delineating our
resources to foster accelerated growth during the balance of
the decade.

GREAT DIVIDE

Connacher holds a 100 percent working interest in
approximately 90,000 acres of oil sands leases in the Divide
region of northeastern Alberta. Cannacher is the operator
of these properties. We renamed our area Great Divide to
underscore its potential impact on Connacher’s prospactive
reserves, production and underlying valuation.

Highway 63, the main highway that runs from Edmonton,
the capital of Alberta, to Fort McMurray, the unoffictal capital
of the oil sands, bisects the original lease blocks. All of our
leases are within 12 miles of this highway.

- - Pod One e T T

In 2005 Connacher applied to the regulatory autharities for
permission to proceed with the small-scale commercial
development of its Pod One McMurray “C" Channel, situated
on the company's original lease block acquired in early
2004, The channel had been identified and delineated
using a combination of 3D seismic, core hole drilling and
geological interpretation. It was assigned the identifier “Pod
One” by the company, as other accumulations were also
recognized on Connacher's principal lease block at the time
of application.

Connacher was satisfied Pod One contained sufficient
recoverable reserves to support a 10,000 barrel per day
SAGD project which could produce at these levels for
approximately 25 years. This reserve volume assessment
was subsequently confirmed by independent consultants.

Following receipt of regulatory approval from the Energy
Utility Board ("EUB") and other authorities, including Alberta
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Environment (“AE"Y and Alberta Sustainable Resource
Development (“ASRD™), an Order in Council was issued
by the Government of Alberta in July 2006 authorizing
Connacher to proceed with the development project. This
had been preceded by required public consultation with
interested stakeholders, including First Nations and owners
of petroleum and natural gas rights in the region. All
outstanding issues which were advanced were resalved prior
to the EUB approval being granted. Mingr delays of several
months were encountered prior to receiving requisite surface
access, following which Connacher was ready to proceed.
This entailed the preparation of the site, which was designed
with a relatively smal! footprint of approximately 42 acres. It
also entailed construction of a water and oil processing and
treatment plant with related steam generating capacity. The
project also included the drilling of the initial 15 SAGD well
pairs to enable steam injection and then production from the
high quality bitumen-bearing McMurray C channel which
constitutes the reservoir.

The estimated total cost of the Great Divide Pod One project
is in the order of $256 million, including work done to
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delineate and define the Pod, engineering and design work,
site preparation and plant construction, the initial phase

“of drilling the first 15 SAGD well palrs, capitalized interest

related to indebtedness incurred to fund construction,
startup operating costs and contingencies. Clearly this was
to become the major undertaking in the company's history.

Considerable pre-planning was undertaken to streamling
the procedure and control costs, especially important in
the heated environment associated with activity in the Fort
McMurray ol sands region. An early decision was made
to modularize a significant portion of the plant construction
in order to achieve the dual and sometimes competing
objectives of being “on time" and “on budget” Through
modularization and by introducing an eilfield approach,
cost control could be more readily achleved, Many of the
critical component parts of the SAGD plant which required
sophisticated machining and specialized fabrication were
built on skids in shops outside of the proposed plant site.

At this writing, Connacher was virtually complete in this
process. As and when required for completion of various




parts of our plant and facility, critical components can be
trucked to the site for installation. We are also benefiting
from our logistical advantage of being located on Highway
63, one of the busiest highways in the province at this time.

During the construction process we have continued to
inform our shareholders about the progress with reqular
operational updates and the posting of pictures on our
website, www.connacheroil.com, demonstrating almost daily
progress.

The progress made is a credit to our staff, contractors and
suppliers who have shown considerable dedication to the
task at hand. Throughout this report are pictures showing the
critical components of the Great Divide Pod One Plant. it is
hoped we can commission the plant in mid-2007 with a view
to first steam going into the ground at that time. t will then
take approximately three months to heat up the reservoir
and the injector and producer well bores before meaningful
production can start. However, the quality of reservoir
encountered at Pod One suggests that the production
ramping can be optimized. Of benefit is that the reservoir s
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approximately 475 meters subsurface, which will assist in
the efficiency of the steam injection process.

Connacher will initially drill 15 SAGD well pairs on Orilling
Pads 101 and 102 in the northern portion of the accumulation.
These pairs consist of 15 producers and 15 injectors, which
will be drilled approximately five meters vertically apart n
the horizantal section. This process is well advanced and
we have also been able to extend the horizontal reach of
the early production and injector wells, as we continued to
encounter excellent reservoir while drilling. At the same time
we did not want to or need to extend the reach of the wells
beyond acceptable limits, as determined by our assessment
of the efficiency of steam recovery.

From the perspective of eventually determining uitimate
recovery factors, it is interesting to note that the production
well bores are being favorably positioned within ane meter
of basement, thereby avoiding a significant standoff which
has characterized some other SAGD projects. This has been
accomplished because the Paleozoic basement in the area,
on which our productive sands are deposited, is relatively

SCHEMATIC RENDERING OF THE 15 WELL PAIRS
BEING DRILLED ON POD ONE
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flat and not undulating in nature. We also do not have
any evidence of bottom water in the reservolr; this also
facilitates the minimal standoff. Finally, because our
deposit is comprised of what appears to be a single
McMurray G channel, we do nat have the geological
complexity characteristic of a series of interbedded
channel deposits.

The drilled well pairs will be tied into our plant during
the summer of 2007, when final commissioning s
anticipated to occur. Steam will then be injected into
both the horizontal injector and producer wells to
warm up the reservoir and prepare for early start up
of production from the lower well bore. A combination
of hot water and bitumen will be produced. Based
on independent assessments and internal simulation
work, relatively low steam/foil ratios ranging between
two and three are anticipated. This augers well for
favorable economics, as steam will be created by
burning naturat gas as the fuel of choice In the Initial
stages. The better the reservoir and lower the steam/
oil ratio, the less the natural gas costs will be. This is
important as gas costs are the biggest component of
forecasted operating expenses. Later, if technology
permits, other alternatives may be Introduced, such
as direct burning of bitumen. This will depend upon
advances In dealing with related emissions. Other
options to liberate the bitumen from the reservair are
continUously being examined', driven by the desire to
contro! and lower operating costs.

The cost of drilling, completing and equipping the
initial 15 well pairs or 30 wells initial is forecast at
approximately 15 percent of the total anticipated cost
for the project. A significant percentage of the costs
associated with the Pod One plant are related to water
handling ang the need to purify the water source for
steam generation. Our water source is non-potable
water extracted from a subsurface zone above the
McMurray. More than 95 percent of water used will be
recycled. Also, surface disturbance is minimized by a
small footprint so the plant is ecologically attuned to
an increasing emphasis on environmental and related
conslderations. Simultaneously, Connacher has placed
a significant emphasis on safety in the workplace, in
keeping with adapted corporate policy and prevailing
standards in the industry.
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Over time, as the reserves within a radiug of Influsnce
of each well pair are depleted, Connacher will phase in
additional wel pairs from newly-built drilling pads. This will
occur in a timely scheduled manner te ensure optimum plant
utilization on a 24/7, 365 day per year basis, untit all the
recoverable reserves are produced. A total of approximately
forty new full-time jobs will be established once the plant is
up and running and, we have already successfully recruited
in this space. Our production staff is participating in the plant
and well evolution to enhance familiarity with the workings
of our operation. We believe this will significantly enhance
operating efficiency and productivity.

Connacher anticipates trucking its oil in the early phases of
its operations, until ramp up of production occurs. Numerous
permanent pipeline alternatives are being evaluated at
this time, with the view of finalizing the selection of the
optimum route and capacity in the near future. This will in
part be driven by finalization of plans with respect to Pod
Two and also after determining the plans of other operators
in the region. It now appears that Connacher will proceed
on its own for the initial phases due to its pace of progress
compared to its competitors.

Connacher’s management is proud if its accomplishments
at Great Divide and extends its appreciation to all the
employees, contract employees, contractors and suppliers
who have contributed to the advanced status of the Pod One
Project. ‘ -

Other 2006 Great Divide Activity

in addition to its work at Pod One, Connacher continued to
gvaluate its main oil sands lease during 2006. This entailed
dritling of 26 core holes (including six in December) and
the shooting of approximately 53 square kilometers of 30
seismic, including a unique summer program which was a
first for the company.

Numerous prospects and leads have been determined from
the 3D coverage which the company has secured over it
main lease block. Seismic has proven to be a useful tool
for Connacher due to the depth of deposition in the Great
Divide area and the clear marker provided by the Paleozoic
basement. Part of the objective of securing 3D coverage isto
contribute to the effective placement of core holes, which are
expensive to drill. It also enables easier definition of channel
boundaries, thereby reducing the incidence of core holes
with little or no sand present. While exploration remains a

82-34954

small component of overall oil sands development, all efforts
to control costs must be pursued in the current environment.

Qur 2006 core hole program resulted in fewer wells than we
had originalty anticipated. However, when combined with our
30 seismic it established the basis for our aggressive 2007
winter program. For the first time in several years, an early
start to the core hole program was achieved. Favourable.
weather conditions in December 2006 facifitated rigs being
on location earlier than we had previously experienced. As a
consequence, we have now completed 80 core holes in our
2007 winter program. Results of this program contributed

to our decision to proceed with an application to develop .

Pod Two.

We also completed a 68 square kilometer 3D program over
the balance of our main lease block, such that Connacher
now has coverage over all of this original lease block.
Along with the results of our 2007 core hole program, this
seismic will determine our core hole locations for 2008 as
we follow up leads to determine if other indicated channels
or accumulations can be exploited in future years. It is likely
that another 80 exploration and delineation core holes will
be scheduled for our leases during the 2008 winter drilling
program. We also purchasad over 300 kilometres of 2D
seismic data over the other Connacher lands.

During 2006, Connacher selectively added 15,000 acres to
its oil sands lease holdings at periodic Crown Sales held by
the Government of Alberta. We have now acquired a total
of approximately 20,000 acres of rights in the oil sands
in addition to our original core holdings. This expanded
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Connacher's excellent track record of securing a 100 percent
ownership and operatorship of its oll sands exposure.
.. Exploratory evaluation of these lands wil be scheduled in

upcoming years.

OTHER CANADIAN CRUDE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES

Connacher’s principal conventional crude oil and natural gas
properties are located at Marten Creek {natura! gas) and
Three Hills {natural gas and crude oil) in northern and central
Alberta, respectively and at Battrum, Saskatchewan (crude
oif), OQur conventional reserves and production expanded
considerably during March 2006 with the successful
purchase of Luke. As a result, our 2006 production
increased 214 percent to reach an average daily level of
2,725 boe/d compared to cnly 867 boe/d in 2005, Similarly,
our conventional 2P reserve base Increased 252 percent to
reach 8.8 million boe at year end. Approximately two thirds
of our conventional reserve base is now comprised of natural
gas, with the balance crude oil.
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During 2006 we replaced our conventional production over
seven times (732 percent), achieved even while we were
experiencing considerable daily production growth from
our expanded reserve base. This is calculated by adding
annual production to year-end 2P reserves; dividing by 2006
production and expressing the result as a percentage.

Qur conventional properties provided a source of revenue,
cash flow and credit capacity. This contributed to the overafl
liquidity and financiat strength of Connacher and represent
an essential part of our risk management strategy for
unconventional oil. Over the long run, it is our goal to have
this important component of our asset base remain self-
sufficient in financing growth expenditures. During 2006,
a total of $23 million was invested in our conventional
programs, exclusive of acquisitions. Net operating income
from conventional production was approximately $24 million
during the year. - .

Marten Creek, Alberta

Connacher’s largest reserve and producing praperty Is
situated at Marten Creek, located due west of our oil sands
properties in north central Alberta. The region Is essentially
a winter-access only area, so almost all the company's
drilling and remedial field activity must be conducted
between approximately January and March of any given
year. Heavy equipment such as drilling rigs can only be
introduced to the region via ice roads after freeze up has
occurred. As such, considerable planning must take place

" during the summer months to ensure seismic programs,

drilling programs, infrastructure and facility construction and
remedial programs are well established before the winter
months. Also, because of the region’s location, considerable
coordination is required with regulatory authorities and
indigenous people of the region in order to ensure access
and timely development of the properties. This also includes
securing prior approval of programs due to the presence of
caribou and other ungulates in the region.

Having acquired Luke in mid-March 2006, during the past
year Connacher's focus was largely on its proposed new
programs for the winter of 2007 and on positioning itself to
conduct requisite remedial work on existing wells to ensure
stable production could be maintained.

The downturn in natural gas prices during 2006 contributed
to increased seismic crew and rig availability fer 2007
and an extenslve seismic program to evaluate existing
and newly-acquired undrilled lands was developed.
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Connacher contracted three drilling rigs with a view to
driling approximately 17 gross (16 net) wells, mostly at
Marten Creek, in the winter of 2007. We also prepared a
216 kilometer 20 seismic exploration program over open
Crown acreage and our own holdings. These programs were
completed during the first quarter of 2007.

From the date of acquisition, production frem Marten Creek
during 2006 averaged 10.5 mmcf/d of natural gas. A peak
monthly level of 16.3 mmcf/d was achleved in May 2006. As
is customary for these regions like this, with minimal to limited
access during nine months of the year, production and sales
tend to decline until the winter months of the ensuing year.
Remedial work can then be completed and new wells can be
tied in during this brief window of opportunity.

The Marten Creek area continues to be a priority region for
Connacher, There is growth potential In the area through new
Crown land avallability and continued processing of lands
we already own, There are multiple objectives to evaluate,
and with a 100 percent interest in, and operatorship of, most
lands Connacher can control its own pace of development
and its destiny in the region.

Connacher's longer term abjective for the area is to develop
sufficient reserves and deliverability to retain a representative

physical hedge of the cost of natural gas volumes it - |- -

anticipates consuming as its develops additional pods at
with its winter 2007 drilling program within the Marten Creek
region, it developed about 6 to 7 mmcf/d of deliverability or
approximately 60 percent of the fuef requirements of the next
pod in the oil sands. Expressed ancther way, by the time
Pod Two would be ready to come onstream, likely sometime
in 2008 if a timely application is submitted, this spring,
Connacher expects it will have developed its gas potential in
the Marten Creek region to remain in balance by effectively
remaining self-sufficlent in its fuel requirements. Balancing
corporate natural gas production with anticipated oil sands
usage for steam generation is a cornerstone of Connacher’s
risk management and mitigation program. However, there
can be no assurance that the application will be processed
in accordance with this timeling or that additional natural
gas production will be established to mest this abjective.
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Other Areas

Connacher's other key conventional areas are Three Hills,
Alberta and Battrum, Saskatchewan. Production from these
areas during 2006 averaged 978 boe/d.

ODuring 2006 four prospective oil wells and one prospective
natural gas well were drilled at Three Hills, resulting in three
successful oil wells. These cil wells are judged to have
productive potential approaching 200 bbl/d of crude oil
but are presently constrained by regulatory rulings. These
rulings are expected to be amended shortly, thereby aflowing
Connacher to further expand its current preduction base.

At Battrum, three infill wells and two exploration welis
were drilled during the year, thereby enabling Connacher to
not only sustain its production base but also to expand the
evaluated reserve base for this property.

MONTANA REFINING COMPANY INC.

On March 31, 2006, Connacher acquired a refinery and
related assets situated In Great Falls, Montana from Holly
Corp., the vendor. At purchase, the refinery was processing
approximately 8,300 bbl/d of heavy crude oil (“Bow River
Crude"), sourced in southern Alberta.

Subsequently, and as anticipated, a low cost but regularly
scheduled turnaround was completed during the spring of
2007 and as a consequence, throughput reached a high of
approximately 9,900 bbl/d and is now generally averaging
about 9,500 bbl/d. The purchase price, which aggregated
$66 million, was comprised of $61 million of cash and one
miltion Connacher comman shares. Product inventory with
an attributed value of some $20 million was acquired as part
of the purchase price. Connacher considers the purchase to
have been an attractive business transaction.

The asset purchase was completed by a newly-incorporated
subsidiary, Montana Refining Company Inc., ("MRCI"), a
wholly-owned Delaware corporaticn. Most of the 80 or so
employess associated with the assets continued as MRCI
employees and Connacher also appointed a new Vice
President, Refining and Marketing to oversee its considerable
investment in this business.

As a standalone business, MRCI had a very successful
year. As indicated elsewhere in this report, MRCI recorded
$212 million of revenue, recorded a 94 percent utilization
rate, generated a pre-tax netback of approximately $30
millien, and confributed $17 million of after-tax earnings
to Connacher during the nine month period of ownership.
Based on recent history, Connacher was able to generate a
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record refining margin at the Great Falls, Montana refinery.
This was accomplished due to both improved efficlencies at
the refinery as well as higher product prices and differentials
for the heavy crude feedstock used. [t is also a credit to the
commitment of the management and staff of the refinery for
its successful operation.

The refinery is a complex operation that includes reforming,
isomerization and alkylation processes for formulation of
gasoling blends and hydro-treating for sulphur removal. [t
also includes fluid cataiytic cracking for conversion of heavy
gas oils to gasoline and distillate products. As a consequence
of the type of crude processed, it is also a major supplier of
paving grade asphalt, polymer modified grades and asphalt
emulsions for road construction. Products are marketed
to retailers in Montana and in neighboring states and the
refinery is well-serviced by truck and rail transport.

In addition to its importance as a profitable business, the
refinery was a good strategic fit with Connacher's oil sands
business. [t is well located, being the closest US based
refinery to the oil sands. It currently processes Canadian
heavy crude into a range of higher value products, including
gasoline, jet fuel, diesel, home heating oil and asphalt. As
such, it effectively provides Connacher with a physical hedge
against widened differentials for heavy oll, such as will be
produced at the oil sands.

During 2006, Connacher made significant” environmental
improvements to the operation. These Included capital
projects to remove excess sulphur from bofler fuel. Also, an
existing wastewater pond was recovered and remediated
during the year. Sulphur removal in the boiler fuel is
improved now over 200 times from the previous operation.
This is accomplished by means of a unique process which
converts sulphur to a product now being used commercially
for environmental remediation in other parts of the United
States,

Other improvements initiated during 2006 included the
design and startup of construction of a new 150,000 barre!
asphalt tank, which became operative in March 2007. We
also initiated expansion of rail loading facilities. These were
undertaken to facilitate the increased throughput which
Connacher introduced at the refinery, which can now be
accomplished on a year round basis.

In addition to Integrating the well-trained and experienced
staff, Connacher has recruited additional personne! and also
has been able to effect internal promotions at the refinery.
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Key processes and systems have been fully integrated with
the parent company. Connacher's operational approach
emphasizes a strong training and devslopment program, as
well as rigorous procedures for safety and environmental
protection.

Prospectively, during 2007 Connacher anticipates further
environmental and capacity enhancements at the Great
Falls refinery. We are designing new high efficiency boilers,
increasing rail load-out capabllity, and expect to further
improve waste water treatment facilities and suiphur
treatment processes.

Connacher has also initiated a major Clean Fuels project
targeted to allow the production of ultra-low diesel and
gasoline by the end of 2008. Engineering and marketing
studies have also been initiated to assess the possibility of
majar expansion of the refinery's processing capacity.

The ownership of the refinery assisted Connacher in its
establishment of a term loan facility to finance its Great
Divide Pod One development. The refinery assets also

provide a portion of the collateral for the Great Divide term -
loan. As an adjunct thereto, a US$15 million working capital .
facility was arranged for MRCI to provided requisite liquidity
in the conduct of its business. Connacher also anticipates -
certain synergies will evolve in respect of its refining/.
marketing activities as it realizes increases in the overall

productive capacity at both Great Divide and downstream at
the Montana refinery. .. -

INVESTMENT I PETROLIFERA PETROLEUM LIMITED

Connacher was the founding shareholder of Petrolifera,
a public Canadian oil and natural gas exploration and
production company active in Argentina, Peru and Cofombia
in South America. Petroiifera was established in late 2004
when Connacher decided to focus its attention on the oil
sands In Canada.

Initially Connacher acquired a 100 percent [nterest in the
Puesto Marales /Rinconada Concession in Argentina under
favorable terms and then sold this interest to Petrolifera
for 8 million common shares and a $4 million promissory
note. This note was subsequently repaid and discharged.
To finance the purchase and discharge its indebledness to
Connacher, Petrolifera raised capital from third parties and
then went public in late 2005. Connacher was called upon
to support the initial public offering of Petrolifera in October
2005 due to weak market conditions, and has maintained
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an approximate 26 percent fully-diluted stake in the
company. Pursuant to a management contract, Connacher
also provides certain management services to Petrolifera
and certain officers of Connacher are currently officers of
Petrolifera. A majority of Petrolifera's Board of Directors is
composed of independent directors.

During fate 2005 and throughout 2006 Petrolifera has
enjoyed considerable success in its drilling program at Puesto
Morales. During this time, total of 15 wells have been drilled
and completed as indicated hydrocarbon-bearing wells since
| new drilling was initiated and there have been no dry holes.
Crude oil sales have grown from a modest 145 bbl/d in 2005
to 7,000 bbl/d in 2006 with an exit rate in December 2006
approaching 11,500 bbl/d, having reached a peak daily
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- our net cash investment of $2 million.

production of 13,400 bbl/d of crude il and 13,700 boe/d on
an equivalent basis.

Permanent production and transpartation facilities are
under construction in Argentina and Petrolifera
also plans an active drilling program during
2007, with up to 50 wells envisaged for
Argentina within the company’s announced
financial plan and budget. A total self-
financed capital program of $153 million is
anticipated for 2007. This will also include new
land acquisition in Argenting, extensive geophysical
programs in Peru, where Petrolifera holds extensive
acreage in two licenses in the Maranon and Ucayali
Basins and pregrams in Colombia, where new
concessions and related agreements are being finalized.

Petrolifera is strong financially, with very healthy working
capital, no short or long term debt and an anticipated
growing cash flow base to finance activities. Additionally, the
company fs negotiating a reserve-based line of credit which
will further enhance its financial flexibility. Proceeds from
the exercise of outstanding $3.00 share purchase warrants
are also expected to augment cash balances prior to May 8,
2007.

Connacher intends to exercise the ogutstanding warrants
it acquired _from the purchase of units issued under the
Petrolifera IPO. We remain a strong supporter of the company
and its initiatives. Our holdings have a current market value
in excess of $200 million, which compares favorably with
Connacher has
lent its corporate support and sponsorship to Petrolifera,
thereby enabling Petrolifera to pursue and secure new
opportunities in Pery and Colombia. Otherwise, these would
not have become available to Petrelifera. For such support,
Connacher received a carried interast in the first wells to
be drilled on Petrolifera's licenses in Peru. As there was no
material operating or financial risk to the support granted for
Colombia, no economic interest was sought or received by
Connacher.

Connacher continues to equity account its interest in
Petrolifera’s income in its reporting to shareholders and
remains a longer-term investor in Petrolifera under present
conditions. Connacher remains keenly interested in the
upcoming drilling programs in Peru, which it is anticipated
will expose Petrolifera to significant reserve potential and the
attendant value additions.
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During 2008, Connacher produced and soid a total of 357,700
barrels of crude oil and 3.8 billion cubic feet of natural gas.
Daily average sales were 980 bbi/d of crude oil compared
to 729 bhl/d in 2005, for an increase of 34 percent. Dally
natural gas sales were 10.5 mmef/d, significantly above only
827 mcf/d in 2005. This reflects the impact of the purchase
of Luke in March 2006. The increase in oil production reflects
successful drilling and the Luke purchase which resulted in
production growth which more than offset declines.

On an energy equivalent basis, sales were 2,725 boe/d in
2006 compared to only 867 boefd in 2005, an increase of
214 percent,

The average price received for crude oil in 2006 was $53.85
per barrel, compared to $42.33 per barrel in 2005. The
increase is reflective of higher world oil prices during the
current year. West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") crude prices
averaged US$67.08 in 2006, an increase of 21 percent over
US$55.40 in 2005. Volatile differantials for heavier crude oil
produced by Connacher at Battrum, Saskatchewan and a

stronger Canadian dollar combined to provide a 27 percent

increase in Cennacher’s crude oil price on a year pver year
basis.

Natural gas prices averaged $5.85 per mcf in 2006 compared
to $1.37 per mef in 2005 when our natural gas prices were
significantly influenced by Petrolifera’s Argentina natural gas
sales volumes in a regufated market. Peak selling prices
of $8.23 per mcf in January 2006 were not realized again
throughout the year, though they climbed back with seasonal
conditions to reach $8.11 per mci in December 2006,
following a low of $4.43 per mcf In September 2006,

On an equivalent basis, prices averaged $41.83 per boe in
2006 compared to $36.91 per boe in 2005, for an increase
of 13 percent, having regard for the changing product mix in
2006 with increased natural gas sales.

Most of Connacher's production is sold at spot prices in spot
markets. There are no long term arrangements outstanding
with respect to product sales. No hedges were contracted or
outstanding during 2006.
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The following is a summary of the conventional crude oil and natural gas reserves and unconventional oil sands or bitumen reserves
and resources and the value of future net revenue to the company for these properties as at Becember 31, 2006 as evaluated by
GLJ Petroleum Consultants (“GLJ") in March 2007 reports dated March 9, 2007 (the “GLJ Report"). The 5LJ Report was prepared
using assumptions and methodology guidelines outlined in the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook ("COGE Handbook") and in
accordance with National Instrument 51-101 (“Nl 51-101"), The pricing used in the forecast price evaluations is set forth in the notes
to the tables. The GLJ Report did nat take into account or consider any winter drilling or core holes drilled after December 31, 20086.
Accordingly, the results of Connacher's 2007 program will be assessed at a later date.

Unconventional Reserves and Resources

Great Divide SAGD Project (Bitumen)

In the proved undeveloped {"1P™), proved and probable {“2P”) and proved, probable and possible (“3P") categories, reserves were

only assigned at Great Divide-only to Pod One which is currently under development. The report assumed 44 steam-assisted gravity.

drainage ("SAGD") well pairs for the 1P case, 62 well pairs for the 2P case and 76 well pairs for the 3P case, with cumulative steam-
oil ratios {"SOR") of 2.7, 2.6, and 2.6, respectively, but declining to 2.4 during peak produclion periods. The project was assumed 1o
commence production in mid-2007, with production peaking at 10,000 bbl/d by 2011 (1P) and 10,500 bbl/d by 2009 (2P) or 11,200
- bbl/d by 2009 (3P). The cutoffs used by GLJ for probable reserves were 15 metres of net pay for 1P reserves, 13 metres of pay for P
reserve and 10 metres of net pay for 3P reserves.

All evaluations of future revenue are atter the deduction of royalties, development costs, production costs and well abandonment costs
but before cansideration of income tax and indirect costs such as administrative, overhead and other miscellaneous expenses. The
estimated future net revenues contained in the foliowing tables do not necessarily represent the fair market value of the company’s
reserves. There Is no assurance that the forecast and constant price and cost assumptions contained in the GLJ Report will be
attained and variances could be material. Other assumptions and qualifications relating to costs and other matters are included in

- - the_GLJ Report. The_recovery-and reserves estimates of the company’s properties described, herem are. r*stlmates only. The actual ,_._,: ;

reserves on the company 's propemes may be greater or Iess than those calculated

USSR ¥

" Bitumen Reserves and Nef Present Value of Future Net Hevenue D

Rased on Foracast Prices and Costg®”!
Before Deducting Income Taxes

Bitumen Discounted At
Gross™" Net? 0% 5% 10%
{mbb) {mbbl) (SMM) MM {$MM)
Total Proved® 43,841 39,808 521 313 191
Total Proved Plus Probable®® 84,147 74,148 1,298 658 376
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus Possibie® 3 109,861 95,774 1,914 858 464

(1) "Gross Reserves” are the company's working interest (operating or non-operating) share before deducting royalties and without Including any royalty
Interests of the company. “Net Reserves” are the company's working interest {operating or non-operating) share after deduction of royalty obligations,
plus the company’s royalty interests in reserves.

{?} “Proved” reserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degrae of certainty to be recoverable. It is 90% Jikely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will exceed the estimated proved reserves.

(3} “Probable” reserves are those additional reserves that are lass certain to be recovered than proved reserves. It is equally likely that the actual remaining
quantities recoverad will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves.

{4 "Passlbla” reserves are those addltional reserves that are less cerain to be racovered than probabla reservas. It is unlikely that the actual remaining
quantities racovered witl exceed the sum of the estimated proved plus probable plus possitle reserves.

(5 The pricing assumptions at the wellhead for bitumen used in the GLJ Report with respect to values of future net revenus (forecast} are set forth on page
29, GLJ is an indepandent qualified reserves evaluator appointed pursuant to NI 51-101.

(8) Includes estimated capital costs, in the 1P case, of $269 milllon over the 17 year forecast life of the project (7.8 year half-life); of $412 mlllion In the
2P case over tha 28 yoar foracast lifa of the project (13.2 years half-life}; and of $494 million in the 3P case over the 34 year forecast life of the project
(16.0 years half-lifg).
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The GLJ Report also provided calculations of Contingent Resources cornprised of “Low Estimate Resources (>15 metre Pay) - higher
certainty”, together with “Best Estimate Resources (13 metre Pay) - likely certainty” and “High Estimate Resources (>10 metre Pay)
- lower certainty”. Low Estimate recoverable resources are comprised of mapped original oil-in-place assigned to Pod One (>15
metre Pay} with a lower recovery factor than are applied to the estimate of 2P reserves. Best Estimate Resources are comprised of
2P remalning recoverable reserves logether with an estimate of recoverable resources attributable to five other pods on Connacher’s
lands. High Estimate Resources {lower certainty) include 3P recoverable reserves at Pod One together with recoverable resources at
the other five pods on Connacher’s acreage, but with a larger aerial extent and a higher recovery faztor than attributable under the
Best Estimate Category.

Only Pod One had sufficient well and seismic control to warrant the assignment of reserves. The other five pods had insufficient drilling
density, seismic mapping or project definition al December 31, 2006 to be categorized as reserves at this time. Additional drilling
and seismic activity could result in upgrading these to reserve slatus aver time. In the interim, a range of Contingent Resources was
assigned to reflect uncertainties. The GLJ Report also recognized Best Estimate and High Estimate Prospective Resources attributable
to undiscovered pods, utilizing average parameters from six identifiable pods, including Pod One. This year, calculations of the present
value of the future cash flow from remainirg recoverable reserves and remaining recoverable resources (Contingent and Prospective)
were included for the total Great Divide lands and not as previously just for Pod One.

Summary of Unconventional Reserves and Resources and Values

Total Before Tax Before Tax Before Tax

Compan; NetAfter Present Value PresentValue Present Valus
Marketable Reserves, Resources Intgres); Royally A% 5% S 10%
{mmbbl) __ (mmbbi) {EMM) MM} {SMM)
1P Resarves and Low Estimate Contingent Resources 49 705 65.1 766.4 437.7 243.2
2P Reserves and Best Estimate Contingent Resources 02470 187.8 167.3 2,8849 1,216.7 584.0
3P Reserves and High Estimate Contingent Resources 23468 265.7 2351 4,319. 1,7428 8138

1P Reserves and Low Estimate Total Resources 262 1105 995 = 1.3930 8032 4867
" 9P Reserves and LW Estiffiaté Total Resdlrces 1289~ =~~~ -~ 260.6— — 2324—~ " 3,8721 T 1,661.4 © 7T 77841

3P Resarves and Low Estimate Total Resburces 02359 * _ .~ 4780 - . _4237- 80580 2,898.7 1,245.1

(1) Proved reserves ar those feserves that can ba estimated with a high degree of certainty to be racoverable. It is 90% likely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will exceed the estimated proved reserves.

{2) Probable reserves are those additional reserves that are less cartaln to be recovered than proved reserves. Itis equally likely that the actual romaining
quantitles recovered will ba greater of less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable resarves.

{3) Possibla reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recoversd than probable reserves. There Is only a 10% probability that the
quantitles actually recovered will aqual or exceed the sum of proved plus prabable plus possible resarves. Possible reserves were 26 million bbls and 39
miltion bbls In the GLJ 2006 report and the GLJ 2005 report, respactively.

{4 Cantingent resources are those quantilies of oll and gas estimated on a given date to be potentfally recoverable from known accumulations but are
not currently sconomic. GLJ has categorized these resources as contingent as additional delineation drilling, development planning, project design and
further reguiatory applicatlons are required.

{5) Prospective resources are thosa quantities of oll and gas estimated on a given date to be potentlally racoverable from undiscoverad accumulations.
If discoverad, they would be technically and economically viable to recover. There IS no certainty, howaver, that the prospective resources will ba
discoversd.

(6 Low Estimate Is considered to be a conservative estimate of the quantity that will actually be recoverad from the accurnulation, I probabillstic methods
are used, this tarm reflects P90 confidence level.

(7t Best Estimata is considered to be the best estimate of the quantity that will actually ba racovered from the accumulation. o probabillstic metheds are
used, this term [s a measure of central tendency of the uncertalnty distributlon (P50}

{8 High Eslimate is consldered to be an optimistic estimate of the quantlty that will actually be recovered from the accumuiation. If probabilistic methods
are ysed, the term reflects a P10 confidence level.

(9 Total resources [ncludes contingent resources and prospeclive resources.

{10) Does not incfude undeveloped land value.

GLJ Report on Conventional Canadian Reserves

The following is a summary of the crude oil and natural gas reserves and the value of future net revenue of the company's conventional
Canadian reserves as at December 31, 2006 as evaluated in the March 2007 reports by GLJ dated March 8, 2007 {the “GLJ Report™).
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The GLJ Report was prepared using assumptions and methodology guidelines outiined In the COGE Handbook and in accordance with
NI 51-101. The pricing used in the forecast price evaluation is set forth in the notes to the tables below,

All evaluations of future revenue are after the deduction of royalties, development costs, production costs and well abandonment costs
but before consideration of income tax and indirect costs such as administrative, overhead and other miscellangous expenses. The
estimated future net revenues contained in the following tables do not necessarily represent the fair market value of the company's
reserves. There is no assurance that the forecast price and cost assumptions contained in the GLJ Report wili be attained and
variances could be material. Other assumptions and qualifications relating to costs and other matters are included in the GLJ Report.
The recovery and reserves estimates of the company's properties described herein are estimates only. The actual reserves on the

company's properties may be greater or less than those calculated.

Connacher also owns a 26 percent equity stake in Petrolifera Petroleum Limited. See the company's Annual Information Form {*AIF™)
as posted on SEDAR {(www.sedar.com) for more information related to that company’s crude oil and natural gas reserves located in

Argentina.

Conventional Reserves Data - Forecast Prices And Costs

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves Based on Forecast Prices and Costs®

Light and Mediurm il Natural Gas Natural Gas Liquids
Grosst - Netl" Gross™ - - - Neti Gross™ Nett
{mbbl) {mbbi) {mmef) (mmch) (mbb {mbhl)
Proved Developed Producing@® : ) 2106 1,742 21,539 17,607 1.0 0.7
Proved Developed Non-Producing?® R - - - 3,167 2,615 0.2 01
Proved Undeveloped®? 315 240 - - - -
Total Proved 2421 1,983 24,706 20,221 1.2 038
Total Probable® 786 632 B773 7,158 0.4 0.3
Total Proved Plus Probable®® 3,207 2,615 33479 27,379 1.6 11
Net Present Value of Future Net Revenue Based on Forecast Prices and Costs®
Before Deducting Income Taxes Discounted At
e = m_rmmer o acccrncmemes s W ol SR - o 10%
($MM) (EMM) MM
Proved Developed Producing®® S - - 160 127 106
Proved Developed Non-Producing®# R ek 16 o - 13 - - 10
Proved Undeveloped®? . " 8 7 5
Total Proved® 183 146 122
Total Probable® 73 45 31
Total Proved Plus Probable?? 256 191 152

{1} “Gross Reserves" are the company's working Interest (eperating or non-oparating) share before deducting royaities and without Including any royaity
interests of the company. “Nat Reserves” are the company's working interest (operating or non-operating) share after deduction of royalty obligations,

plus the company's royalty interests In reserves.

{(2)  *“Provad” raserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degree of cerlainly lo ba recoverabls. it is 90% lik:aly that the actual remaining

quantitles recovered will exceed the astimated proved reserves.

{3} *“Probable” reserves are those additlonal resarves that are less certain to be recovered than provad reserves. It Is equally likely that the actual remaining
quantltles racoverad will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves.
{4}  “Posslble” reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain la be recovered than probable reserves. It is unlikely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will exceed the sum of the estimated proved plus probable plus possible resarves.
{5 “Developed Producing” reserves are those resarves that are axpectad 1o be recoverad from completion intervals open at the time of the estimate. These
reserves may be currently producing of, If shut-In, they must have previously been an production, and the date of resumption of production must be

known with reasonable certainty.

(6} "Developed Non-Producing” resarves are those reserves that either have not been on production, or have previously been on production, but are shut-in,

and the date of rasumption of production Is unknown.

{7} “"Undeveloped” reserves are those raserves expecled to be recovered from known accumulations where a significant expenditure {for example, when
compared to the cost of drifling a well) Is required to render them capable of production. They must fully meset the requiraments of the reserves

classlilcation {proved, probable, possible) to which they are assigned.

{& The pricing assumptions used In the GLJ Report with respect 1o values of future net revenue (forecast) as well as the inflation rates used for operating
and capital costs are set forth below, GLJ Is an independent qualified reserves evaluator appelnted pursuant to NI 51-101.

{9) Vatues include processing and other Income.
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Light and Medium Bitumen Wellhead
Crude Oil Exchange Rate Current Natural Gas Inflation Rate
WTI Cushing Oklahoma Alberta Spot

{$US/bbl) $US/$Cdn BCdvbbl) $Cdn/mef} Yafyear
Forecast
2007 62.00 087 31.50 7.00 2.0
2008 60.00 087 32.75 7.25 20
2009 58.00 087 33.50 7.55 20
2010 57.00 087 33.38 7.60 20
2011 57.00 0.87 34.50 7.65 20
2007 57.50 087 35,00 7.95 20
2013 58,50 087 35,50 8.10 20
2014 59.79 087 36.63 8.30 20
2015 61.00 087 37.38 8.50 20
2016 62.25 0.87 38.13 865 20
Thereatter % 0.87 2% 2% 2.0

Operating expenses, capital costs and abandonment costs utilized in the GLJ Report were as follows:

Forecast Prices and Costs - Canada (Undiscounted)

Total Proved Proved Plus Probable
(SMM) (MM

Operating costs 79 97
Capital costs 3 1
Abandonment 4 4

Total Company Combined Reserves (Conventignal and Unconventional)

0On a combined basis, Connacher's reserves grew at very significant rates, Total combined 1P equivalent reserves at December 31,
2006 were estimated by GLJ to be 50.4 million barrels, an increase of 3,254 percent over year end 2005.

Connacher's combined 2P equivalent reserves increased 29 percent to 93 million boe at Decembar 31, 2006 compared to 72.1
million boe at year end 2005.

The company's combined 2P reserves are forecast to generate $1.6 billion of future net revenue with a 10 percent present value of
$529 million, after future capitat of $417 million and abandonment costs of $13.7 million. This represents a 160 percent year over o
'_‘ year increase in the 10 percent present values. ~ _ - T - o - B '




Combined Conventionat and Unconventional Reserves

{mbos) December 31,2006 December 31, 2005 %
Proved Conventional™ 6,540 1,501
Proved Bitumen™ 43,841 0
Total Proved (1P)® 50,381 1,501 3,254%
Probable Conventional® 2,248 994
Prohable Bitumen® 40,307 69,804
Total Probable® 42,555 70,598 -40%
Proved + Probable Conventional 8,788 2,495
Proved + Probable Bitumen?2 84,148 69,604
Total 2P 42 92,936 72,099 29%
10% Present Value of Future Net Revenue
Total Company (Conventional and Unconventional) &
e, s e atierne e s e = 2008 - - 2005 %
. (SMM) VM)
Proved Conventional™ 122 23
Proved Bitumen™ 191 0
Total Proved (1P} 313 23 1,269%
Probable Conventional® 3 12
Probable Bitumen® 186 168
Total Probable® 217 180 20%
Proved + Probable Conventional ! 152 35
Proved # Probable Bitumen 93 __ e .. .. 316 L 168 .
TJotalgpva T T T T LT - ST R R 160%

(1) Proved reserves are those reserves that can be astiniated with a high degree of calﬁir_itf_' to be recoverabla, It is 90% likely that the actual remaining

quantities recoverad Wil excead the estimated Tioved faservas.”

(2) Probable reserves are lhose additional reserves that are less certaln to be recovered than proved reserves, It is equally likely that the actual remaining

quantltias racoverad wlll be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable raserves.

(3) Possible reserves are those addltional reserves that are lass certaln to be recovered than probable reserves, There is only a 10% probabillty that tha
quantitles actually racovered will aqual or exceed the sum of proved plus probable plus possible raserves. Possible reserves were 26 million bbls and

39.8 million boe n the GLJ 2006 report and the GLJ 2005 and D&M 2005 reports, raspectivaly.

(4}  Does not include bltumen resources or undeveloped land valua.

Conventional & Unconventional Combined

Betore Deducting Income Taxes Discounted At

Total Company Interest Net After Royalty 0% 5% 10%

{MBOE) (MBOE) (EMM) MM (MM

Total Proved (iP) 50,381 45,162 704 460 312
Tota! Proved + Probable (2P) 92,936 81,327 1,554 849 529
Total Proved + Probable + Possible (3P) 118,649 102,953 2,167 1,050 616
Total 1P + Low Total Resources 117,018 104,876 1,576 949 608
Total 2P + Best Tolal Resources 269,414 239,596 4,128 1,853 931
Total 3P + High Total Resources 487,741 430,887 8,314 3,090 1,397
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2006 Year End 2P Reserve Reconciliation ™23

By Principal Product Type Proved + Probable
Forecast Prices and Cosls (Mboe)
December 31, 2005 64,660
Discoveries 0
Extensions 11,991
Infill Drilling 0
Improved Recovery 230
Technical Revisions 63
Acquisitions 5410
Disposilions {201)
Economic Factors 0
Production (826)
December 31, 2006 81,327

{1} May net add due to rounding.
(2) Calculated based on net reseves and forecast price case as at Dacember 31, 2006.

{31 Allreferences lo bamels of oll equivalent (bos) are calcutated on the basis of 6 mef : 1bbl. Boe may be misleading, particutarly if used In isolation. A boe
conversion ratio of 6 mef ; 1 bbl is based on an energy equlvalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tp and does nol represent a
value equivalency at the wellnead.

PP I - e . .
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-Unproved Property Valuation

Connacher retained Sayer Energy Advisors ("Sayer™), independent energy advisors of Calgary, Alberta, fo conduct an evaluation ot its
unproved properties in Western Canada. Sayer completed a report {the "Sayer Repor”) with an effective date of December 31, 2006.
It was prepared according to Standard of Disclosure for Qif and gas activities described In Nt 51-101 and within the Code of Ethics of
the Association of Profession Engineers, Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta,

Sayer assigned a low value of $14.9 million, a median value of $16.2 million and a high value of $17.6 million to Connacher's 64,1021
net hectares of petroleum and natural gas rights held in the Provinces of Alberta, British Columbia and Saskatchewan as al December
31, 2006. The valuation does not include any of Connacher's bitumen rights which are evaluated within the GLJ 2006 Report.
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Connacher Qil and Gas Limited, its Board of Directors and its
Management are committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices. This commitment is believed not
only to be in the best interest of shareholders but that it
also promotes effective decision making at ali levels of the
company's activities.

In its pursuit of effective governance, Connacher is mindful of
prevailing recommendations with respect to best practices as
advanced by Canadian regulatory authorities, non-regulatory
organizations and_other standard which are advanced from
time to time by institutional and other investors.

Connacher’s Board of Directors is comprised of six individuals.
Five of these people are non-Management and four of the
five so characterized are considered independent. All of
the company’s Board Committees are comprised of non-
management individuals. All of Connacher's five Committees
of the Board are composed of a majority of independent
directors.

of Directors {other than management) is concerned, and
advances these recommendations to the full Board. At
Board level, management participates in voting upon the
remuneration to be awarded to non-management directors.

Connacher has developed a mandate for its Board of
Directors, each committee of the Board, the Lead Diractor,
individual directors, the Chair of each committee and for the
Chief Executive Officer. These are reviewed at least annually
and updated to take into account changes or developments
conS|dered beneflmal to good governance practices.

Additionally , the Governance Committee assesses individual
performance of directors and numerous other items which

are detalled in the companys Information circular and

attachments thersto.

The company has also adopted various policies with respect
to sound business conduct, especially with respect to
Disclosure, Trading in Securities, Whistle Blower Policy, and
additional Policies which dea! with a Respectful Workplace,

- The-Chairs_of_Connacher's.Audit_and_Reserves-Committees — _Violence in the Workplace, Inappropriate Activity and Privacy. --

[ SRRV

are considered- experts The: Chair_of | our Audit: Committee——_ Connacher also has a Gode of Ethics. These are updated and-- — -— - ----

is a Chartered Accountant who.held the posmon. of Vice. -

Chairman with a reco'gnized national accounting firm prior to
his retirement and subsequent appointment to Connacher's
Board of Directors. The Chair of our Reserves Committee
was the President of an independent engineering consulting
firm prior to his retirement and subsequent appointment to
Connacher’s Board.

In total, Connacher has five Board committees, including
Audit, Governance, Human Resources, Reserves and Health,
Safety and the Environment {“HSE").

Connacher's Human Resources Committee, which
oversees and makes recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of management, is entirely comprised of
independent directors.  Connacher's Lead Director is an
independent director and the majority of the members of
its Governance Committee are independent directors. The
Governance Committee considers the recommendations of
the Human Resources Committee insofar as remuneration

CONNACHER 0IL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006

reviewed on a regular basis by management,_its Governance
Committee and the Board.

Connacher alse has a Disclosure Committee comprised of
the Chief Executive Officer, counsel and internal operating
and financial personnsl with a sound understanding of
various aspects of Connacher's business to ensure full,
plain, true, and timely disclosure of material items based
on reliable information. Qur objective is to provide useful,
understandable, correct and timely mformatlon to our
shareholders.

Connacher is mindful of safety in the workplace
and under the auspices of the HSE Committee,
management has developed a Safety Program Manual
and has adopted an Emergency Response Plan to deal
with possible disasters, incleding sour gas emissions, for
example. A safety video for presentation to all employees,
trades, subtrades and suppliers has been developed and
rolled out to our various field offices and activity sites,

e
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including in Montana where Connacher operates a refinery
within the city fimits of Great Falls. Qur Montana cperation
has also developed its own safety and emergency response
procedures in conjunction with local and State authorities as
required by US law.

Connacher has a trading blackout policy which is imposed
pursuant to its Disclosure and Insider Trading Policy. This
is invoked by the Chief Executive Officer and applies to all
employees, insiders as legally defined and related parties of
such individuals, including partners. It is generaily invoked
as soon as a press release is issued and remains in full force
and effect for at least two business days thereafter to allow
for dissemination of information to the investing public. In
some circumstances, the blackout period is extended,
especially around the time of release of critical financial and
operating results. Insiders also have an overrlding obligation
to adhere to all prevailing securities laws in respect of inside
information and tipping.

 Your company is an active supporter, directly and through staff
- participation and involvement, in various charitable causes _

in the regions in which it conducts activities. Our internal
donations committee appropriately places an emphasis on
children, older people, the disabled and the unfortunates in
society who are in need of support or encouragement.

Connacher believes it is a fair and sound employer, a good
corporate citizen and that it conducts its business in a proper
manner, fts constituent parts - the company, the Board of
Directors, management and staff — are supporters of good
governance practices. An emphasis is placed on strong
internal financial and operating controls and this commitment
is manifested in the company's reputation as a good place to
work, as a good company with which to do business and asa
company in which to be a shareholder.

Mindful of its corporate obligations, Connacher regularly
consults with stakeholders, including First Nations, in its
conduct of business throughout Western Canada.

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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The following is dated as of March 23, 2007 and should be ‘
read in conjunction with the consclidated financial statements .
of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited {“Connacher” or the
“company”) for the years ended 2606 and 2005 as contained
in this annual report. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP") and are presented
in Canadian doliars. This MD&A provides management’s view
of the financial condition of the company and the results of
its operations for the reporting periods.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

information in this report contains forward-looking information
based on current expectations, estimates and projections of
future production, capital expenditures and available sources of
financing and estimates of reserves, resources and fufure net
revenues and exploration and development plans. it should be
noted forward-looking information involves a number of risks
and uncertainties and actual resufts may vary materially from
those anticipated by the company. There can be no assurance
that the plans, intenfions or expectations upon which thess
forward-looking statements are based will occur. Forwarg-
looking staternents are subject fo risks, uncertaintigs and
assumptions, including those discussed in the company s Annual
Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2008, which
includs, without fimitation, changes in market conditions, law
e e ______or.governing poiicy, operating_conditions and_costs, operating__- }(3
.= . performance, demand for crude oil and natural gas, price and- -
<7 T - exchangerate fuctuations, commercial negotiations, reguiatory:
' processes and approvals and fechnical and economic factors.
Although Connacher believes that the expectations represented
in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can
be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct
The farward-looking statements contained herein are expressly
gualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. The
forward-looking statements included in this MD&A are made as
of the date of the MD&A and Connacher undertakes no obligation
to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reffect
new information, subsequent events or otherwise unless so
required by applicable securities laws. Throughout the MDA,
per barrel of oif equivalent {bee) amounts have been calculated
using a conversion rate of six thousand cubic feet of natural
gas to one barrel of crude oil (6:1). The conversion is based on
an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable
to the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at
the welthead. Boes may be misleading, particularly if used in
isolation.

TR TR
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

Strateglc Priorities Progress in 2008
Great Divide — 100% working interest retained through the financing of Pod One
Battrum Saskatchewan crude oll and Marien Creek natural gas
Apply financial discipline Great Divide (Pod One) financing arranged with term debt — non-recourse to
conventional assels & equity in Petrolifera
Successiul equity financings in 2005 and 2008 totalling $220 milfion
Cash flow finances conventional and refinery projects; available banking lines
of credit ]
Focus on projects with characteristics of sustainability, ~ Develop Great Divide Pod One and use as a template to develop addilioniat pods

repeatability

Mitigate and manage risks of smaller company in the oil Purchased Luke Enetrgy Lid. (“Luke") (gas producer) for natural gas required
sands for steaming Pod One at Great Divide
-integrated approach Purchase of Montana refinery to mitigate price differential risk and potential for
marketing Great Divide bitumen production
Initiatives to mitigate envirenmental concems
-low impact seismic (minimum line width)
. -SAGD provides smaller surface footptint than mining
-produced gas conserved '
« weew oo --@Vaporator/package boiler . .- .. . .. -

Operate with large focused working interest

PR - o=t . . - -1 -

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW
CONVENTIONAL PRODUCTION, PRICING AND REVENUE

For the years ended December 31 ' ' o 2006 2005 2004
Dally production / sales volumes L .
Crude oil — bbl/d 980 729 785
Natural gas ~ mct/d 10473 827 1,620
Combined ~ boe/d 2,725 867 1,055
Product pricing ($) PO .
oo oo -Cudecil-perbbl e wmoeme——e oo o o - 5388 - 4233 - - %A
AT soo— ool Natural gas - per mef - | - S oo o - o - . 586 - - 137 - —- 3.62 -
7 'f_: © 7 7 7 Boe-perboe T T mmee e ' U0 T 41830 7 3691 . 89
Revenue ($000) - - - Ce R .
Petroleum and natural gas - gross : 41,607 11,678 11,180
Royallies : (9,821) (2,583) (2,139
Petroleum and nalural gas revenue - net 31,786 9,095 9,041

In 20086, net petrolsum and natural gas revenues were up 256.3 percent to $31.8 million from $9.1 million in 2005. This
was primarily attributable to a substantial increase in natural gas production resulting from the Luke acquisition in March
2006. Natural gas sales volumes increased 1,166 percent and crude oil sales volumes increased 34 percent in 2006. As a
consequence of increased world oil prices in 2006, the company's average crude oil selling price increased by 27 percent to
$53.85 per barrel compared to $42.33 per barrel in 2005. Natural gas sales prices increased 327 percent in 2006, but this was
primarily due to the influence of low natural gas prices received in Argentina in 2005 when the results of Petralifera Petroleum
Limited (“Petrolifera”) were consolidated with those of Connacher. As a result of the Luke acquisition, the company's product
mix is more balanced. Crude oil sales represented 46 percent of the company’s total production revenue in 2006 and natural

gas sales contributed 54 percent.

ROYALTIES ON CONVENTIONAL PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS SALES

2006 2005
For the years ended December 31 ($000) Total Por boo Tot Por bos
Petroleum and natural gas royallies $9,821 $9.87 $2,583 $8.16
Percentage of petroleum and natural gas revenue 23.6% 22%
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Rovalties represent charges against production or revenue by governments and landowners. Royalties in 2006 were $9.8
million ($9.87 per boe, or 23.6 percent of petroleum and natural gas revenue) compared to $2.6 milifon in 2005 ($8.16 per
boe, or 22 percent of petroleum and natural gas revenue).

From year to year, royalties can change based on changes to the weighting in the product mix which is subject to different
royalty rates, and rates usually escalate with increased product prices. The increase from 2005 to 2006 reflects market
conditions related to increased product prices and production volumes,

CONVENTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES AND NETBACKS (!
For the years ended December 31

2006 2005 % Change

(8000 except per boe} Total Per boe Total  Per hoe Total Per boe

Average daily produclion (boe/d) 2,125 867

Petroleum and natural gas revenue $41,607 $41.83 $11,678 $36.91 256 13
Rovalties {9,821) (9.87) (2,583) {8.16) 280 21
Net revenue 31,786 31.96 9,005 28.75 250 11
Operating costs (8,270) {8.32) (2,445) (7.73) 238 8

Operating netback ) $23,516 $21.64 $6,650 $21.02 254 13

(1) Calculated by dividing -refated revenus and costs by total boe produced, resulting In an ovarall combined company netback, Nethacks do not have
a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and, therefora, may not ba comparable to similar measures used by other companles. This ron-GAAP
measurement 15 4 useful and widely used supplemental measuse that provides management with parformance measures and provides shareholders
and Investors with a meagurament of the, company’s efflclency and its abltity to fund future growth through capltal expenditures. Operating netbacks are
reconclled to nat earnlngs below - - - e - -

Revenue {$000) Conventional Oil and Gas Revenue
per boe ($/bog)
120,000
100,000
90000“’"“' SEETE———
60,000 — -
40,000
20,000
e r—— 1 = [ . 0 . . N
Mmoo a3 04 o 02 03 04 a1 02 03 04 0O 02 03 04

05 05 05 05 . 06 06 06 06 o 05 05 05 05 06 06 06 06

For 2006 operating costs of $8,270 were 238 percent higher than in the prior year, and on a per unit basis, increased by 7.6
percent to $8.32 per bae refiecting the higher cost environment in 2006 and the substantial increases in production volumes
during the year. However, higher product prices resulted in higher operating netbacks in 2006.
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Expense per boe {$/boe) per boe ($/hoe)
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NETBACK BY PRODUCTTYPE™ ™~ 7 S i o
For the year ended December 31 : 2008
($000, except per unit amounts) ai Gas g :
o SE EETEE A _ - e e e -~ (bbl/d) - -~ {mefid) - - -
- Average dally production . 980 10473 ' '
Revenue $19,257 $53.86 $22,350 - §5.85
Royalties {4,534) (12.68) (5,287) {1.38)
Qperating costs {3,829) (10.711) (4,441) {1.16)
Netback $10,804 $30.48 $12,622 $3.30
Reconciliation of Operating Netback to Net Earnings
-- == = For the year ended-December 31 e el 1., S | ! | e LI e S
e — - ($000, except per.unit amounts) — - — ol . . L L. RO [ - X Par boo _Total . Perboe e ek
-~ - Operating netbacKas above—" == __,,._—_-_;—,,___—,: TSR ST 423,516 - $23.64 $6,650° $21.02 TS
T 7 “lnterestincome T T CTTTTT cTTT Tt T — ot e T 1,028 - —-1.03 700 221 - T
" " Refinifig margin < pet~ " T T TR T TRRT-ET00206 T 2038 00 0 AT T -
General and administrative {3,886) {3.91) (2,660) (8.40)
Stock-based compensation (7,816} {7.86) (1,182) (3.77)
Finance charges ’ {5,086) {5.11) (308) (0.97)
Foreign exchange (loss) gain (4,287) {4.31) 30 0,09
Depletion, depreciation and amortization {32,949) (33.13) (5,797} (18.32)
Income laxes {(3,870) . {3.89) {870) (2.75)
Equity interest in Petrolifera earnings and dilution gain 11,101 11.16 4,437 14.02
Net eamnings $6,953 $6.98 $991 $3.13

Conventional Qi and Gas Operating

82-34954

Conventional 0il and Gas Netbacks

REFINING REVENUES AND MARGINS

The operating results of the Montana refinery since its acquisition an March 31, 2006 to December 31, 2006 are summarized

below.

Seasonatity of Refining Operations and Sales

The Montana refinery is Subject to a number of seasonal factors which may cause product sales revenues to vary throughout
the year. The refinery's primary asphalt market Is paving for road construction which is predominantly a summer demand.
Consequently, prices and volumes for our asphalt tend to be higher in the summer and lower in the colder seasons and during
the winter most of the refinery’s asphalt production is stored in tankage for sale In the subsequent summer. Seasonal factors
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also affect gasoline (higher demand in summer months) and distillate and diese! thigher winter demand). As a result inventary
levels, sales volumes and prices can be expacted to fluctuate on a seasonal basis.

Refinery Throughput
Crude charged 8,713 bblid
Refinery production 9,498 bblid
Sales of produced refined products . 9,661 bbl/d
Sales of refined products (includes purchased products) . 10,053 bbl/d
Refinery utilization " : 94%

{1) Note In 04 reflnery capacity was Increased to 9,900 bbl/d.

Feadstocks
Sour crude oil 92%
Other feadstocks & blend 8%

Revenues and Margins

Refining sales revenue ($000) 211,874

+.- Retining — crude oil and- operatlng cosls($000) U “ - - ... . 182668 - -
Retining — margin ($000) - . .- — - R - - 29,206
Het“mngmargln {%) - 13.8%

Sales of Produced Refmed Products (Volume: %) N e

Gasohnes - . . . : . 35.6%

Diesel fuels _ - : : o 176%
Jet fuels ‘ _ B L 34% -
Asphalt : . . 40.2%
LPG and other ) 3.2% -
Total - 100%

Averages Per Ban rel of Refined Products Sotd

Refining sales_ revenue. ) - 5 : $76.63

"7 " {ess: Refining — cfude Gil and ODEraling Costs ~= < o- < ws oo e e cememmio T Tl T o LT 8B607 -

' ‘”_‘_fjeﬁn[ng margln ":'"”:':' I :'"""'_""'"f—-ft‘" '_""# ‘“j—:":'l'b‘é_"' "ﬁ e ”‘ "_”"'i:"' ~$10. 55 T T
2006 Reﬂned Product Sa[es {000 bbls/month) | 2006 Montana Refining Crude Throﬁghput (bbls/d}
500 10,000 T
Iei=iEIEI RIS
. LI DR I 3
400 gooo— H H H H H-H &M r

300

200

a00— A o T

.4."‘

APR  MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

CJoter [“Jaspran [ et []oteset [l Gasotine
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2006 Refined Product Production (Volume %)

vdy

1 4 i oot it L P

B "_.s"' . D] l‘_‘ B »o .. 1' . . . ',‘1; .
f EETYR - . :

|

-.On March 31,-2006, Connacher completed the: achIsman of-an. 8 300 | bblld Jefinery.and related. assets, mcludmg substantaai o ;%2;

product mventory, |n Great Falls Montana

P s e Tt . YT

The refinery is a good strategic fit with Connacher's oilsands develapment, as it is well-located — the closest U.S. refinery to
Alberta’s ollsands. It processes Canadian heavy crude into a range of higher value products including reguiar and. premium
gasoline, jet fuel, diesel, home heating oil and asphalt. The refinery thus provides a physical hedge protecting Connacher’s
future oil sands revenues against crude oii/bitumen price differentials.

The Montana refinery is a complex operation and includes reforming, isomerization and alkylation processes for formulation
of gasoline blends, hydro-treating for sulphur removal and fluid catalytic cracking for conversion of heavy gas oils to gasoline
and distillate products. It also is a major supplier of paving grade asphalt, polymer modified grades and asphalt emulsions for
road construction. The Montana refinery markets products to retailers in Montana and neighbouring states by truck and rail
transport.

? Shortly after taking over the refinery, the company undertook a 20 day turnaround to complete normat maintenance and

' de-bottlenecking activities. As a result, throughput capacity was increased to 9,000 bbl/d. Through the year, subsequent
optimizations have increased crude throughput capacity to 8,900 bbl/d. Since the turnaround, the refinery has operated continuously
with no downtime and crude throughput has averaged 9,400 bbl/d with an average annual capacity utilization of 94%.
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in 2007 Connacher plans tocontinue’ maklng gnvironmental and capaclty enhancements at the Montana refmery We are’

Connacher's refinery operation achieved an outstanding year in 2006 with record levels of throughput, profit and profit margin.

This performance was due to improved efficiencies implemented subsequent to the acquisition, increased throughput and

sales volumes and high product pnces and differentials for the heavy crude feedstocks used as a result of market conditions.

During the year, the company also made significant environmental improvements to the operation. These included capital
projects to remove excess sulphur from boiler fuel and recovery and remediation of an old wastewater aeration pond.
Sulphur removal in the boiler fuel has now been improved by over 200 times from the previous operation. Sulphur removal
is accomplished by means of a unique pracess which converts the sulphur to a product now being used commercially for
environmental remediation in other parts of the U.S.

Other improvements initiated during the year included the construction of a new 150,000 barre! asphalt tank (commissioned
in March 2007) and expanded rail loading facilities, both undertaken to handle the increased throughput achieved during the
year. :

Connecher employs a well-trained and experienced staff in the Montana refinety. The company was successfut in retaining
most of the key personne! associated with the refinery, as well as recruiting a number of other experienced professionals. Key
processes and systems have been fully integrated into the company. Connacher's operation includes a strong training and
development pregram as well as ngorous procedures for safety and enwronrnental protect:on

designing new high efficiency boilers, further i mcreasmg rail Ioad out capabilities, improwng wastewater treatment facllities,

and further enhancmg our sulphur treatment process. T

As well, Connacher has initiated a major Clean Fuels prolect targeted to allew the productlon of uitralow sulphur diesel and
gasoline in 2008.

Engineering and marketing studies have also been initiated to assess the possibility of major expansion of the refinery’s heavy
oil capacity. '

INTEREST AND OTHER INGOME

' In 2006, the company eamed mterest of $1 mlllIOI'I (2005 " $700,000) on excess funds invested in secure short-term

mvestments

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE-EXPENSES — -~~~ = -

In 2006, general and administrative (“G&A") expenses were $3.9 million compared to $2.7 million in 2005, an increase of 46
percent, reflecting increased costs associated with being a public company as well as increased staffing that occurred in 2006
in connection with the acquisition of the Montana refinery and to support the devetopment of Great Divide. G&A of $1.0 million
was also capitalized in 2006 (2005 - $205,000).

Non-cash stock-based compensation costs of $11.8 million were recorded in 2006 (2005-$1.6 million). These charges reflect
the fair value of all stock options granted and vested in each year. Of this amount, $7.8 million was expensed (2005 - $1.2
million), $3.5 million was capitalized (2005 - $410,000) and $500,000 was charged to refining operating costs in 2006.

FINANCE CHARGES

Financing charges were $5.1 million in 2006 compared to $308,000 reported in 2005. These charges increased significantly from
2005 due to the issuance of debt in 2006, including the US$51 million bridge loan used to fund the acquisition of the Montana
refinery and the conventional line of credit. In addition, an unrealized foreign exchange loss of $4.3 million was incurred in 2006
primarily due to the conversion of US$180 million oil sands term loan to Canadian dollars for reporting purposes.

The company's main exposure to foreign currency risk relates to the pricing of its crude oil sales, which are denominated in
US dollars, and the translation of the US$180 million oil sands term loan. On an economic basis, the company’s crude all and
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bitumen reserves hedge the company's exposure to foreign Cash flow ($000)
currency fluctuations of its US dollar dengminated oil sands
term loan, : 15,000

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION ("DD&A™ ,, N
12,000 N

DD&A expense is calculated using the unit-of-preduction
method based on total estimated proved reserves. DD&A in
2006 was $32.9 million, a 468 percent increase from last
year due to increased production volumes and due to the i
significant additions made to capital assets in 2006. This 6,000 Y H
equates to $33.13 per boe of production compared to $18.32 -
per boe last year.

9,000 M —

3,000 Lo A

Capital costs of $156.7 million (2005 - $11.3 million) related '_{ ‘ f‘"{ O
to the Great Divide oil sands project, which is in the pre- S [—l ’_—l :
production stage and undeveloped Iand acquisition costs of 02 03 04 01 02 03 o

05 e 0505 06 . 0B _06_ 06

e - '—. P R A e Ll - + — - D m—m om i

=

T T $16.2 million (20057 $2.5° mrllron) were excluded from the depletion” caIcuIatIon whrle future development costs of $3.2°
milllon {2005 - $1 8 mrllron) for proved undeveloped reserves were included | in the depletlon calculation.

-~ Included in DD&A is a charge of 3348 000 (2005 - $1 65 000) in respect of the company 'S estrmated asset retirement obllgatrons
These charges will continue to be necessary in the future to accrete the currently booked discounted liability of $7.3 million to the
estimated total undiscounted liability of $17.4 mlllron over the remarnrng economic life of the company’s ¢il and gas propertres

CEILING TEST

Qil and gas companies are required to compare the recoverable value of their oif and gas assets to their recorded carrying _

value at the end of each reporting period. Excess carrying values over ceiling valus are to be written off against eamings.. No aie

_. Write-down was requrred for any reportmg penod in 2006 or 2005 . “—': s e
- TAXES - : ‘ - - :

- The income tax provision of 33. 9 mﬂllon in 2006 includes a current tax: prowsron of $7 4 mr]!ron pnnmpally related to US Ce s e
refinery operations and a future income tax recovery of $3.5 million reflecting the benefit of increased tax pools during the )
year.

At December 31, 2006 the company had approximately $25.8 million of non-capital losses which do not expire before 2009,
$253.5 million of deductible resource pools and $20.7 million of deductible financing costs.

EQUITY INTEREST IN PETROLIFERA PETROLEUM LIMITED

Connacher accounts for its 26 percent equity investment in Petrolifera on the equity method basis of accounting. Until the
third quarter of 2005, Petrolifera was consolidated with Connacher. Connacher’s equity interest share of Petrolifera's earnings
in 2006 was $11.1 million (2005 - $27,000 loss}

DILUTION GAIN

tn 2004 and in 2005, the company's equity interest in Petrolifera was diluted as a result of Petrolifera issuing common shares.
In November 2004, the company’s equity interest was reduced from 100 percent to 61 percent; in March 2005 it was reduced
to 40 percent, in late 2005, it was reduced to 33 percent and in 2006 it was further reduced to 26 percent. These reductions
resulted in a dilution gain to the company of $23,000 in 2006 and $4.5 million in 2005. '
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B L'_..-_—_: — - The oII sands termoloan has _a seven year—term Its prlnclpal ‘- amortrlzed by one percent per»year commencing |n 2008- :

" LaUiDiTY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

82-34954

NET EARNINGS {LOSS)

In 2006 the company reported earnings of $7.0 miltion ($0.04 per basic and diluted share outstanding). This compares to
earnings of $991,000 or $0.01 per basic and diluted share for 2005. Earnlngs per boe produced was $6.98 compared to
$3.13 last year.

SHARES OUTSTANDING

For 2008, the weighted average number of common shares outstanding was 184,468,631 (2005 — 106,113,563) and the weighted
average number of diluted shares outstanding, as calculated by the treasury stock method, was 188,431,809 (2005 — 111,845,687).
The substantial increase In shares outstanding year over year reflects the issuance from treasury of 55,461,382 common shares for
cash proceeds of $130 million and in connection with the acquisitions of Luke and the Montana refinery assets.

As at March 23, 2007, the company had th fallowing securities issued and cutstanding:
+ 198,218,448 common shares; and
» 15,840,051 share purchase options.

Details of the exercise provisions and terms of the outstanding options are noted in the consolidated financial statements,

Includedin this annualreport, ___ e s e

e e e m e s et o e e

At December 31; 2006, the company had working caprtal of $1 18 6 m|||lon mcludmg $1 21 million of cash dedicated to fund:ng L

* the réiaining costs of completmg Pod Ofig

In 2006 the company drew US$51 million on a bridge loan facility to partially fund the acquisition of the Montana refinery
assets, which closed on March 31, 2006. This bridge loan was repaid in full on Qctober 20, 2006 from the proceeds of a
US$180 miltion term loan facility that was fully drawn on that date (the "oil sands term loan™). The primary purpose of the oil
sands term loan is to fund the development of the company’s first oil sands project at Great Divide in northern Alberta (“Pod
One™). After also depositing US$14 million into an account to fund the estimated interest costs during the course of completing
the Pod One project and_after paying US$4 miliien_in costs to complete the transaction, the batance of oil sands term loan
praceeds have been demgnated solely to fund the total estlmated remarnlng costs necessary to complete Pod One. '

- —a,‘-..r', - 1.:.1-_ *“,,...x * v“-.**‘"'

Additional repayments will'be due If certain cash flow performance thresholds are attained. Principal payments on the oil
sands term loan are not expected to be srgmflcant in the first six years. The ol sands term loan is a floating-rate facility,
bearing interest either at a US Collar Base Rate plus a margin or a US Eurodoliar rate plus a margin. In Octeber 2006, the
company entered into an interest rate swap with a financial institution whereby the floating rate on US$30 million of the oil
sands term loan was fixed at an all-in rate of 8.516 percent over the term of the loan. All interest an the oil sands term loan is
being capitalized until Pod One becomes operational.

On October 20, 2006 the company also secured a US$15 million revolving line of credit ("refining line of credit”) to fund the
working capital requirements of the refinery in Great Falls, Montana. The refining line of credit has a five year term and bears
interest at a US Eurodollar rate plus a margin or at 2 US Dollar Base Rate pius a margin,

The oil sands term foan and the refining line of credit are secured by debenture and mortgage agreements covering all of
the assets of the refinery and all of the company's interest in the Great Divide oil sands assets. These two facilities are non-
recourse to the company's conventional petroleum and natural gas assets or to its Investment in Petrolifera.

The company also has available a $55 million Extendible Revolving Loan Facility (the "Conventional iine of credit”) with no
scheduled repayments. AtDecember 31, 2006, $19.5 million was drawn in the form of bankers acceptances under this facility
at an interest rate of 5.62 percent inclrding margin. The facllity matures on Aprll 15, 2007 and Is extendible upon request by
the company, at the lender’s option for 364 days. The conventicnal line of credit is secured by a $50 million fixed and floating

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006

e — s



82-34954

charge debenture and a general assignment of book debts over the company's conventionaf crude oit and natural gas assets,
and is non-recourse to the company's Great Divide oil sands, its refining assets or to Its [nvestment in Petroiifera.

Cash fiow from operations before working capital changes {“cash flow™), cash flow per share and cash flow per boe do not
have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies. Cash flow includes all cash flow from operating activities and is calculated before changes in non-cash working
capital. The most comparable measure calculated in accordance with GAAP would be net earnings. Cash flow Is reconciled
with net earnings on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and below.

Cash flow per share Is calculated by dividing cash flow by the weighted average shares outstanding; cash flow per boe is
calculated by dividing cash flow by the quantum of crude oil and natural gas (expressed in boe) sold in the period. Management
uses these non-GAAP measurements for its own performance measures and to provide its shareholders and investors with a
measurement of the company's efficiency and its ability to fund a portion of its future growth expenditures.

In addition to available cash, unused debt facilities and cash flow, additional sources of funding in the form of additional equity
issuances or additional debt financing may be utilized to provide sufficient funding for working capital purposes and for the
company's anticipated capital program in 2007.

- -The company's only financial instruments are cash, accounts rece:vab!e and payable bank debt and the anterest rate swap . :

- = P —_—m——— o m —melmln . lia ae wa R — - - -

~ “The company maintains rio off- balarice sheet financial instruments. T

L Reconcmatmn of net eammgs to.cash flow from operatmns before worklng capltal changes - - .- ’ -

Twelve months ended December 31

GooQ)- - e ' - < 2006 ST 2005
Net earnings B . - ' 86,853 . $991
items not involving cash: ' L ’ '
Depletion, depreciation and accretion T 32,949 5,797
Stock-based compensation 8,293 1,192
Financing charges . a7 150
.5 .7 Future income tax provision (recovery) <.t o T (3538) o 768 - :
Employee future benefis. - - _‘ ) E 381 .- . -
% ;;_...L;. —Foreign exchange {gain). Ioss_:,::;:';..;'—.'f—.-:.:.:::_'-.;"—;: = ;:47287— = ‘- - ot .
A Lease|nducementamomzaUOn-—“-f—‘-"—"—'— ST L T, (288 - - T - T Y - e —
Dilution gain ) o ' o 23 ) (4,465)
Equity interest in Pelrolifera loss (earnings) (11,078) 27
Cash flow from operations before working capital changes $40,196 $4,358

For 2006, cash flow was $40.2 milfion ($0.22 per basic and $0.21 per diluted share), 822 percent higher than the $4.4 million
reported ($0.04 per basic and diluted share) in 2005.

Cash flow per boe was $40.41 in 2006 compared to $13.77 in 2005. This represents 97 percent of the average company
selling price per boe compared to 37 percent in 2005 and an increase of 193 percent over 2005.
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"~ Proceeds of the financing werg_a utilized- asfollows-= B T T

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
GCapital expenditures totaled $452 million in 2006. A breakdown of the expenditures follows:

Twelve months ended December 31

82-34954

($000) 2006 2005
Acquisition of Luke $204,658 $-
Acquisition of refinery assets 66,333 -
Minor property acquisitions 6,767 1,700
0il sands expenditures ) 144,765 7,224
Conventional oil and gas expenditures 23,152 7,783
Refinery expenditures 5,850 . .

$451,525 $16,807
Additianally, the company disposed of non-core properties for proceeds of $10 milllon in the fourth quarter of 2006.

0il sands expenditures include exploratory core hole drilling, seismic, lease acquisition and facility costs. In 2006, 26

. exploratory core holes were drilled. .. . . . - =

o o n —— = — g e w e o _—— e _——— ¢ ———

 Conventional oll and gas expenditures include costs of drilling, completing, eqmpping angd workmg over conventional oil and
~ gas wells as well as undeveloped Iand acqm3|t|on and selsmlc expendltures

A significant part of the company’s capltal program is discretionary and may be expanded or curtailed based on dnlllng resutts

and the availability of capital. This is reinforced by the fact that Connacher operates most of its wiells and holds an apprommate
87 percent working interest in its conventional properties, providing the company with operational and timing controls.' K

Recent Financings

In February 20086, the company issued 19,047,800 common shares at $5.25 per share for gross proceeds of $100 million to
fund exploration and development activities associated with conventional crude oll and natural gas activities and the Great
Dlwde 0l Sands project, for general corporate purposes, for workmg capltal and to pamally fund the acqmsmon of Luke.

= —p— - -t = - - "

ST S RTINS meem e n T T T AN _ét the T
($000) \ ] time of financing As actually applied
Gross proceeds' _ $100,000- $100,000
Underwriters commission and issue costs 6250 6,250
Available for exploration and development, general corporate purposes
for working capital and to fund a portion of the Luke acquisition $93,750 $93,750

in September 20086, the company issued 5,714,300 common shares on a "flow-through” basis at $5.25 per common share
for gross proceeds of $30 million to fund exploration activities including the further delineation of the company's oil sands
properties through the drilling of additional core holes and shooting 3D seismic. Proceeds of the financing were utilized as
follows:

As slated al the
($000) time of {inancing As actually applied
Gross proceeds $30,000 $30,000
Underwriters commission and issue costs ’ . 2,075 ) 1,883
Available for exploration activities $27.925 $28,117

Refer also to the “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” abave, for a discussion of the US$180 million and US$15 million debt
facilities entered into in Gctober 2006,
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Great Divide 0il Sands Project, Narthern Alberta

The company holds a 100 percent working interest in approximately 90,000 acres of oil sands leases in northern Alberta.
To date, the focus has been on an approximate 1,586 acre tract (“Pod One”) on which approximately $155 million has been
invested to the end of 2006 to acquire the oil sands leases, to delineate the oil bearing reservoir, and for certain facilities
related to the project. Capital development costs for Pod One are expected to approximate $256 million. These costs will be
incurred in 2007.

Acquisition of Luke Energy Ltd. ("Luke”)

In March 2006 the company closed the purchase of Luke for cash consideration of $92.7 million and the issuance of 29.7
mitlion Connacher common shares from treasury.

Luke produced natural gas, largely at Marten Creek in northern Alberta and operated most of its high working interest'

properties, This production was considered strategic to Connacher, as it provides a physica! hedge to its initial requirements
for natural gas to create steam for the company’s SAGD oll sands project (Pad One) at Great Divide. Based on purchased
production volumes and anticipated development programs, the Luke purchase is expected to provide surplus natural gas
volumes for sale in the marketplace and meet future Connacher requirements at Great Dlwde Luke was amalgamated with

P B - e w—— o
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Acquisition of Refining Assgts m‘MonIana_ o

in March 2006, the company acquired an 8,300 bilid Tefinery locéitéd In Great Falls; Montana, USA, for cash of $61 milloriarig ~ +"

one million Connacher common shares issued from treasury.

This acquusmon was considered strategic to provide Connacher with protectlon against wider and more volatile type of heavy

crude oil price differential swings. These have become increasingly frequent in the current higher oil price environment for the
type of heavy oll which would be produced at Great Divide. Since its acquisition, the refinery has been a profitable and strong
business unit contributing to the company’s cash flow.

~ Connacher completed the purchase of the reftnlng assets and related mventory through a new wholly-uwned subsuuary,

™ fof tefined petroleum produ

MRC's principal source of revenue is from the_sale of hlgh value light_ end products such a5 gasollne diesel and jet fue! in
markets in the western United States. Additionally, MRC sells a high grade asphalt into the local market. MRC's principal
expenses relate to crude oil purchases and operating expenses.

In April 2006, MRC completed a scheduled plant “turnaround” maintenance program of Its refinery facilities. Such turnarounds
are normally scheduled every two to five years. Turnaround costs are capitalized and amortized over the period to the next
scheduled turnaround.

With minimal additional anticipated capital investment, MRC will be capable of praducing tow suliur gasoline and diesel as
required in 2008, - - .- - - : - ' x

The above mentioned regulatory compliance items or other presently existing or future environmental regulations, could cause
management to make additional capital investments beyond those described above and/or incur additional operating costs to
meet applicable requirements,

In 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law. Among other things, the Act creates tax incentives for
small refiners preparing to praduce low sulphur gascline and diesel. The Act provides an immediate deduction of 75% of
certain costs paid or incurred to comply with tthese standards and a tax credit based on production for up to 25% of those
costs. Management intends to utilize these incentives when it makes these required expenditures.

CONNACHER O1L AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006

'ts_andthe costofcrudeml.__,k_ i e e T . - . _' -

82-34954



§2-34954

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2006 the company paid professional legal fees of $1.8 million (2005 - $539,000) to a law firm in which an officer and
director of the company are partners. Transactions with the foregoing related partles occurred within the normal course of
business and have been measured at their exchange amount on normal business terms. The exchange amount is the amount
of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The significant accounting policies used by the company are described below. Certain accounting policies require that
management make approprlate decisions with respect to the formulation of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, llabilities, revenues and expenses. Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have a
material impact on the company’s financial results and condition. The following discusses such accounting policies and is
included herein to aid the reader in assessing the critical accounting policiss and practices of the company and the likelihood
of materially different results being reported. Management reviews Its estimates and assumptions regularty. The emergence
of new information and changed circumstances may result in changes to estimates and assumptions which could be material
and the company might realize different results from the application of new accounting standards promulgated, from time to
time, by various regulatory rule- maklng bodles

“he e e A ST LA TT o A A o . ot

i
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"Thie following assessment of sigmflcant accounting poilces is not meant 0 be exhaustive. - - - . 0007

C e wee = —

~0riandGasReserves AR e DL T

Under Canadran Securities Regulators' "Natlonal lnstrument 51 101—Standards of Dlsc!osure for Oil and Gas Actwrtres" {(“Ni
51-101") proved reserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degree of certainty to be recoverable. In
accordance with this definition, the level of certainty should result in at least a 90 percent probabllity that the guantities
actually recovered will equal or exceed the estimated reserves. In the case of probable reserves, which are less certain to be
recovered than proved reserves, NI 51-101 states that it must be equally likely that the actual remaining quantities recovered
will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves. Possible resarves are those reserves less
. certain to be recovered than probable reserves. There is at Ieast a 10 percent probablllty that the quantmes actually recovered —
will exceed the sum of proved plug probable plus posslble feserves. . ... o

= - - fmm e - P T e v i - - = s e mmm mmm - eee—mer

The company's oit and gas reserve estrmates are made by independent reservoir engineers uslng aII available geoiogica! and

" resefvoir 'data as well as historical production data. Estimates arg revigwéd and fevised as appropriate Revisionsoctur as
a result of changes in prices, costs, fiscal regimes, reservair performance or a change in the company's plans. The reserve
estimates are also used in determining the company's borrowing base for its credit facilities and may impact the same upon
revision or changes to the reserve estimates. The effect of changes in proved oil and gas reserves on the financial results and
position of the company is described under the heading "Full Cost Accounting for Qil and Gas Activities”.

Full Cost Accounting for Gil and Gas Activities

The company uses the full cost method of accounting for exploration and development activities. In accordance with this
method of accounting, all costs associated with exploration and development are capitalized whether successful or not. The
aggregate of net capitalized costs and estimated future development costs is depleted using the unit-of-production method
based on estimated proved oil and gas reserves.

Major Development Projects and Unproved Properties

Certain costs related to acquiring and evaluating unproved properties are excluded from net capitalized costs subject to
depletion until proved reserves have been determined or their value is impaired. Costs associated with major development
projects are not depleted until commencement of commercial production. All capitalized costs are reviewed quarterly and any
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impairment is transferred to the costs being depleted or, if the properties are located in a cost centre where there is no reserve
base, the impairment is charged directly to income.

Ceiling Test

The company is required to review the carrying value of all property, plant and equipment, including the carrying value of ol
and gas assets, for potential impairment. Impairment is indicated if the carrying value of the long-lived asset or oil and gas
cast centre is not recoverable by the future undiscounted cash flows. If impairment is indicated, the amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value of the long-lived asset is charged to earnings.

The ceiling test is based on estimates of reserves prepared by qualified independent evaluators, production rate, petroleum and
natural gas prices, future costs and other relevant assumptions. By their nature these estimates are subject to measurement
uncertainty and the impact on the consolidated financial statements could be material.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The company is required to provide for future removal and site restoration costs by estimating these costs in accordance
with existing laws, contracts or other policies. These estimated costs are charged to earnings and the appropriate liability
account over the expected service life of the asset. When the future removal and site restoration costs cannot be reasonably

determined, a contingent Tiability may exist._Contingent liabilitles are charged to earnings.only. when management is able to.
determine the amount and the likelihood of the fUture'obIIgatIon The company estimates future retirement costs based on

_ current costs as estrmated by the compenys engrneers adjusted for infiation and credit gi rrsk Thess_ estlmates are sub;ect to

-managementuncertarnty~— - R e

- Legal, Envr’ronmenta! Remediation and Other Cont’ingent Matters

In resper:t of these matters, the company Is required to determine whether a loss Is probable based on judgment and
interpretation of laws and regulations and determine if such a loss can be estimated. When any such loss is determined, it
is charged to earnings. Management continually monitors known and potential contingent matters and makes appropriate
provrsrons by charges to earnlngs when warranted by crrcumstance

lncomeTaxes = ',l‘, - T ‘;"_ A . ,,‘.'__'

The company follows the ||abllrty method of accounting for mcome taxes Under thls method tax assets are recognlzed when |t

and underlyrng tax values. Hates used to determrne. mcome tax asset and irabllrty amounts are enacted tax rates expected to
be used in future periods when the timing differences reverse. The period In which a timing difference reverses are impacted
by future income and capital expenditures. Rates are also affected by legislation changes. These components can impact the
charge for future income taxes.

Stock-Based Compensalion

The company uses the fair value method to account for stock options. The determination of the amounts for stock-based
compensation are based on estimates of stock volatility, interest rates and the term of the option. These estimates by thelr
nature are subject to measurement uncertainty.

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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NEW SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company has assessed new and revieed accounting pronguncements that have been issued but that are not yet effective
and has determined that the following may have a significant impact on the company.

Beginning with the yvear ending December 31, 2007 the company will be required to adopt, if applicable, the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Sections 1530, 3251, 3855 and 3865 on "Comprehensive Income”, “Equity”, “Financial
instruments — Recognition and Measurement”, and “Hedges" respectively, all of which were issued in January 2005, Under the
new standards additional financial statement disclosure, namely Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, has
been introduced that will identify certain gains and losses, including the foreign currency translation adjustments and other
amounts arising from changes in fair value, to be temporarily recorded outside the income statzament. In addition, all financial
instruments, including derivatives, are to be included in the company's Consolidated Balance Sheet and measured, in most
cases, at fair values. Requirements for hedge accounting have been further clarified. Although Connacher is in the process
of evaluating the impact of these standards, the company does not expect these standards to have a material impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Over the next five years the CICA will adopt its new strateqgic plan for the direction of accounting standards in Canada, which
was ratified in January 2006. As part of the plan, Canadian GAAP for public companies will converge with International

Financial REpGrting Stands (“IFRS") over the_next five years. The_company continues to monitor and assess the impact of the .

oonvergence of Canadian GAAP with tFRS

- MRC's financial results are reported in accordance with Canadian GAAP and are consolidated with: Connacher s other busrness

units. The preparation of MRC's financial results require certain estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates under different assumptions or conditiens. Connacher’s
management considers the following new MRC accounting policies to be the most critical to understanding the judgments
that are Involved and the uncertainties that could impact on the company’s results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows. : -

Inventor‘y*!aiuation«--' —— o ',""""""’:__‘""'"_T" P ':;:. eI .

PP

= Crude orl and refmed product Inventorres are stated at the Iower of cost or’ net reallzable value Slnce acqurnng the reflnmg —- -—_- S

! order to conform to rmpendrng Canadlan GAAP changes The effect of thls change was to decrease 1nventory by $2 1 mrllron

at December 31, 2006 {see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Net realizable value is determined using current
estimated selling prices. :

Deferred Maintenance Costs

MRC’s refinery units require regular major maintenance and repairs which are commanly referred to as “turnarounds”,
Catalysts used in certain refinery processes also require routine “change-outs”. The required frequency of the maintenance
varies by unit and by catalyst, but generally is every two to five years. Turnaround costs are capitalized and amortized over the
period to the next scheduled turnaround or change-out. In order to minimize downtime during turnarounds, contract labor as
well as maintenance personnel are utilized on a continuous 24 hour basis. Whenever possible, turnarounds are scheduled so

that some units continue to operate while others are down for maintenance. The costs of turnarounds are recorded as deferred.

charges and are amortized over the expected periods of benefit.

Employee Future Bengfits

As a consequence of the refinery acquisition and related employment of refinery personnel, the company's new US subsidiary,
MRC, adopted new employee future benefit plans with effect from March 31, 2006.

CONRACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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. RISK MANAGEMENT MRC .

A new non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covers only MRC's employees from March 31, 2006. MRC's policy is
to make regular contributions in accordance with the funding requirements of the United States Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974. Benefits are to be based on the employee’s years of service and compensation.

MRC also established new defined sontribution {US tax code “401(k)") plans that cover all of its employees from March 31,
2006. The company’s contributions are based on employees' compensation and partially match employee contributions.

Long-fived Refining Assets

Depreciation and amortization is calculated based on estimated useful lives and salvage values. When assets are placed into
service, estimates are made with respect to their useful lives that are believed to be reasonable. However, factors such as new
technologies, competition, regulation or environmental matters could cause changes to estimates, thus impacting the future
calculation of depreciation and amortization. Long-lived assets are also evaluated for potential impairment by identifying
whether indicators of impairment exist and, if so, assessing whether the long-lived assets are recoverable from estimated
future undiscounted cash flows. The actual amount of impairment loss, if any, to be recorded is equal to the amount by which
a long-lived asset's carrying value exceeds its fair value. Estimates of future discontinued cash flows and falr values of assets
require subjective assumptions with regard to future operating results and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Goodwll, -+ 7 A ‘;_":‘tf't_ S S

Goodwill arose on the acqusition of Luke in 2006

'Goodwzlt ‘which | represents “the excess of purchase prlce over. falr value of net assets acqmred is assessed for |mpa|rrnent

annually. Goodwill and all other assets and liabilities have been allocated to the company 's segments, referred to as reporting
units. To assess impairment, the fair value of ‘each reporting unit is determined ‘and compared o the book Value of the
reporting unit. [f the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the book value, then a second test Is perform'ed to determine
the amount of the impairment. The amount of the impairment is determined by deducting the fair value of the reporting unit's
assets and liabilities from the fair value of the reporting unit te determine the implied fair value of gocdwill and comparing that
amount to the book value of the reporting unit's goodwill. Any excess of the book value of goodwill over the |mpI|ed fair value
of goodwill is the lmpalrment amount. __ . L.l e e -

all market risk exposures when it is believed the exposure refating to suchrisk would not bie significant to future earnings,
financial position, capital resources or liquidity or that the cost of eliminating the exposure would outweigh the benefit. MRC's
profitability will depend largely on the spread between market prices for refined products sold and market prices for crude oil
purchased. A substantial or prolonged reduction in this spread could have a significant negative effect on earnings, financial
condition and cash flows.

Petroleum commodity futures contracts could be utilized to reduce exposure to price fluctuations associated with crude oil and
refined products, Such contracts could be used principally to help manage the price risk inherent in purchasing crude oil in
advance of the delivery date and as-a hedge for fixed-price sales contracts of refined products. Commodity price swaps and
collar options could also be utilized to help manage the exposure to price volatility relating to forecasted purchases of natural
gas. Contracts could also be utilized to provide for the purchase of crude oil and other feedstocks and for the sales of refined
products. Certain of these contracts may meet the definition of a hedge and may be subject to hedge accounting.

The supply and use of heavy crude oil from the company's Great Dwnde 0|I Sands Project, as a feedstock for the refinery, would
provide a physical hedge to this exposure, as planned.

MRC's operations are subject to narmal hazards of operatiens, including fire, explosion and weather-related perils. Various
insurance coverages, including business interruption insurance, are maintained in accordance with industry practices.

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006
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However, MRC is not fully insured against certain risks because such risks are not fully insurable, coverage is unavailable, or,
in management's judgment, premium costs are prohibitive in refation to the perceived risks.

Additionally, the company has recently issued parentat guarantees and Indemnifications on behalf of MRC. This is considered
to be in the normal course of business. The company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

BUSINESS RISKS

Connacher is exposed to certain risks and uncertainties inherent in the oil and gas business. Furthermore, being a smaller
independent company, it is exposed to financing and other risks which may impair its ability to realize on its assets o to
capitalize on opportunities which might become available to it. Additionally, through the company's investment in Petrolifera
which operates in foreign jurisdictions, it has become exposed to other risks including currency fluctuations, political risk, price
controls and varying forms of fiscal regimes or changes thereto which may impair Petrolifera’s abifity to conduct profitable
operations.

The risks arising in the ol! and gas industry include price fluctuations for both crude oil and natural gas over which the
company has limited control; risks arising from exploration and development activities; production risks associated with the
depletion of reservoirs and the ability to market production. Additional risks include environmental and safety concerns.

- W m prer . permm o b ey e D T -

v_.The company will. requrre a significant amount of natural gas in order_to generate steam for the SAGD process used at Great
Divide. The company is exposed to the risk of changes in the price of natural gas, which could increase operatrng costs of the
_ Great Divide. pro]ect This risk is mrtrgated to a certain_ extent By the produe’uon and sale of natural gas from the companys ‘

gas propertres at Marten Creek acqurred with the purchase of Luke: - o .

Addltronally, the company Is exposed to exchange rate ﬂuctuatlons since orl prrces and its ong term debt are denomrnated in

US doltars, while the majority of its operating and capital costs are denominated in Canadian dollars. On an economic basis,

the company's crude oil and bitumen reserves hedge the company’s exposure to forsign currency fluctuations of its L]S dollar .

denominated oil sands term loan.

<

Bitumen is generally less marketable than light or medium crude ofl, and pnces recelved for bitumen are genera[ly Iowenthan U
Z. those for crude.oil.. The company.ts therefore exposed to the prlce drﬁerentral between crude oil and bitumen; ﬂuctuatlons in

this differenttal coutd” have a matertal |mpact on the company 'S protltabtltty The purchase of the MontanaReﬂnery was meant_

_ tohelp mmgate the rrsk exposure sanms s o

The company relres on access to capltal markets for new equrty to supplement mternally qenerated cash flow and bank
borrowings to frnance its growth plans. Periodically, these markets may not be receptive to offerrngs of new equity from
treasury, whether by way of private placement or DUb|IC offerings. This may be further complicated by the limited market
liquidity for shares of smaller companies, restricting access to some institutiona investors. An increased emphasis on flow-
through share financings may accelerate the pace at which junior il and gas companies become cash-taxable, which could
reduce cash flow available for capital expenditures on growth projects. Periedic fluctuations in energy prices may also affect
lending policies of the company's banker, whether for existing loans or new borrowings. This in turn could limit growth
prospects over the short run or may even require the company to dedicate cash flow, dispose of properties or raise new equity
to reduce bank borrowings under circumstances of declining ensrgy prices or disappeinting drilling results.

The success of the company's capital programs as embodied in its productivity and reserve basecould also impact its
prospective liquidity and pace of future activities. Control of finding, development, operating and overhead costs per boe is an
important criterion in determining campany growth, success and access to new capitai sources.

- The company attempis to mitigate its business and operational risk exposures by maintaining comprehensive .insurance

coverage on its assets and operations, by employing or contracting competent technicians and professionals, by instituting and
maintaining operational health, safety and environmentat standards and procedures and by maintaining a prudent approach
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o DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROGEDURES™=== - = == -+ —-==- === = =

Disclosure controls and prqcedures have been designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the company

to exploration and development activities. The company also addresses and regularly reports on the impact of risks to its
shareholders, writing down the carrying values of assets that may not be recoverable.

Furthermore, the company generally reties on equity financing and a blas towards conservative financing of Its operations under
normal industry conditions to offset the inherent risks of domestic and international oil and gas exploration, development and
production activities. In the past the company has entered into forward sale, fixed price contracts to mitigate reduced product
price risk and foreign exchange risk during periods of price Improvement, primarily with a view to assuring the availability of
funds for capital programs and to enhance the creditworthiness of its assets with its ienders. While hedging activities may
have opportunity costs when realized prices exceed hedged pricing, such transactions are not meant to be speculative and are
considered within the broader framework of financial stability and flexibility. Management continuously reviews the need to
utilize such financing techniques.

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, GUARANTEES, CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The company's annual commitments under leases for office premises and operating costs, software license agreements and
other equipment, and long term debt are as follows:

[—— - e e F - - . e PR - .-

Contractual obligations ($000) o~ e == Q0075 = - 2008 2010' -- 2011-2012 -—=Subsequent 10 2012- - - -Total
~ Term debt and short-term loans $19.500 ‘ $2.360 $4,079 : 205,296 $231,235
* Asset retirement obllgatluns : S | R <) 75 - 7,050 7,322
" Operating leases ~ - CTTTTT TV T 68850 0 33l T 7,649 18,753
Employee future benefits’ h T a8’ - - - 488
~_Other long lerm obligations o ‘638 1,069 - ) - ) 1,707
Tutal $22 218 $9 81 5 $7.477 $"19 995 $259 505

The above tab!e excludes ongorng crude Oll and reflned product purchase commitments of the Mantana refinery which are in
the normal course of business and are contacted at market prices, where the products are for resale into the market.

Additionally, the company has various guarantees and indemnifications in pléce in the ordinary course of business, none of
_which are expected to_have a srgnrflcant Impact on the:company’s flnancral statements or operatlons R

+
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__-The company has not entered into- any-off-balance. sheet arrangements-- LTI e

\_.,._...._ ‘__..-..:. T S - e T aa - .

is accumulated, recorded, processed and reported to the company's management as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. The company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded, based on
thelr evaulation as of the end of the period covered by this MD&A, that the company's disclosure controls and procedures
as of the end of such period are effective to provide reasonable assurance that material information related to the company,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is communicated to them as appropriate to allow timely decisions regardmg
requrred dlSClOSUre
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INTERMAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the company Is responsible for designing adequate Internal controls over the company's financial reporting
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financta! reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes In accordance with Canadian GAAP.

It should be noted that while the company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer believe that the company's
disciosure controls and procedures provide a reasonable level of assurance that they are effective and that the internal controls
over financial reporting are adequately designed, they do not expect that the financial disclosure controls and procedures or
internal contro! over financial reporting will prevent all errors and fraud. A control system, ro matter how well conceived or
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.

FOURTH QUARTER

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the company drew down in full the US$180 million oil sands term loan in order to secure
financing for the costs of completing Pod One at the Great Divide project and to repay the bridge loan incurred to purchase the
Montana refinery. Spending during the fourth quarter related to Pod One amounted to approximately $65 million.

OUTLOOK o o e e e T

82-34954

The company's business plan anticipates substantial growth. Emphasis will continue to be on delineating and developing the

Great Divide Oil Sands Pro]ect in Alberta while contlnumg to develop the com Ipany 's recently-expanded conventional productlon
base and proﬂtably operatmg the Montana reflnery Addltlonal financing ay be required for the Great Divide Oil Sands Prolect
the company s conventional petroleum and naturat gas assets and for the Mantana refinery.

Additional mforrnatlon relatlng to Connacner, including Connacher’ s Annual In_ferr_nahon Form Is on SEDAR at www._sedar.corn:

e - . .. S
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QUARTERLY RESULTS

Fluctuations in resuits over the previous eight quarters are due principally to variations inail and gas prices and the acquisitiens
of Luke Energy and the Montana refinery in 2006, both of which increased revenues substantiaily. Additionally, operating
and general and administrative costs Increased due to higher staff levels necessitated by the company’s growth. Depletion,
depreciation and amortization increased as a resuit of higher production volumes and additions to capital assets.

2005 2006
Three Months Ended Mar31i  Jun30 Sept30® Dec 31 Mar31  Jun 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Financial Yighiights ($000 except per share amounts) = Unaudlted
Revenue net of royaltlas 1,488 2,107 3222 2,978 3635 61,239 103,110 76,700
Cash flow from operations before working capltal
changes ™ 25 877 1978 1,238 1,725 9,499 14,957 14,015
Basle, par sharo® - 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.05 0.08 0.08
Diluted, per sharg @ - 0.01 0.02 0.0 0.0 0.05 0.08 0.07
ot earnings (loss) 1,673 (230) (1,034) 582 (666}  (2,419) 6,IM 3,267
Baslc and diluted per share 0.02 {0.01) - . {0.01) 0.03 p.02
Capltal expenditures 6,047 5,649 2,870 2241 300836 34,280 41,449 74,960
Proceeds on disposal of PNG properties - - - - - - - 10,000
Bank debt - 250 - - 17,600 70,365 62,380 229,254
" Working capilal surplis (derlclency) TTTOTTTT U558 T 854 T B74407 7. 75427 1 C(11,081) {42,483} (39,942) ~ 118,626
Cash on hand’ : - © 8,286 2,629 .- 67,708 75511 - - 7,505 14,450 ~ 1423
Shareholders' equity S 41079 41090 113081 129,108 337584 340,639 378,730 385,398
gt S Upelﬁuﬂgﬂlﬁfiligills ST oI oo EE TSI T s 0wt L Tt ST oLt e - S e
Production / sales volumas - o - T - ' :
Natural gas - met/d 1,328 1416 497 86 2,600 15172 12,711 1,29
Crude oll - bb¥d 620 702 808 775 689 1,026 1,059 1,139
Equivalent - boa/d ¢ 850 938 891 789 1,122 3,554 377 - 3,021
Pricing ' ‘
Crude oll - &/bbl 3002 4123 53.40 41.54 4093 61.45 62.53 48.85
Natural gas - $/mcf 1.18 099 1.88 1.55 6.34 5.68 5.33 8.57
Selected Highlights - $/boe @
Welghied average sales price 2404 3235 49.48 4161 3983 41.88 42.16
Royalties - S eesTe - 482 -8.06- —- 1173 ~ -776 --- 802 1043 10.72
Operating costs .o --i-o=y oo Ll AT01 0742 =769 - 8900 L8240 T8 7.99
Oparating netback . -~ ~ oo oo 1221 -16 87_ 30.06—. -2495- -.2357. - 2282 — 23.45
o Sharg fnmrmnl[nn,.,_,_ s Z _" . __"‘ *d—"*— S “.,_-__::_.M' L T
‘Sharas outsfanding 4l end of perlod (000) 92753 93,013 134,236~ 139,940 ~ 191 ,257' 191,924 197,878 )
Weighted average shares outstanding for the period
Basic (000) 91,189 92,875 103851 136,071 154,152 191,672 193,587 T 193,884
Diluted {000} 94,197 95555 106,397 142,507 160574 198,831 200,572 204,028
Volume traded during quarter {000) 40,486 16,821 180,848 100,246 148,184 80,347 48,849 46,444
Common share price ($)
High 1.22 1,05 2.69 420 6.07 5.05 4.55 443
Low 0.49 0.68 0.76 1.09 347 3.10 3.09 311
Ciosa (end of perlod) 0.93 0.82 2.54 3.84 495 4.30 3.60 3.49

{1} Cash flow from operatlons before working capital changes and cash flow per share do not have standardized meanings prescribed by Canadlan genarally
- accepted accounting princlples (“GAAP"} and therafora may not be comparable to simifar measures used by other companles. Cash flow from operations
before working capital changas inctudes all cash flow {rom operating activitles and Is calculated before changes in non-cash working capital, Tha most
comparable meastre calculated In accordance with GAAP would ba nel earnings. Cash flow from operations before working capital changes is reconclled
with net earnings on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and In the accompanylng Managament Discusslon & Anatysls. Management uses thess
non-GAAP measurements for is own perdformance measures and to provide its shareholders and Investors with a measurement of the company's
efficlency and its abillty {6 fund a portion of its futurs growth expendiures.

{2 Al references lo barrels of ofl equivalent (boe) are calculated on the basis of 6 mef : 1 bbl. Bos may be misleading, particutarly if used fn lsolation. This conversian

is based on an energy equivalency conversian method primarily applicable at the bumer tip and dogs nol represant a valua equyalency al the wellhead.

{3) In the third quarter of 2005, the company discontinued consolidating the financial and oparational results of Petrolifera Petroleum Limited. Comparative
figures havae not baan restated.
(4} Operating netback IS a pan-GAAP measura used by management as a measure of operating efflcisncy and profitabillty. It Is calculated as petroleem and
natural gas revenua less royalties and operating costs.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

82-34954

($000) i 2006 2005
ASSETS '.
CURRENT » x
Cash and cash equivalents | $19,603 - $75,511
Restricted cash {Note 15(c)} : 122,788 ° -
Accounts receivahble i 30,956 1 1,605
Refinery inventories (Note 4) i 24,437 -
Due from Petrolifera (Note 5) 1 32 221
Prepald expenses ‘ 1525 | 407
199,341 77,744
Property and equipment (Note ). . . T 384,311, 45,243 7
Goodwill {Note 3) ; 103,676 . -

- Deferred charges (Note 7) - - - s e e D= - -4,005 - 256 .
Investment in Petrolifera (Note 5) _ . T ) 4 - L 21597 ¢ 10,496 ,
Future income tax asset {Note 8) ! . 1,075

: $712,930 _ $134,813

. } ‘ . I ‘r
LIABILITIES ' !
CURRENT i ‘ )
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities , $57,571 $2,184 S
Income taxes payable . 3,644 132 )
Current partion of bank debt (Note 9) : 19,500 ¢ -

- , ? Boris 2316 _ .‘

Asset retlrement obhgatlons (Nute 10)_ ’ ., ) 7,322 , 3,108 ;

_Deferred credits . ... . e e L - S G St e 28 — -
Employee future benefits {Note 11) ' O . 38 .-

Bank debt (Note 9) ] 209,754 . . -
Future income taxes (Note 8) T 29,353 -

! 327,532 : 5,705

[ '

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY | :
Share capital and contributed surplus (Note 12) i 376, 500 127,033
Cumulative translation adjustment 2 (130) .
Retained earnings ‘ 9,028 2,075
' ) ) 385,398 129,108
. $712,930 $134,813

Commitments, contingencies and guarantees (Note 16)
Approved by the Board
Signed, Signed,

“0.H. Bessell”, Director *(.M. Evans”, Director
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CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2006

(3000, except per share amounts) T 2006 ¢ 2005
{ . .
. i R
REVENUE o . "
Petroleum and natural gas revenue, net of royalties ! '$31,786 $9,095
Refining and marketing sales ! 211,874 -
Interest and other income to 1,024 | 700
- : 244,684 ° 9795
, . .
EXPENSES .
Petroleum and natural gas operating costs 8,270 | 2,445
Refining — crude ail purchases and operating costs i 182,668 . -
General and administrative .. SRS B 3,866 2,660
Stock-based compensation (Note.12) - ... w zol cewmecZanz de o TB16 1,192
Finance charges - . : _ 5,086 - 308
Foreign'exchange loss (gain) =~ ¢ e o 7w A e 4287 30)
Depletion, depreclatmn and accretion R M 32,049 . 5,797
H , 244,& ' 12,372
Loss before Income taxes and other items ~ -~ ;T '(2'(.5:}i - (2577).
Current income tax provision (Note 8) : ) 7.405 102
Future income tax provision (recovery) {Note 8) v (3,535) ° 768 °
' ' Lo T 3870 870
g e e e e e e A T - ‘. . o '
ario o {;,4;.-:- i o i e 'i (4 143) — (3'147_),,_,.
Eqmty anterest in Petrohfera ea'rnlr;gs (Ioss)' (Note'g)—— T S “r“'v T 11,07& (27")"'
: DIlUtIDn gain (Note 5)——H- R Rt — o s o .23... . .. 4465
) ) v .
NET EARNINGS. . . L o P 6,953 l 991
+ ‘ Al N . I
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ' 2,075 | 1,084
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR 9,028 $2,075
— — -
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 15(a)) ; ‘;
Basic and diluted . o e e : $0.04 $0.01

N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

L L

($000) - P T booe” 2005
Cash provided by {used in) the following activities: :
OPERATING . Lo ) :
Net earnings ! $6,953 | $991
[tems not involving cash: : .
Depletion, depreciation and accretion ; . 32,949 . 5,797
Stock-based compensation (Note 12) ! 8293 1,192
Financing charges : 2237 150
Employee future benefits j 381 -
Future income tax provision (recovery) i {3,535) 768
Foreign exchange loss {gain) ! 4,287 (30)
Dilition gain. - - e e s s m e et S g (23) - - {4,485}
Lease Inducement amortization=-s =~ 2~ © 7 - S SEEe SR LTI T " (268) - (72} o
Equity interest in Petrolifera (earnings) loss ) (11,078) 27
Cash flow from operations before working capital changes ="~ - =>=" ="~ 40196 - ° ~438 B
Changes in noh-cash working capital (Note 15(6) R SR ¥ 1A ) B ] (485} . o
: 30,925 . 3873 :
FINANCING - - - a o .
Issue of common shares, net of share |ssue costs - 1 -123,188 © - 86,512 o
Increase in bank debt - o ” h T 280,078 - s
Repayment of bank debt : (67,707) : - .
Issue of shares by Petralifera, net of share issue costs ' P - 6,228 '
Deferred financinq costs d - (258)
I ' ; - i 345, 559 : 92,482
INVESTING ' ' E o F ) - ' i
vy s sa - .. Acquisition and.development of.oil.and gas propertles PR £\ e S ,.-m.‘(ﬁn 033) wiem e 16807 - - id s
-« =- -='—  Proceeds ondisposal of oll and gas properties— -~ - -~ = - SEmeedEs o, 0w - - - - = e
) Increase in restricted cash (Note 15(c)) . : {122,788) . - ‘ -
T o Acquisition of Luke Energy Ltd: (Note 3}~ —=--- .-- - -~ oo e e @692 - -- - -
" Acquisition of refining assets (Note 3) ) 0o (61,273) | -
. Acquisition of other assets .o . . - (':185) 1 .-
Purchase of Petrolifera shares (Note 5) ; {6,000)
Collection of Petrolifera note {Note 5) ; - 750
Change in non-cash working capital (Note 15(b)} S 14.122 ? 396
{ (432,849) - (21,661)
o .
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 (96,365) : 74,694
- Impact on cash resulting from de-consolidation of Petrolifera {(Note 5) —~-— - " * - - (3,097 -
Impact of foreign exchange on foreign currency denominated cash balances 1 457 -
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR . 75511 i 3914
1 .
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ' $19,603 $75.511

Supplementary information — Note 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited and its subsidiaries {collectively
“Connacher” or the “company”) and are presented in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Operating
in Canada, and in the U.S. through its subsidiary Montana Refining Company, Inc. ("MRC"), the company is in the business of exploring,
developing, producing, refining and marketing conventional petroleum and natural gas and has recently commenced exploration
and development of bitumen in the oil sands of northern Alberta. Prior to the de-consolidation of Petrolifera in 2005 {Note 5) it also
conducted a conventional petroleum and natural gas business in Argentina.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalants_ .

" Cashi and cash equivalents inclide stiort-terim débosits With initial Maturities of three mofiths of less, when purctiased.

: InventoryVaIuatlon ) e e

' Crude oll and refi ned product mventones are stated at the Iower of oosl or nel rea!rzable va]ue Subsequent to the acquisition of the reﬁmng

assets the company has adopted the average cost method: net realizable value is determined using current estimated selling prices.

Deferred charges

Costs incurred in respect of transaclions not completed have been temporarily capitalized and will be recognized on completlon of
the transactions.

Petroleum and natural gas operations

The ¢ company follgws™ the ful! cost melhod CEES o Accounting wiereby all costs Telating to the’ exploratlon for and develdpment’of crude ail' -

and natural gas reserves are capllallzed on a country by couniry cosf centre basis.

Capitalized costs of petrofeum and natural gas pfoperties and related equipment within a cost centre are depleted and depreciated -

using the unit-of-production method based on estimated proved crude oil and natural gas reserves before royalties as determined by
independent consulting engineers. For the purpose of this calculation, production and reserves of natural gas are converted 1o equivalent
units of crude oil based on relative energy content (6:1).

The company applies a “ceiling test” to the net book value of petroleum and natural gas properties to ensure that such carrying value
does not exceed the estimated fair value of the properties. The carrying value Is assessed to be recoverable when the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows expected from the production of proved reserves and the lower of cost less impairment of unproved properties
exceeds the carrying value. If the carrying value is assessed to not be recoverable, the calculation compares the carrying value to the
sum of the discounted cash flows expected from the production of proved.and probable reserves and the lower of cost less impairment
of unproved properties. Should the carrying value exceed this sum, an impairment loss is recognized. The cash flows are estimated using
projected future product prices and costs and are discounted using the credit adjusted risk-free [nterest rate,

Costs of acquiring and evalualing unproved properties are exciuded from costs subject to depletion and depreciation until it is determined
whether o nol proved reserves are attributable to the properties or impairment occurs. Costs associated with majar development projects
are not depleted until commencement of commercial production. All capitalized costs are reviewed quarterly and any impairment is
transferred to the costs being depleted or, if the properties are located in a cost centre where there Is no reserve base, the impairment is
charged directiy to income,

To date, all costs, including financing costs, incurred in relation to the oif sands project in Northern Alberta have been capitalized as the
project is considered to be in the pre-production stage. Judgment is required in order to determine when comrmercial operations have

CONNACHER OIL AND GAS LIMITED AR 2606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LB I3

commenced. Once commercial operations have been achieved, revenue will be recognized, operating costs will be expensed to eamings
and the capitalized costs of the project will be added to the full cost pool and depleted using the unit-of-production method.

Gains or losses on sales of proparties are recognized only when crediting the proceeds to the cost poo! would result in a change of 20
percent or more in the depletion and depreciation rate.

Furniture, equipment and teaseholds

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost and are being depreciated on a dedlining balance basis at rates of 20 percent to 30
percent per year, Leaseholds are amortized over the lease term.

Reﬂnmg Assets

N Deprecratron and amortuatron is calculated based on estrmated useful Iwes and salvage values. When assets are placed into servlce o o

estimates are made wrth respect 1o their useful Tives that are believed to be reasonable. However, factors such as compet:tlon

regulation or environmental matters could.cause changes to estimates, thus impacting the future calculation of depreciation and - ;
amortization. Long-lived refining assets are also evaluated for potential impairment by identitying whether indlcators of impairment

exist and, if so, assessing whether the long-lived assets are recovérable from estimated future undiscounted cash flows. The actual

amourd of impairment loss, if any, to be recorded is equal to the amount by which a long-lived asset's camying value exceeds its

fair value. Estimates of future discontinued cash flows and fair values of assets require sub]ectlve ascumptions with regard to future -

operating results and actual results could differ from those estimates. -

Deferred Maintenance Costs. ' : . o AU

The refining assets require regular major maintenance and repairs which are commonly referred to as “tumarounds". Catalysts used
in certain refinery processes aiso require routine “change-outs”. The required frequency of the maintenance varies by asset type and"
by catalyst, but generally is every two 1o five years, The costs of turnareunds are recorded as deferred charges and are amomzed
over the period fo the néxt scheduled fuinaround or change-ouf.” T e T

- e - - - [ - . -

The investment in Petrolifera Petroleum Limited (“Petrohfera") is accounted for on an eqmty basis, whereby the carryrng value reflects
the company's investment, at the lower of cost and fair value, and the company's equity interest share of its accumulated income and:
losses. Any permanent decline in value would be charged to earnmgs

Income taxes

The company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, income tax liabilities and assets are
recognized for the estimated tax consequences aftributed to differences between the amounts reported in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases, using substantively enacted income tax rates, The effect of a change in income tax rates on future

. income tax assets and kabilities is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs. Future tax assets recognized are

assessed by management at each balance sheet date for impairment. An impairment is recognized when management assesses that

. it's not more likely than not that the asset will be recovered.

Goodwilt

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired, Is assessed for impairment annually.
Goodwill and all other assets and liabilities have been altocated to the company's segments, referred to as reporting units. To assess
impairment, the fair value of each reporting unit is determined and compared to the book value of the reporting unit. If the falr value
of the reporling unit is less than the book value, then a second test is performed to determine the amount of the impairment, The
amount of the impairment is determined by deducting the fair value of the reporting unit's assets and liabilities from the fair value of
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the reporting unit to determine the implied fair value of goodwill and comparing that amount to the book value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill. Any excess of the book value of goodwill over the implied fair value of goodwill is the impairment amount.

Asset retirement obligations

The company recognizes an asset retirement obligation liability for abandoning ail and natural gas wells, related facililies, compressors
and gas plants, removal of equipment from leased acreage and returning such fand to its original condition by estimating and recording
the fair value of each asset retirement obligation arising in the period a well or related asset Is drilled, constructed or acquired. This fair
value is estimated using the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to abandon the asset at the company's credit adjusted
risk-free interest rate and includes estimates for inflation. The obligation is reviewed regularly by management based upon current
regulations, costs, technologies and industry standards. The discounted obligation is initially capitalized as part of the carrying amount
of the related oil and natural gas property and a corresponding liability is recognized. The liability is accreted against income until it is
seftled or the property is sold and is, included as a component of depletion and depreciation expense. The amount of the capitalized
retirement obligation is depleted and depreciated on the same basis as the other capitalized oil and natural gas property costs. Actual
restoratlon expendatures are charged to the aocumulaled obllgatlon as mcurred and costs for propemes dlsposed are removed -

A .- .. - - -

= . LTI P . .,—'-_A\ [ T PR S MR

Employee futdre beneft metmz e

The costs of the deﬂned benefit pension pIan and other retirement beneﬁts are actuana!ly determlned using the prolected benefit
method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation, retirement
ages of employees and expected health care costs. For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets
are valued at a market-related value. The cost of the company’s portion of the defined contribution plan is expensed as incurred.

Flow-through shares

The resource expenditure_ deductlons for Income tax purposes related o exploratery and development activities funded by flow-
. - -through-share arrangements-are renounced-to investors-in accordance.with tax legisiation. Accordingly, share: capital is reduced and:
- -thé fituré income taX |iabi_lity'i5'lncréa‘s'éd'by the tax-benefits relatedto the expenditures at the time they are renounced. i

Foreign currency {ranslahon

The company has assessed the operations of MRC to be self-sustaining. Assets and I|abllitaes of self-sustaining foreign operatlons
are translated into Canadian doltars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are
translated at the average monthly rates of exchange during the periods. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations are included in currency translation adjustment In shareholders’ equity.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, amounts due from/to Petrolifera, bank

debt and accounts payable. All carrying values of financial instruments approximate talr value unless otherwise noted. The fair value

of interest rate swaps and all payments received or made under interest rate Swaps aré récorded as part of financing costs.

Joint venture operations

A part of the company's activities are conducted with others, and these consolidated financial statements reflect only the company's
proportionate interest in such activities.

PO [P - - - = - - - s e = . e e . . e ~

Revenue r-ec:}gnition
Petroleum and natural gas sales and refined product sales are recognized as revenue at the time the respective commodities are
delivered to purchasers.
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Stock-based compensation

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode!. The
amount is expensed or capitalized and credited to contributed surplus over the vesling period. Upon exercise of the options, the
exercise proceeds together with amounts credited to contributed surplus, are credited to share capltal,

Segrnent reporting
Management has determined that the company operates in the following segments:

Canada Ol and Gas includes the expforation, development, production and sales in western Canada of conventional and
unconventlonal hydrocarbon reserves.

— . Canada . Admmtstratwe includes-assets not related directly to any. of the. companys other business. segments, bemg primarily h the . - .-

o . Segment accountlng policig: olici s are the same as those descnbed in this summarv of stqnlf cant accountrng pohmes Transfers of assets

s Tl N I TL R

company's v's investment in Petrolifera. Income and expense in this segment are comprised mainly of equity in the eamlngs

-~ of Petrolifera, financing charges stock-based compensatlon and general and admrntstratwe expenses. v oo i

USA - Heﬁnmg tnctudes the' reflmng and marketrng ‘of refinéd petroleum products frém the cornpanys reﬁnery in Great Falls, Montana. - " S

Argentina Oil and Gas mcludes the exploration, development, productron and sales of conventional crude oil and natural gas sn ' 4
Argentina, through the company's investment in Petrolifera during the time its results were consolidated. .

PR

The above have been def ned as the operating segments of the company because they (a) produce products which are sufficiently d|ﬂerent|ated
from each other so as to be separately identifiable; {b) are those whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company's chief operating ~
decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to each segment and assess its pertorrnance and (c) are those tor whlch
discrete financial mformatlon is avarlable , . S,

. between. segments aré recorded. at booK AMOUNTS: - ~ + et wr. . g al v B L TENPT --';::. .?‘,-,_.—

Measurement uncertamty

The tlmely preparatron of the consolidated trnancsal statements in conformlty wrth Canadian generally accepted accountmg
principtes requires that management make estimates and assumptions and use judgment regarding the reported amounts of assets -
and liabilities at the date of the consclidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as future confirming events occur. Income taxes are subject to re-
assessment by tax authorities, Estimates of the stage of complelion of capital projects at the financial statement date affect the
calculation of additions to property, plant and equipment and the related accrued liability. '

Amounts recorded tor [ depreciation, depletron and acoretmn asset retirement costs and obligations amounts used for ceiling test and

reserves and future costs required to develop those reserves. By their nature, these estimates of reserves, including the estimates of
future prices and costs, and the related future cash flows are subject to measurement uncertainty,

Credit risk

The majority of the accounts receivable is in respect of refining operations. The company generally extends unsecured.credit to Co
customers and therefore, the collection of accounts receivable may be affected by changes in economics or other conditions.

Management believes this risk is mitigated by the size and reputation of the companies to which credit has been extended. The

company has nol historically experlenced any material credit less In the collection of accounts raceivable.
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Commodity and financial risk management

The company periodically enters into fixed price crude oil sales contracts for the physical delivery of its crude oil to reduce the
exposure to commodity price fluctuations; and occasionally these contracts are denominated in Canadian doliars to mitigate foreign
exchange risks. At December 31, 2008 there were no such contracts in place. Additionally, the company is exposed to interest rate
risk as a portion of the company's bank debt is subject to floating interest rates.

Per share amounts

Basic per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year. The company

follows the treasury stock method to calculate diluted per share amounts. The treasury stock method assumes that any proceeds . '
from the exercise of in-the-money stock options and other dilutive instruments plus the amount of stock-based compensatlon not yet '
recognized would be used to purchase comman shares at th the average market pnce during the period. - - - - - -

el DL PR e P VU SR P i gy el

3 BUSINESSACQUISI_TIONS ‘ v

- ST L Lt LT T N R TR e ARS T e TR e T WASTRA L, TR c e TR 0 el e e e 2T e e R

Durmg2006 COnnachercompIetedthefo[lowmgtransactions Tl TR T e e T e T

(a) Acquisition of Luke Energy bd. _ .
The company.completed the acquisition of aII 01 the oulsland ing shares of Luke Energy Ltd. (“Luke") on March 16, 2006. The resufts of operahons .

of Luke have been induded in the financial statements since that date. Netassetsaoqmredand consideration paid were as follws: -~~~ ’
{$000) )
Net assets acquired: ‘ ) )
. Petroleum and natural gasassets .. . . . wii - ot s . o ... .. $153755. -::.
ol i e o OO L e S B L _;._ 3 weeie . 103876
S - - Asselretirement obligations (Note10)- S5 et - - e (2309)4 .
) Working capital deficit ' ) {19,308)
Fiture incoms tax liability ~* .~ CTT e T - (31,356)
Net assets acquired : : = $204,658

Consideration paid:

Cash $92,692
Common shares {Note 13) 111,966
) $204,658

Included in cash consideration pald are transaction costs of $1.2 million. The value of the common share consideration pald was
determined by reference to the market value of the company’s shares at the time of announcing the acquisition. -

Effective January 1, 2007, Luke was amalgamated with Connacher.

- e e e e e w— e [ G U . e 4 — it - e e me - - . cn- - -
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(b Acquisition of refi nmg assets

On March 31, 2006 the company acquired all of the assets of a refinery in Great Falls, Montana. The refinery's results of operatmns
have been included in the consolidated financial statements from that date. Net assets acquired and consideration paid were as

{ollows:
($000)
Net assets acquired:
Refining assets ) $46,337
Inventory 19,996
Net assets acquired ' $66,333 .

n T o b e e = - —— e - S mm e e —r——————— et

Consideration paid-

e e s e e = e e s — -

o Cash oo s leeaewe s sees e e o s o = 61278 o
e thfhonshares(NotemL A A O T L © 5060 .-,
- ‘ $66,333

Included in cash consideration pasd are transaction costs of $1 2 million. The va|ue of the common share consideration pald was E

determined by reference to the market value of the company's shares at the t:me of announcing the zcquisition,

The purchase agreement commits the vendor to resolve any environmental llabllmes arising over the next f ive years for en\nronmental‘ -

matters existing at the purchase date.

As a means to facilitate the expeditious trans:tlon of the ongoing refinery busmess MRC assumed all of the ongoing purchase and
sales contracts with suppliers and- customers of the refinery: These contracts are all short-term in nature and necessitated some

P AU

g e e e guarantees from- Connacher«all consmered to:be-in-the*normal course of DUSINESS~ =omm  =rsr— oo s s e i e )

- - —rn e 2o - e -~

N T LT L L A L R T T . T T LS .

4 REFINERYINVENTORIES : “ —-~ e e

Inventories at December 31 consist of ,ihe"follawing:

($000) o 2006 © 2005 -
Crude oil ~ $3,520 ‘ $-
Other raw materials and unfinished products ' 1,292 -
Refined products @ ' 17,440 -
Process chemicals @ 909 -
Repairs and maintenance supplies and other 1,276 -
$24,437 $-

(1} Other raw materlals and unflnished products include feedstocks and blendstocks, other than crude ofl, The inventory carrylng value Includes the costs of
the raw materials and transportatlon.

(2) Refined products include gasoline, |at tuels, diesels, asphalls, liqutd petrolaum gases and residual fue!s. The [nventory carrying value Includes the cost of
raw materlals lnclucllng transportation and diract pmducllon costs.

P U Y R Co e e —— -

3 Process chemicals Include catalysts, adullt;'es and other chemicals. The inventory carrylng value includas lhf; cost olrthe purchased chemicals and re!aled
freight,

Subsequent to the acquisition of the refinery, management changed the method of inventory cost determination from the last in, first
out {LIFO) method to the average cost method, Had the LIFO method been used throughout 2008, inventory at December 31, 2006
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would have been increased by $2.5 million, refinery cost of sales would have been decreased by $2.4 million and net income would
have been increased by $1.5 million,

5. INVESTMENT IN PETROLIFERA PETROLEUM LIMITED (* PETHOLIFERA’)

In the third quarter of 2005 the company discontinued consofidating the financial resuits of Petrolifera, as the company was no longer
considered to control Petrolifera due to the election of independent directors and the reduction in its ownership percentage below
50%. The invesiment in Petrolifera has since been accounted for following the equity basis of accounting.

The impact of not consolidating Petrolifera had the effect of reducing the company’s nel assets by $4.1 million as follows:

($000)
Cash T e b el T . “r - L - - B - R $(3IOgT)'
T TOtRer cumentassels ... A ¢ 1) T
Ela U —;.Eut_u_riiﬂ.qomg_!.ax.gs_sﬁ—_, e = A e R . kN c. - (985) - e mi—_ :
"= " . Property and équipment” =<7 -7 ct 7w T T y RS LA AL
' Teurentfiabllies T T T T T TTT o TTTTT T e T I -1
Asset retirement obligations - -~ - - - o . _ M2
Non-controlling interests o o oo i ‘ . . 3,564 '
Changes in net assets $(4,126)
Connacher's investment in Petrolifera af the time of de-consolidation o %4128
Increases (decreases) in investment: ' .
: - Equity interest in Petrolifera's loss from the time of deconsolidating to December 31, 2005. o I 7 4 N
o pmemme o -—«»Collecilon of. Prormssory Note.and reciassification-of amounts.due from. Petrollferag‘;-_ﬁ STt Gl e i et o(1,047) *;x-;—--—_ﬂ; 4
"'L:f o P“Whas*{9f,3rl%'§$'_'lﬁe"°'if?[a -'_:f T . ,7: . SR '.*" ﬁﬁ 000°, ":v“.%f“_ —:
Dilution gain on shares issued by Petrolifera to unrelated parties after de de consolldatlon - N ' 1 444 v
Investment in Petrofifera, December 31, 2005 . . 10,498
Equity in Petrolifera’s 2006 earnings ' 11,078
Dilution gain resulting from issuance of Petrolifera shares in 2006 23
Investment in Petrolifera, December 31, 2006 $21,597

Dilution gains have been recognized whenever changes have occurred in the company's equity interest in Petrolifera, most notably
relative to Petrolifera’s $7 million private placement financing completed in March 2005 when Connacher’s equity interest holding
was reduced from 61 percent 1o 40 percent, resulting in a diution gain of $3 million. Although Connacher participated in Petrolifera’s
$21.3 million initial public offering in November 2005 by Investing $6 million, Connacher 5 equity |nvestmen1 interest was reduced to
35 percent and  further dilution gain of $1.5 miilion was then recognized. '

In consideration for the assistance provided to Petrolifera in securing two Peruvian licenses far exploratery lands and for the provision
of financial quarantees respecting Petrolifera’s annual work commitments in the two licensed blocks in 2005, Connacher was granted
an oplion 1o acquire 200,000 common shares at $0.50 per share and was granted a 10 percent carried working interest (“CWI")
through the drilling of the first well on each block. Petrolifera has the right of first purchase of this CW} should Connacher efect to sell
- it at some future date: The CWI is convertible at the holder's election into-a-two percent gross overriding royalty on each license after - - -~ ~ - .-—--
the drilling of the first well on each block,

Under the terms of a Management Services Agreement with Petrolifera which expires in May 2007, Connacher provides all
management, operational, accounting and general and administrative services necessary or appropriate to manage and operate
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Petrolifera. The fee for this service $15,000 per month, At December 31, 2006, Connacher was owed $32 000 for these services, and
for other amounts patd on Petrolifera’s behalf (2005 - $221,000),

0. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated

Depletion,
Depreciation and Net
{$000) Cost Amurtization Book Value
2006
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equnpment - Lo S3TNAT2 o - $43816 - - $333,356 - -
- T “Refining asséts ~ -~ - - - - T T T T T '“""“51 959" T 77 2319 77 749640 T
. Furniture, equipment and leaseholds : ] 2,625 1,310 1,315 o
- .- St e e e e e b B e o T e 2 T $431 756~— oz - $47.445~ - - -$384,3U1 Ce- ore
E T o et 2005 T e a e e AT S e ST e T e 2R - . [ R - - - N o DR = _?
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment . - $60,281-  ~°  $15680 - . . $44611 S
Furniture, equipment and leaseholds . . . . 1,058 . 47 SRR R
' ' $61,349 - $16,107 . . $45,242

In 20086, the company capltallzed $4.5 muhon (2005 $615,000) of general and administrative expenses, including stock-based- :
compensation of $3.5 million (2005 - $410,000), related to conventional petroleum and natural gas activities and oil sands actiwtles

. .~ and $7.9 million (2005 $ml)ofmteresi and fnancmg costs related to majordevelopment projects. . e e .
:}:—.ZT; TSI Depl Depletlon deprec[at[on and accretfon expense lncludes a charge of $348 000 (2005“‘$165 000) to avcrete the: companys ‘estimated: ./~ - _ 2 :gﬁ
LT asset retirement obligations.(Note.10) o~ — — . e e el L

The ceiling test as at December 31, 2006 excludes $16.2 million (2005 - $2.5 million} of undeveloped land and $156.7 million (2005
— $11.2 million) of major development projects, principally related to oil sands assets in the pre-production stage, which have been .
separately evaluated by management for impaimment. Based on the ceiling test and other assessments, no impairment has been
recorded at December 31, 2006,

Connacher’s ol and natural gas reserves were evaluated by qualified independent evaluators as at December 31, 2006 in a reporl
dated March 9, 2007. The evaluation was conducted in accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Instrument
51-101, using the following base price assumptions adjusted for the company's product quality and transportation differentials:

Bitumen Wellhead Current

(SCON/b) WTI @ Cushing ($US/bbl) Alberta Spot ($CDN/mef)
2007 31.50 62.00 1.25
2008 32.75 60.00 7.50
2008 . - 3350 - - 58.00 . 7.50 .
TTTTTT aqg T T ey T T T T e T T T T sy T T o
2011 34.50 57.00 7.50
+ approximately 2% thereafter + approximately 2% after 2012 + approximalely 2% thereafier
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7. DEFERRED CHARGES

The balance of $4 million as at December 31, 2006 represenis deferred maintenance costs. Deferred charges of $256,000
at December 31, 2005 relate to costs incurred in respect of transactions incomplete at that date and which were subsequently
capitalized to property, plant and equipment.

8. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision of $3.9 million in 2006 includes a current tax provision of $7.4 million, principally related to US
refinery operations and a future income tax recovery of $3.5 million reflecting the benefit of increased tax pools durmg
- theyear., - - R = e R . L C -

. — = — - o e ke —— e —— - — A — - - - - - .. - DR S

The following table reconciles i mcome taxes cafculated at the Canadian statutory rate with recorded mcome taxes

i - YearsEnded December 31.(8000) " - e s LT LR T T aggpg - 9008: - - ton
"7 Earnings before income taxes " * T i TR e $101323" Toeveer T T
Canadian statutory rate o T " 35.4% 30.0% .
Expected income taxes (recovery) _ 3,831 726
Non-deductible Canadian crown payments 1,729 . 555
Canadian resource allowance ' (945) (371)
L Impact of reducllonln Canadtan tax ratgs and o}her o o (3 955) ) ' 245 -
;_'_' Foreign faves (fecovery) "~ T TT oA Ry T
APl XES e e e T ST e e T gy T ﬂﬁg M= T RS
-~<- - . Non taxable portion of capital gains ™ ===~ -~ - ... —=momw - T62- - -
Equity income and dilution gain i (1,962) (852)
Non deductible stock-based compensation - 2,935 465
Provision for taxes - T $3,870 . © $870

The company had the following future tax assets {liabilities) relating to temporary differences:

As at December 31 {$000) 2006 2005
Book value in excess of tax basis of property, plant and equipment $(37,628) $(2,370)
Non-capital losses carried forward ) _ 1,754 1,075
Foreign exchange gainondebt - = . . R SV Bg2 . s
Parinership deferral : (5,930} -
Investment in Petrofifera (1,980} -
Deferred maintenance costs {1,547) -
Share issue costs 6,463 2,370
Asset retirernent obllgatlon_. U . —_— 2,158. , -
- - Othg T T . e e = R T PRI - —-
Net future income tax asset {liability) $(29,353) $1,075

At December 31, 2006 the company had approximately $25.8 million of non-capital losses which expire at various periods to 2026,
$253.5 million of deductible rescurce pools and $20.7 million of deductible financing costs.
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A L el
Lo it Lo

g BANK DEBT

The company had the following loans outstandmg, as at December 31:

{$000) 2006 2005

Conventional line of credit $19,500 $-

Refinery line of credit _ - -

0il sands term loan . : 209,754 -

Total _ ’ : 229,254 -

Less current portion . . . ‘ - : . 19,500 . : - .
e _. ., longtermportion = - e e e - - . $209,754 DU

* At December 31, 2006 the company had available a $55 million Extendible Revolving Loan Facility (the “Conventlonal line of credit”). ~

Borrowings are available in the form of prime loans, bankers’ acceptances, US dollar base rate loans, LIBOR loans and letters of o

— - o -— — credil.- As at-December 31,.2006, $19.5-million in bankers!.acceptances. were outstandmg af a rate of-5.62 percent and.$168;.- .L.-;_;_,_..?

ST T thousand in 16HERS of credit were issted. The facility's borrawing base s STedeterfiiiied semi-annually based on fhe lending valie ~ " " =

_...of the company’s conventional crude oil and natural gas reserves, as determined by the company’s lenders in accordance with_
customary practice The tacr[rty matures on Apn| 15 2007 and Is extendible upon request by the company and at the !enders
option for 364 days. The Conventional line of credit is ‘secured by a $50 miilion fixed and floating charge debenture and 2 a general”.
assignment of book debts over the company's oonventronal crude oil and natural gas reserves and assets, and Is non-recourse to the :

company’s Great Divide oil sands, its refining assets and its mvestment in Petrolifera,

{

At December 31 2006 the compa.ny also had avarlable a US$15 million revolvrng line of credrt {the “Reﬁnery lrne of ‘credit”) to fund

dollar base rate Ioans US Eurodoltar rate Ioans and Ietters of credlt As at December 31 2006 o amounts were drawn on thrs facrltty

P ‘L”‘-‘_'_T‘""':other thian US$1:7- “Fhillion of etters-of c‘r?drt“ThIS“facrllty matirr‘e‘s‘October.ZU*ZDﬁ and‘is s‘ecured by "debentiire” and mortgage o= TEE

[y

S agreemenls covering all of the assets of the refinery and all of the company’s interest in its Great Divicie oil sands assets butis non- - - - . s
recourse to the company’s conventional petroleum and natural gas assets and investment in Petrolifera.

in October 2008, the company secured a US$180 million, seven-year term loan (the "0il sands term loan”). The full amount of the
loan was drawn to fund US$51 million of the acquisition cost of the Montana refinery, to fund a US $14 million debt-service reserve
account and to fund all of the remaining budgeted costs to complete the development of Pod Qne, the company's first oil sands
project at Great Divide in northern Alberta, The loan is a floating rate facility, bearing interest either al a US dollar base rate plus

_a margin or a US Eurodollar rate plus & margin. The loan's Eurodollar interest rate as at December 31, 2006 was 8.61 percent. In
October 2006 the company entered into an Interest rate swap with a financial institution whereby the floating rate on US$20 million
of the loan was fixed at an all-in rate of 8.516 percent over the term of the loan. All interest on this loan is being capitalized until Pod
One becomes operational. One percent of the principal Is required fo be repaid annuatly, commencing in the fourth quarter of 2008.
The il sands term loan is secured by debenture and morlgage agreements covering all of the asssts of the refinery and afl of the
company’s interest in its Great Divide oil sands assets, but is nan-recourse to the company’s conventional petroleurn and natural gas
assets and to its investment in Petrolifera.

As indicated above, at December 31, 2006, the company had in place an interest rate swap o convert the effective rate on one-half
of the oil sands term loan to an all-in fixed interest rate of 8.516 percent. The fair value of this interest rate swap at December 31,
e B 2006wasalrabllrlyof$14m|llion e e e e IR - e =

- . - . 2 - - .km-___._q..¢ - JLP - . - - a e
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S

Principal repayments under the aforementioned loans are due as follows: ($000)

2008 524
2009 2,008
2010 2,008
20Mm ' : 2,098
Thereafter ' 202,936

$229,254

© 10, - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS -~ =1 = == =~ === = o o

ot o g A s e e TR I T T e T = S M= AT iy Y P BT T

The fouowmg table reconcnes the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the obligation associated -wnh the company 's
i rellrement of its conventional petroleum and- natural gas prnpemes and facllmes and its ol sands properlles and famlltles

= Year “ended December 31 ($000) TR S RT O IRTERER h T AR e m e me e 2006 T 2005
- .. Asset retirement obllgations begmmng ofyear _'. e e 33,109 .l $2805. . T
" Liabilities incurred R ‘ - 2,384 T e Y
Liabilities acquired {Note 3(a)) 2,108 -
Liabilities settled with Petrolifera deconsolidation -

Liabilities disposed (864)
> 71 Change [n estimated future cash’ ﬂ0w5“' T et oo+ e e QG e rwe
-_r-*-:iff_ﬁ—_—_ﬁ:*, =Aceretion- expense-:%—“-ﬁ,%w.“‘“ : 5 . ~348:

T T AsSel retirement obligations, end of year . . .. = oo T T TIT87,322

At December 31, 2006 the estimated total undiscounted amount required to setile the asset retirement obligations was $17.4 million
(2005 - $5.4 million). These obligations are expected to be settled over the useful lives of the underiying assets, which currently
extend up to 20 years into the future. This amount has been discounted using a credit-adjusted risk-free |nterest rate of six percent
and an inflation rate of 2.0 percent.

The company has nat recorded an asset retirement obligation for the Montana refinery as it is currently the company’s intent to
maintain and upgrade the refinery so that it will be operational for the foreseeable future. Consequently, it is not possible at the
present time to estimate a date or range of dates for settlement of any asset retirement obligation related to the refinery.

1. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

" During 2006, the company established the following retirement/savings plans for its employees: a defined benefit pension plan -
and a defined contribution savings plan for its new US-based employees and a defined contribution savings plan for its Canadian
empioyees.

(ai The defired benefit pension plan

- =~ Ag a consequénCe-of. i réfinery acquisition and related employment.of. fefinery pérsonnél, the company’s new US subsidiary, - .- ..- -
Montana Refining Company, Inc. (“MRC"), adopted a new non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan (the “Plan”) covering
MRC's employees on March 31, 2008. MRC's policy s to make regular contributions in accordance with the funding requirements of

——— - . — et - e m o am s = e s e d - - — e~ -- R
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B

the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as determined by regular actuarial valuations. The company's '
pension obligation is based on the employees’ years of service and compensation, effective from, and after, March 31, 2006.

MRC is responsible for administering the plan. MRC has refained the services of an independent and professional investment
manager, as fund manager, for the related investment portfolio. Among the factors considered in developing the investment policy
are the Plan's primary investment goal, rate of return objective, investment risk, investment time horizan, rote of asset classes and
asset allocation,

Details of this Plan and the December 31, 2006 actuarial valuation are as follows:

($000)
i Pension benefits . o
veeo e .. Components of net benefits.cost =~ o inn e e e e e
Current service cost . | . ' $365
. Interesteost -~ oo v ems ot o s ST T - R |
I S '._”',‘:'_T"_‘_"“Net benefit cost-"= B e I T T R b Tl TR, $381 Epiv s SR

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at acquisition of refinery . ST e R
Current service cost ' Lo 365 "
Interest cost ' ‘ ST
Foreign currency translation . L7
o i Beneft obllgatlonat December 31,2006 I y $3g8 = - -,
o . e e e S RN 'v;;‘_”-'_';f_"”i"_':' [
WAmount recognlzed if.the consoligated: balance SHBEt CONSIBES Ol = = = e mmim oo q o e e S e —
B Accrued benefits - - = e —RE e T w2 e e e = 20T e : - $(388) Cre
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2006 .
Discount rate ‘ _ o - 5.75%
Long-term rate of compensation increase ' ' 3.00%

(b) The MRC defined contribution savings plan for United States employees

MRC also established new defined contribution (US tax code "401(k)"}, savings plans that cover all of its employees frorn March
31, 2006. MRC’s contributions are based on employees' compensation and partially match employee contributions. 1n 2006, MRC
contributed $201,000 to this plan.

{c) The defmed coninbuflcn savlngs plan for Canadian employees

fn 2006, the company esfablished a new defined contribution savings plans for its Canadian employees, whereby the company
matches employee contributions to a maximum of eight percent of each employee’s salary. In 2006, the company contributed
$121,500 to this plan,

L ] ‘ T T A [
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o

12. SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
Authorized

The authorized share capital comprises the following:
+ Unlimited number of common voting shares

» Unlimited number of first preferred shares

= Unlimited number of second preferred shares

Issued

Only common shares have been issued by the company._

- e e s e gl e bl DL Gl el Number - - - - Amountss o -t
. . - ‘ of Shares - {$000)
" Balaficé, December'3i, 2004 _ T T T o o T T eT U7 T 8926743 0 838756 0 T
e ’_’—“*-'lssued Tor GashTn pubIC GERIngs (a)=—TF e P TR e Er e T B BAT,000-  — - G000 T T T mE
Issued upon exercise of,stp_qk_opygps_(c!) . o .. ... -9eslpo0. 666 Y
Issued upon exercise of warrants (e} .. = .. ... e T+ . ...3791,705- .. . 1986 .
Share issue costs - e o S -+ (5,980)
Tax effect of share issue costs ' 2,339
Tax effect of expenditures renounced pursuant to the issuance of flow threugh common shares fff ] (2,697) i
Balance, December 31, 2005 , _ 139,940,448 125,071 .
_ Issued for cash in private. placement (b)__m,,,,, L e s e s ae 119,047,800 L 100000 L oL ST

74

. .,4__,__ " Jsstied for.cash.in, public. offenngsgc) -

s30T s 30,000 - '-"l-'-,?-x--__'-if»_

i -—~-~Issued far- Luk‘e‘aT:quisnmn Note' 3 — e _% = "ww— 29699 232”,;_;;,_111 956, ﬁ;—_;-_—_-_-; *_;;‘_‘-“::—_:'J
Issued for refinery acquisition (Note 3=~ L T TEETTTEETTET 000000 U oUE060 T T
lssued upon exercise of options (d) Tt 7 gesaes 1,07
issued upon exercise of warrants (g) ‘ 1,493,820 881
Share Issue costs : : ; : (8,390)

Tax effect of share issue costs 2,924
Tax effect of expenditures renounced pursuant to the issuance of flow through common shares (g) (5,448)

Balance, December 31, 2008 197,894,015 $363,082

Contributed Surplus:

Balance, December 31, 2004 R o . $535 o
Fair value of share options granted in 2005(d) 1,588
Assigned value of options exercised in 2005 . (161)

Balance, December 31, 2005 1,962
Fair value of options granted in 2006 {d) 1,777

----- . Assigned value of oplions exerclsed In 2006_- - -'. P T 4.} J - .
" Balance, December 31, 2006 -~ — — —— — = =~ 0 AE T CReTRITRSEL AT TR 4GS g g - e

Total Share Capital and Contributed Surplus:
December 31, 2005 $127,033
December 31, 2006 $376,500
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(a) Public Ottermgs 2005

In September 2005 the company issued from treasury 40,541,000 common shares at $1 85 per share. In December 2005 the
company issued from treasury another five million common shares on a flow-through basis at $3.00 per share, renouncing resource
expenditures of $15 million effective December 31, 2005.

{b) Private Placement — 2008
In February 2008, the company issued 19,047,800 common shares from treasury at $5.25 per share on a private placement basis.
{c) Flow-through Share Issue - 2006

tn September 2006, the company Issued from treasury 5,714,300 common shares on a flow through basis at $5.25 per share The .
““"_‘“““""‘"‘""“”“‘ company agreed torenounce the. related resourées expend|tures 01-$30. milfion to th flow through’ invéstors effective December 31;- =~ = - -}~f.
2006 The company has until December 31, 2007 to incur the eligible resource expendrtures As at December 31, 2006 $6.5 mrll|on e

o e e g -

ot these expendrtures have been Incurreu T T =

- — e = _'...,--'- e o g *

TR (d) Stcck Optrcns St

A summary of the ccmpanys cutstandmg stock optlcns as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and changes durmg thcse years |s,

presented below: . : . - oS LTl et e e Y SR
2006 . 2005
Number of Weighted Average  Number of Werghted Average L
, Shares . Exercise Price - . Shares - - . Exercise PHCEE{ e
e e 8,502,600~ —== $1.48— 3,988,600

- $4.81="5094/000=C i
=+ $0. 70-—-—(981 000)__ R A

8,730,255 o=

e Exercised - = et = ""-5'(9*98,3'65)?—?—*—-”'
U Expireds o e - T T w1000 0 ‘sses- (409,000)
" Outstanding, end of year - . 16,212,490 $3.31  £,592,800.
Exercisable, end of year . 6,563,864 . $214 5,159,869

All stock options have been granted for a period of five years. Options granted under the plan are generally fully exercisable after.
three years and expire five years after the date granted. The table below summarizes unexercised slock options.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Weighted Average ' . Weighted - Remaining
Number Average  Remaining Number Average  Contractual
Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding  Exercise Price Contractual Life  Outstanding _Exercise Price Life
At December 31 2006 2005
$0.20 - $0.99 3,137,235 $0.69 1.7 4,276,600 $0.67 3.2
] $1.00-$199 . 19000 _ $161 24 1886000 $1.61 5.0 -
e 60 00 §3 00 meri e T 7 53 670,000 e o $3 1B T 319,430,000 $ Bh S 4 G i
$4.00 - $5.99 7,400,255 $4.99 33 - $- -
16,212,490 $3.3 8,502,600 $1.49
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oplions amortized over the vesting period. Of this amount, $7.8 miflion (2005 - $1.2 million) was expensed and $0.5 mtlllon was
charged to refining operating costs. A further $3.5 million (2005 $0.4 million) was capitalizéd to property and equipment. '

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opticn-pricing model with
weighted average assumptions for grants as foltows:

2006 - 2005
Risk free interest rate 4.1% 3.0%
Expected option life (years) 3 3
Expected volatility 50% 50%
== === The weighted average fair value'at the det'e of grant of all options granted in 2006 was $1 81 per option (2005°$0.65). - <~ -~ - -mem - -
- R i Sharepurchas:: warrﬂnts~—~-————~~—~ —eTm o s m s meme s e R
ST I piimmary of the company's outstanding sﬁa‘r‘“e*purchase warrants a5 at December 317 2006 and 2005 and changes dunng the T e 3
years is presented below: o T o o, :
- , 2006 2005 S
Outstanding, beginning of year 1,493,820 5,300,525 !
Exercised (1,493,820) - (3,791,705)
Expired ) - {15,000) _
Outstandmg, end of year . ‘ : - .. 1493820 ',
— e e ———— e —— *--‘b [P
T e - = Ex— N ..,:T.—.““ — _‘_-_.L_ _;’f__ff:,
— —-  The company fenounced $7—mi|l|on of resource expenditures to ﬂow-through share- investors eﬁectwe ‘December- 31, 2004 1he-  —-ewo— = « -1

related tax effect of those expenditures has been recorded in 2005 in the amount of $2.7 million and the company incurred the

In 2006 a compensatory non-cash expense of $8.3 million (2005 - $1.2 million) was recorded, reflecting the fair value of stock
|

|

I expenditures in 2005 as required.

i
{g) Flow-through shares {2005)
Eftective December 31, 2005, the company renounced $15 million of resource expenditures to flow-through investors. The related

|
‘ tax effect of $5,448,000 on those expenditures was recorded in 2008. The company incurred ali of the required expenditures related
| to these flow-through shares in 2006.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{ In 2006 the company paid professional legal fees of $1.8 million (2005 - $539,000) fo a law firm in which officers or directors of the
company are partners. Transactions with the related party occurred within the normal course of business and have been measured
at their exchange amount on normal business terms. The exchange amount is the amount of consideration established and agreed to
with the related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14, SEGMENTED INFORMATION

In Canada, the company Is in the business of exploring and producing conventional petroleum and natural gas and has recently

commenced exploration and development of bitumen in the oil sands of northern Alberta. In the U.S., the company Is in the business

of refining and marketing petroleum products. Prior to the de-consolidation of Petrolifera Iin 2005 (Note 5) it also conducted a .
conventional petroleum and natural gas business in Argentina. The significant aspects of these operating segments are presented

below. Included in Canadian administrative assets is the company's carrying value of its investment in Petrolifera.

Year ended December 31 . Canada Canada USA  Argentina
{$000) Oil and Gas _ Administrative Refi ning 0il and Gas Total
eI e e e 2008 . .. . .3 .mIIlln L m A TS L Ta T I TTILIITLOENS el N - -
Revenues, net of royaliies $31,786 5 $211 874 $- $243,660 . S
2 - e o o~-o - Equity interest in Petrolifera eammings =< < - - = =7 % W 11,0783 L . o R e K
TULCTEEET TTUE SToDiMion galn TS T T S TR e < e T -———_A?——r—f.s-s;j-é;' B R & P ="
Interest and other income C " 600 ) -4 - 1,024 N o
" Crude oil pirchase &hd operating costs™ T T 8,270 T T 182,868 T - 190,938 ~ - , )
General and administrative . .. .. 3,885 - S - . 3886
Stock-based compensation . 7,816 - - 7,816 R
Finance charges 4,992 - 94 - 5,086 o
Foreign exchange loss _ 4,287 - - - 4,287 . v
Depletion, depreciation and accretion - 29, 366 - - 3583 - 32,948 -
2" Taxes {recovery) T T ki ‘::‘(5165) “‘“’.’"‘“"’“""""“* 00357 T IE L TIReI0 T TOIITLE
==-=Net-eamings- (}oss)“‘*“""‘T::‘—"wﬁ&(is-zsﬂ)—” 28..-‘ 16, 91“ S A §,953 === o E——
“Property and equipment, nel_ . 3333881318 _49‘ B39 T T AR T T T T
"Capital expenditures and acqwsmfnh_s- ?:._—— 378,173 _;;*1',165;':”151_33_“ N - oasiss .t T
Total assels - 582,325 22,795 - 107,548 262 712,930
2005 M . o ) .
Revenues, net of royalties T $8,202 $- $- - $893 $9,095 -
Equity interest in Petrolifera loss - (27) - - (27
Dilution gain - . 4,465 | - - 4,465
Interest and other income 678 - - 22 700
Operating costs 2,126 - - 319 2,445
General and administrative - 2,348 - 312 . 2,660
Stock-based compensation - 1178 ) - 14 1,192
Finance charges 261 - - 47 308
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 5 - - (35) {30)
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 5,304 - - 493 5797
Taxes {recovery) 893 - - (23) 870
Net earnings (loss) __(3,282) 4465 - @32 - 991 e e e
" Property and equipment, net 44611 77Ty T T T TS T as242 0 T o
Capital expenditures 14,771 269 - 1,767 16,807
Total assets 134,182 631 - - 134,813

(1) The 2005 comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year's presentation.
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15. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(@) Per share amounts- - - o e

The following table summarizes the common shares used in per share calculations.

For the years ended December 31 2006 2005
Weighed average common shares outstanding 184,468,631 106,113,563
Dilutive effect of stock options and stock purchase warrants 3,963,178 5,732,124
Weighed average common shares outstanding - diluted 188,431,809 111,845,687

b) Net change in non -cash workmg capital . : .

- - wr = b e e e e ek e i e e ——— A o - P g o= e m e - .

P - B N - T L A T T L T I L T T T - : - . - . !

For the years ended December 31 ($000) T T e e 2006 2005
- - - - o R R .‘ e “9""‘,‘,""';;_"‘,',’.'1“.":—_’-,'&_1’ T oame -':V L R . e e -y
L Acoimbrecebabe e e S(25280) L SRTT)
Refinery inventories o B . {4,441) o - N
Due trom Petrolifera~ =~ T 0 0 T T o T T TTTTTTTTT T o188 T T Toew o T T
Prepaid expenses . ..~ . T e T s (69)) S (2
Accounts payable and accrued I|ab1|:ties _ . 31,567 251 ‘ ' .
Income taxes payable 3,512 ‘ -
Total ’ $4,851 $(89)- )
Summary of working caplta! changes b e ok a4 b ",' :_;_:._‘;.'3 A j;’},_..
_h;:d_ T _,_;, \{$'Q0‘0),__n_,,..;__-_;,.~__m“___%..,4 o T -" N A 11| Tﬁzo_US'_L‘ e — 7;.,_____';
! Operations -- =TI T ETTLD UL UTASEITISIIIL Thr = T 4(9,271) 0 - T $(48)) R
B R e S T S U I+ A - M

$4,851 $(89)

(c) Supplementary cash flow information

For the years ended December 31 2006 2005
{$000)

Interest paid . $6,578 $67
Income taxes paid 3,655 3
Stock-based compensation capitalized 3,485 . 410

At December 31, 2006 cash of $122.8 million Is restricted for use in paylng expenditures for a designated oil sands project
under the terms of the oil sands term loan (Note 9).

16. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

_The company's annual commltments under leases for office_premises_and operaling_costs, field compressuon equipment, software_ _ _____ .
license agreements and other equipment are as follows:

2007 - $1.7 million; 2008 - $2.6 million; 2009 - $2.6 million; 2010 - $2.2 million; 2011 - $1.6 million; total thereafter $8.3 million.
Additionally, the company has various guarantees and indemnifications in ptace in the ordinary course of business, none of which are
expected to have a significant impact on the company’s financial statements or operations.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Information Form are "forward looking statements”. Forward looking
statements are frequently characterized by words such as “plan”, “expect”, "project”, "intend”, "believe”,
"anticipate”, "estimale”, or other similar words, or statements that certain events or conditions "may"” or "will" occur.
Forward looking statements are not based on historical facts but rather on Management’s expeciations regarding the
Corporation's future growth, results of operations, production, future capital and other expenditures (including the
amount, nature and sources of funding thereof), competilive advantages, plans for and results of drilling activity,
environmental matlers, business prospects and opportunitics.  Such forward looking stalements rellect
Management's current beliefs and assumptions and are based on information currently available to Management.
Forward looking statements involve significant known and unknown risks and uncertaintics. A number of factors
could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward looking stalements including
risks associated with the impact of gencral economic conditions, indusiry conditions, governmental regulation,
volatility of commodity prices, currency fluctuations, imprecision of reserve estimates, environmensal risks,
competition from other industry participants, the lack of availability of qualified personnel or management, stock
market volatility and ability to access sufficient capital from internal and extermal sources, the risks discussed under
"Risk Factors" and clsewhere in this Annual Information Form and in the Corporation’s other public disclosure
documents, and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation. Although the forward
looking statements contained in this Annual Information Form are based upon assumptions which Management
believes to be reasonable, the Corporation cannoi assure investors that actual results will be consistent with these
forward looking statements. Assumptions relating to the reserves and resources of the Corporation are discussed
under "Oil and Gas Reserves and Resources”. These forward looking stalements are made as of the date of this
Annual Information Form, and the Corporation assumes no obligation to update or revise them to reflect new events
or circumstances, except as required by law. Because of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions inherent in forward
looking statements, prospective investors in the Corporation's securities should not place undue reliance on these
forward looking statements. See “Risk Factors”.

ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

In this Annual Information Form, the abbreviations set forth below have the following meanings:

""bbl" barrels "mef/d" 1,000 standard cubic feet per day
“bbl/d" barrel or barrels per day "mmef” 1,000,000 cubic feet

"boe" Barrels of oil equivalent "mmef/d" 1,000,000 cubic feet per day
“boe/d" Barrel or barrels of oil equivalent per day  “'mmbtu" 1,000,000 British thermal units
"mbuoe" 1,000 barrels of oil equivalent “NGL" Natural gas liquids

"mbbl" 1,000 barrels

“mef" 1,000 cubic feet

Note:  For the purposes of this document, 6 mef of natural gas and 1 boe of NGL each cquai 1 bbl of oil. BOEs
may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A boe conversion ratio of 6 mef:1 bbl is based on an
energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value
equivalency at the wellhead.

"IP" means the proved reserve category as defined in the COGE Handbook;
"21" means the proved and probable reserve categories as defined in the COGE Handbook;
"3 means the proved, probable and possible reserve categories as defined in the COGE Handbook;

"ABCA" means the Business Corporations Act (Alberta), S.A. 2000, c. B-9, together with any amendments thereto
and all regulations promulgated thereunder;

"COGE Handbook" means the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook prepared by The Socicty of Petroleum
Evaluation Engineers (Calgary Chapicr) and the Canadian Institute of Mining Metallurgy & Petroleum (Petroleum
Society),

*Common Shares” or "Connacher Shares” means the common shares in the share capital of the Corporation;

-1-
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"Connacher” or the “Corporation” means Connacher Otl and Gas Limited and its subsidiaries;

"Connacher GLJ Report” means the independent engineering cvaluation of the oil and natural gas interests of the
Corporation prepared by GLI Petroleum Consultants Ltd. ("GLJ"), independent petroleum engincering consultants
of Calgary, Alberta, dated March 9, 2007 and effective December 31, 2006;

"Holly" means Holly Corporation;
"Luke" means Luke Energy Lid.;

"Luke Acquisition” means the acquisition by Connacher of all the outstanding common shares of Luke by way of a
business combination under a plan of arrangement;

“Luke Shares” mecans the common shares in the share capital of Luke;
"MRC" means Montana Refining Company, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation);

"MRC Acquisition" means the acquisition by Connacher of an 8,300 bbl/d refinery and related inventory situated in
Great Falls, Montana operated by Holly's Montana Refinery Company;

"Management” means management of the Corporation;
“NI 51-101"" means National Instrument 51-101 - Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities,
"Petrolifera” means Petrolifera Petroleum Limited;

"Petrolifera AIF" means the annual information form of Petrolifera for the year ended December 31, 2006 dated
March 20, 2007,

"Petrolifera GLJ Report" means the independent engineering evaluation of the crude oil and natural gas interests
of Petrolifera prepared by GLI, independent petroleum engineering consultants of Calgary, Alberta, dated March 1,
2007 and effective December 31, 2006;

"Puesto Morales Concession” or "Concession” means the interests in the Puesto Morales and Rinconada blocks in
the Neuquén Basin in Argentina;

"Pod One" means the Corporation's 10,000 bbl/d of bitumen SAGD project located in northeastern Alberta;

"Refinery” means the refinery and related inventory located in Great Falls, Montana acquired by the Corporation
pursuant to the MRC Acquisition;

"SAGI" means stecam-assisted gravity drainage;
"SOR" means steam-oil ratio;

"Sayer Energy Advisors Report™ means the independent evaluation of the Canadian undevcloped land acreage of
the Corporation prepared by Sayer Energy Advisors ("Sayer"), independent oil and gas investment firm of Calgary,
Alberta, dated February 14, 2007 and effective December 31, 2006;

"Total Recoverable Resources” means reserves plus Contingent Resources and Prospective Resources; and
"TSX" means the Toronto Stock Exchange.

In this Annual Information Form, refercnces to "dollars” and "$" are to the currency of Canada, unless
otherwise indicated.



82-34954

THE CORPORATION
Incorporation and Crganization

The Corporation was formed on July 3, 1997 through the amalgamation pursuant to the ABCA of Petro
Power Encrgy Inc. and Justinian Explorations Lid. and continued as Justinian Explorations Ltd., a public corporation
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange. On January 23, 2001 the cutstanding Connacher Shares were consolidated on
a ten-for-one basis and the name of the Corporation was changed to Connacher Oil and Gas Limited. Trading in the
Connacher Shares under the symbol "CLL" commenced on the TSX Venture Exchange on March 23, 2001. This
listing was surrendered on August 1, 2003 when the Corporation graduated to and commenced trading on the TSX.

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation had seven wholly-owned subsidiaries, 6415101 Canada Inc., a
corporation incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act, Great Divide Oil Corporation, Connacher
Finance Corporation, Luke Energy Lid. and Great Divide Holding Corporation, all of which are corporations
incorporated under the ABCA and Great Divide Pipeline Corporation and Montana Refining Company, Inc. both of
which are organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware. The Corporation also has a significant equity
interest in Petrolifera. See "Busincss of the Corporation - Ownership of Petrolifera”.

The Corporation has its head and principal office at Suite 2600, 530 - 8th Avenve S.W., Calgary, Alberta,
T2P 358 and its repistered office at 3700, 400 Third Avenue 8.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2I’ 4H2.

The following chart illustrates the Corporation's organizational structure as at December 31, 2006:

Conpacher (il and Gas Limited

(Alberta)
[ 100% l 100% 1
Connacher Finaace Corporation Luke Energy Ltd.
(Albertay (Alberta)
l ]
100% 100% 100%:
I
Great Divide Oil Corpomtion Great Divide Holding Corporation 6419101 Conada Inc.
90% {Alberta) (Alberta) (Canada) 99%
l
1%
100% £00%
Luke Energy
Partnership
Great Divide Pipeline Corporation Mortana Refiring Company, Inc.
(Delaware} {Dclaware)

On January 1, 2007 Connacher amalgamated with Luke Energy Ltd. pursuant to the ABCA and the name
of the Luke Energy Partnership was changed to the Connacher Oil and Gas Partnership.

The following chart illustrates the Corporation's organizational structure as of the date of this Annual
Infermation Form:
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Cennacher Oil and Gas Limited

(Albera)
[ 1{0% 100% ]
Connacher Finance Corporation 6419101 Canada Inc.
(Alberta) (Canada)
100% f 100%
I W
Greal Divide Qil Corporation Great Divide Holding Corporation
9% (Alberta) {Alberta) 1%
l
1%
Great Divide 100% 100%
0Oil Sands
Limited
Pantnership
Great Divide Pipeline Corporation Montana Refining Company, Inc.
{Delaware) (Deloware)

General Development of the Corporalion

Connacher is primarily engaged in the exploration for, and the development, production and marketing of,
crude oil and natural gas. The Corporation's principal asset is its interest in the Great Divide Pod One 10,000 bbl/d
oil sands project and surrounding 90,000 acres of oil sands leases which are situated in northeastern Alberta. The
Corporation also owns producing crude oil and natural gas properties at Battrum, Saskatchewan and at Marten
Creek, Simonette and Three Hills, Alberta, a 9,400 bbl/d refinery located in Great Falls, Montana and a 26 percent
equity interest in Petrolifera, a public Canadian oil and natural gas company active in Argentina, Peru and
Colombia. The following is a general description of the development of the Corporation over the past three years.

In July 2004, the Corporation sold its conventional heavy oil properties at Islay and Lloydminster in eastern
Alberta, and its Cabri North natural gas properties and related undeveloped shallow gas rights under approximately
35,000 net acres in southwest Saskatchewan in Iwo separate transactions for aggregate gross proceeds of $17.8
million. Procceds from these sales were used to repay bank debt and trade payables.

In November 2004, the Corporation acquired the 50% working interest it did not already own in the Puesto
Morales Concession in Argentina and immediately thereafter sold its 100% working interest to its then subsidiary,
Petrolifera, for ¢ight million common shares of Petrolifera and a $4 million promissory note. Prior to Petrolifera’s
purchase of those assets, Petrolifera completed a $1.5 million cquity financing issuing units comprised of one
common share of Petrolifera and one common share purchase warrant of Petrolifera and used $1.25 million of the
net proceeds o reduce its promissory note indebtedness to the Corporation to $2.75 million. As a consequence of
Petrolifera’s equity financing, the Corporation's equity interest in Petrolifera was reduced 1o 61%. This equity
interest further reduced to 40% in March 2005, upon the completion of another equity financing by Petrolifera,
which raised $7 million by issuing units comprised of one common share of Petrolilera, one half of one common
share purchase warrant of Petrolifera and a right. Of the gross proceeds, $2 million was used lo reduce the
promissory note indebtedness owing to Connacher to $750,000.

In December 2004, Connacher completed an cquity offering of 30,000,000 Common Shares and
11,706,663 flow-through Common Shares, for agpregate gross procecds of $21.3 million. Procceds from the
financing were used to repay all of the Corporation's indebtedness and provide working capital.

Throughout 2004, a total of 1,442,155 Common Share purchase warrants and broker warrants and 575,000
stock options were exercised, resulling in the Corporation receiving cash proceeds of $945,000.
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Commencing in the third quarter of 2005, based upon Connacher's then equity interest in Petrolifera and as
a result of the election of independent directors to the board of directors of Petrolifera and certain other factors,
Connacher was no longer considered to contro] Petrolifera and, accordingly, Connacher discontinued consolidating
Petrolifera's accounts with Connacher's financial results and began accounting for its investment in Petrolifera on an
equity basis.

In September 2005, Connacher completed a public financing on a "bought-deal” basis of 27,027,400
Connacher Shares at a price of $1.85 per share. An additional 13,513,600 Connacher Shares were issued 1o the
underwriters in connection with sach financing upon exercise of their over-allotment option for total gross proceeds
of $75,000,850. Proceeds from the financing were used to fund development of Connacher's Great Divide oil sands
project and for general corporate purposes.

Petrolifcra completed an initial public offering of its common shares and warrants in November 2005.
Following completion of the initial public offering (and after giving effect to Connacher's investment of $6 million
in securitics offered pursuant to the initial public offering), Connacher held an undiluted 35% equity interest (26%
equily interest on a fully-diluted basis) in Petrolifera, reduced from a 40% equity interest Connacher held in
Petrolifera prior to completion of the initial public offering and a 61% equity inlcrest as at December 31, 2004,

In December 2005, Connacher completed the szle to a syndicate of underwriters of 5,000,000 flow-through
Common Shares at a price of $3.00 per share. Net proceeds from this financing were used by Connacher to incur
eligible Canadian exploration expenses and, in that regard, primarily to further delineate and deline Connacher's
Great Divide oil sands properties through the drilling of additional core holes and shooting additional 3-D seismic.

In December 2005, Connacher and Luke entered into a binding letter agreement pursuant to which
Connacher agreed to acquire the outstanding common shares of Luke by way of a business combination under a
proposed plan of arrangement.

Also, in December 2005, Connacher entered into an exclusivity agreement with the Montana Refining
Company, a subsidiary of Holly, to negotiate the terms of a purchase and sale agreement to acquire an 8,300 bbl/d
refinery, together with related structures and specified tangible assets situated in Great Falls, Montana.

Throughout 2003, a total of 3,791,705 Common Share purchase warrants and broker warrants and 981,000
stock options were exercised, resulting in the Corporation receiving cash proceeds of $2,652,296.

In February 2006, Connacher, Luke and 6492894 Canada Inc. entered into an arrangement agreement that
set out the terms pursuant to which Connacher was to complete the Luke Acquisition. The Luke Acquisition was
completed in March 2006 resulting in the payment of approximately $91.5 million and the issuance from treasury of
approximately 30 million Connacher Shares to Luke shareholders.

In February 2006, Connacher completed a "bought-deal” private placement financing of 8,571,500
Common Shares at a price of $5.25 per share. An additional 10,476,300 Common Shares were issued to the
underwrilers in connection with the financing upon exercise of their over-allotment option for total gross proceeds
of $100,000950. Proceeds from the financing were used to fund Connacher's exploration and development
actjvities, for general corporale purposes and for working capital.

In March 2006, MRC signed an asset purchase agreement pursuant to which it completed the MRC
Acquisition. The MRC Acquisition was completed on March 31, 2006. The consideration for the purchase was
US$55 million, comprised of cash and one million Connacher Shares from treasury. For further details with respect
to the MRC Acquisition, reference should be made to the business acquisition report of the Corporation dated June
14, 2006 which is posted on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and is not incorporated by reference in this Annual
Information Form.

In June 2006, Connacher reccived a letter from the Alberta Encrgy and Utilities Board approving the
Corporation’s Great Divide oil sands project.

In July 2006, Connacher was granted an Order in Council approving its Great Divide oil sands project,
representing the last formal approval requirement for the project to proceed.

5.
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In September 2006, Connacher completed a "bought-deal” financing of 5,000,000 flow-through common
shares at a price of $5.25 per flow-through share. An additional 714,300 flow-through shares were issued to the
underwriters in connection with the financing upon exercise of their over-allotment option for total gross proceeds
of $30,000,075. Proceeds from the financing were used to fund exploration activities including the further
delineation of the Corporation’s oil sands properties.

In October 2006, Connacher completed a long term debt financing comprised of a US$180 million Term
Loan B Facility (the "TLB Facility") and US$15 million Working Capital Facility (the "WC Facility”) (collectively,
the "Facilities"). The Facilities were syndicated to institutional inveslors located primarily in the United States and
in Canada. The proceeds of the TLB Facility were used to discharge short-lerm indebtedness of US$51 million
incurred in the MRC Acquisition, fund a one year debt service reserve during the construction phase of Pod One and
pay expenses associated with the long-lerm debt financing. The balance of the approximately US$111 million of the
proceeds was added to cash working capital and will be used to Nnance the remaining construction and related
capilal expenditures of Pod One. The WC Facility is available to fund ongoing working capital requiremenis at the
Refinery.

Throughout 2006, a total of 1,493,820 Commen Share purchase warrants and 998,365 stock options were
exercised, resulting in the Corporation receiving cash proceeds of $1,898,000.

Trends
There are some trends that have been developing in the oil and gas industry during the past two years.

The first trend is the consolidation that the industry has been experiencing, Consolidation has affected
companies of all sizes from the small emerging companies to the senior integrated companies. Because of the
relatively high commodity prices in the industry in recent history and the increased demand for producing
properties, the trend in the industry is for larger entities to continue to acquire smaller entities. To date, oil and gas
royalty trusts have also been a significant acquirer of producing oil and gas properties and companies. However,
proposed legislation to change the taxation of trusts announced on October 31, 2006 has affected this trend.

The second trend is the significant access (o external capital that the industry has been experiencing. Oil
and gas companies have had access to debt and equity capital which they have invested in both acquisition and
exploration activities. More recently, however, the access to external capital has become more restricted as a result
of declining commodity prices and legislative changes in taxation applicable to trusts.

The third trend is the focus on Canada's oil sands deposits. in 2005 and 2006 the market for crude oil saw
record high prices which persisted in the context of volatile geopolitical conditions. Strong demand growth and the
forecast of continucd growth from China, India and other developing nations aiso contributed to the quantum jump
in crude oil prices. These strong prices brought into focus the relentless issue of reserve replacement and the
continuing debate about the reliability of supply from established petroleum-producing regions. These rising oil
prices and the need for dependable long-term supplies coalesced during 2005 and 2006 and brought Canada's oil
sands deposits into focus. The unofficial oil sands "press index" reached an all-time high, with financial papers
reporting almost relentlessly on the projects under development and the potential importance to North American
certainly of supply of the oil sands. As a result of the foregoing there was a significant increase in the prices being
paid for oil sands properties in 2005 and 2006.

A fourth trend is the high level at which the industry is operating and the resulting intense competition for
services and personnel to meet corporate capital expenditure programs. This has resulted in increased operating,
exploration and development costs. Sce "Risk Factors”.

BUSINESS OF TIIE CORPORATION

Connacher is primarily engaged in the exploration for, and the development, proluction and marketing of,
crude oil and natural gas. The Corporation's principal asset is its interest in the Great Divide Pod One 10,000 bbl/d
oil sands project and surrounding 90,000 acres of oil sands leases which are situated in northeastern Alberta. The
Corporationi also owns producing crude oil and natural gas propertics at Batirum, Saskaichewan and at Marten
Creek, Simonette and Three Hills, Alberta, a 9,400 bblAd refinery located in Great Falls, Montana and a 26 percent
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cquity interest in Petrolifera, a public Canadian oil and natural gas company active in Argenlina, Peru and
Colombia.

Principal Properties

The following paragraphs describe the Corporation’s principal properties. Readers are cautioned that the
estimates of reserves and lulure net revenue for individual properties may not reflect the same confidence level as
estimates of reserves and future net revenue for all properties, due to the effects ol aggregation.

Great Divide, Alberia

At Great Divide in northeastern Alberta, the Corporalion owns and operates 148.5 sections of oil sands
leases (148.2 sections or 95,000 acres net) and 11 gross sections (10 net sections or 6,400 acres) of petroleum and
natural gas rights. Several bitumen accumulations or pods have been identified.

Pod One was delincated, evaluated, applied for and approved by all applicable regulatory bodies. It is
currently under construction, and is scheduled for startup in mid-summer 2007. Additional pods are being
delineated using core-hole drilling and 3D seismic in the first quarter 2007. At this time 81 coreholes are planned.
This data will be integrated into the existing corehole and seismic data base to determine whether there is sufficient
size, areal extent and reservoir quality to apply for additional new pods or SAGD developments. [n addition, the
Corporation is using this data to explore for and find additional new pods. The Corporation intends to proceed with
an application to develop another 10,000 bbl/d small scale commercial operation (the "Algar Project”) at Great
Divide. It is anticipated the application for the Algar Project will be submitted in May, 2007 with a view to
commencement of construction in early 2008, subject to final approval by the Board of Directors of the Corporation
and following due consultation with stakeholders and receipt of regulatory approval.

As at December 31, 2006 the Connacher GLJ Report estimated the Corporation’s Pod One proved reserves
to be 43.8 million barrels, 2P reserves to be 84.1 million barrels and the 3P reserves to be 109.9 million barrels,
Additional pods were assigned Contingent and Prospective Resources (as such terms are hereinafter defined)
resulting in a 2P reserves and Best Estimate of Total Recoverable Resources of 260.6 million barrels. The 3P
reserves and High Estimate of Total Recoverable Resources was estimated at 478.9 million barrels.

Marten Creek, Alberta

Marten Creek is a relatively shallow (1,925 feet) multi-zone Crelaceous natural gas area located about 300
miles north of Calgary and it is predominately 100% owned and operated by Connacher. Gas production for 2006
averaged 11.3 mmef/d. Connacher's land position has grown to an average 80% interest in approximately 77,600
acres (62,124 acres net). Connacher also holds an additional 4,480 acres under option. Connacher has accumulated
a seismic base in excess of 1,100 miles of 2D seismic data on which over 25 potential drilling locations have been
identified on cxisting lands. This is a winter work area and all work must be completed by the end of March, which
is generally the start of spring break-up. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation cstimates total 2P recoverable
reserves as 5.0 million boes.

Three Hills, Alberia

In March 2006, Connacher acquired the Three Hills properties (Three Hills, Mikwan, Twining and Stettler)
through the Luke Acquisition. Al the lime of the Luke Acquisition the Three Hills properties were producing
approximately 225 boe/d. By drilling additional wells in 2006 these properties exited the year producing more than
375 boe/d. Al December 31, 2006 the Connacher GLJ Report estimates the Corporalion's working interest share of
crude oil rescrves rose to 728 mboe (proved) from 456 mboe (proved) at the time the Luke Acquisition was
completed in March of 2006. The 2P recoverable reserves have risen from 582 mboe to 1,205 mboe during the
same period.

Batirum, Saskatchewan

The Corporation owns and operates working interests of 100% in unitized and non unitized lands in the
Battrum region of southwestern Saskatchewan. The properties produce medium gravity crude oil. The bulk of the
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properiies were acquired in two transactions in 2003, with additional small transactions completed in 2005 and
2006. For the year ended December 31, 2006 the Corporation's production from this area averaged 710 bbls/d of oil
and current production is approximately 650 bbl/d of oil. There are presently 56 net producing oil wells and no
producing gas wells in this area, which comprises 26,922 gross acres and 26,842 net acres. At December 31, 2006
the Connacher GLJ Report estimates the Corporation's working interest share of crude oil reserves to be 2.4 million
bbls of oil, of which 1.9 million bbls is proved.

The Refinery

On March 31, 2006, the Corporation completed the MRC Acquisition. Sec "The Corporation - General
Development of the Corporation”.

The MRC Acquisition was considered strategic 1o provide Connacher with protection against wider and
more volatile type of heavy crude oil price differential swings. Since its acquisition, the Refinery has been a
profitable and sirong business unit contributing to the Corporation's cash flow. MRC's continued profitability will
depend largely on the spread between market prices for refined petroleum products and the cost of crude oil.

MRC’s principal source of revenue is from the sale of high value light end products such as gasoline, diesel,
and jet fuel in markets in the weslern United States. Additionally, MRC sells a high grade asphalt into the local
market. MRC's principal expenses relate to costs of products sold and operating expenses.

In April 2006, MRC completed a scheduled plant "turnaround" maintenance program of its refinery
facilities. Such turnarounds are normally scheduled every two to five years. Turnaround costs are capitalized and
amortized over the period to the next scheduled turnaround.

With minimal additional anticipated capital investment, MRC would be capable of producing low sulfur
gasoline and diesel as required in 2008,

The above mentioned regulatory compliance items or other presently existing or future environmental
regulations, could cause Management to make additional capital investments beyond those described above and/or
incur additional operating costs to meet applicable requirements,

In 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law. Among other things, the legislation
creates tax incentives for small refiners preparing to produce low sulfur gasoline and diesel. The legislation provides
an immediate deduction of 75% of certain costs paid or incurred to comply with these standards and a tax credit
based on production for up to 25% of those costs. Management intends to utilize these incentives when it is required
to make these required expenditures.

Ownership of Petrolifera

As of the date of this Annual Information Form Connacher owns an undiluted 26% equity interest in
Petrolifera. Peirolifera commenced a drilling program in late 2005 and has since completed 14 wells in its 100%
owned Puesto Morales Concession located in the Neuquén Basin in Argentina, all of which have been completed as
hydrocarbon discoveries.

Petrolifera is a publicly traded crude oil and natural gas exploration and production company aclive in
Argentina, Colombia and Peru with its common shares listed for wading on the TSX under the symbol "PDP".
Connacher discontinued consolidating Petrolifera’s accounts with Connacher's financial results commencing in the
third quarter of 2005 and now accounts for its investment in Petrelifera on an equity basis. See "The Corporation -
General Development of the Corporation”. As of the date hereof, Connacher owns 11.4 million common shares of
Petrolifera, warrants to purchase 1.7 million commen shares of Petrolifera which expire May 8, 2006 and options to
purchase 200,000 common shares of Petrolifera. Based on the closing trading price of Petrolifera on March 23,
2007 of $19.07, Connacher’s ownership of common shares of Petrolifera (exchuding common shares issuable upon
the exercise of options and warrants) represents a $217 million invesiment. Petrolifera has forecasied capital
expenditures of $153 million to complete an active drilling and facility installation program during 2007.
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Pursuant to NI 51-101 the Corporation is required to state the Corporation's share of Petrolifera’s oil and
gas reserves, future net revenuc and costs incurred during 2006 separately from its own corresponding reserves data
and other oil and gas information. Set out in Schedule C to this Annual Information Form is a summary of the
Corporation's 26% interest in Petrolifera's oil and gas reserves and future net revenue as al December 31, 2006 as
evaluated by GLJ in the Petrolifera GLJ Report. The Petrolifera GLJ Report was prepared using assumptions and
methodology guidelines outlined in the COGE Handbook and in accordance with NI 51-101. The pricing used in
the forccast and constlant price evaluations is set forth in the notes to the tables. All of the reserves assigned to
Petrolifera in the Petrolifera GLJ Report are located in the Puesio Morales Concession in Argentina. Readers are
cautioned that as a result of the exercise of any owtstanding options and warrants of Petrolifera and the issuance by
Petrolifera of additional securitics, the Corporation's interest in Petrolifera's reserves will decrease, unless the
Corporation participates in such issuances of securities.

The attached Schedule C has been prepared based on the publicly disclosed information that is contained in
the Petrolifera AIF. For additional information beyond what is set forth in Schedule C reference should be made to
the Petrolifera AIF which is posted on SEDAR (www.scdar.com) and is not incorporated by reference in this Annual
Information Form.

OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES
Connacher engaged GLJ to prepare a report relating to the Corporation's reserves and resources as at
December 31, 2006. The information set forth below relating to the Corporation's reserves and resources constitutes

forward looking statements which are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. See "Forward Looking Statements”
and "Risk Factors".

0il and Gas Reserves

Connacher's crude oil and natural gas reserves are primarily located in three areas, the Battrum area of
Saskatchewan and the Marten Creek and Three Hills areas of Alberta. Connacher's bitumen reserves are located in
the Great Divide region. Bitumen reserves were only assigned to Pod One, in the 2I and 3P categories. The
Connacher GLJ Report assumed 44 SAGD well pairs for the proved undeveloped case, 62 SAGD well pairs for the
2P case and 76 well pairs for the 3P case, with cumulative SORs of 2.7, 2.6 and 2.6 in each case, but declining to 2.4
during peak production periods. The cuioffs used by GLI for probable reserves were 15 metres of net pay for
proved undeveloped reserves, 13 metres of net pay for 2P reserves and 10 metres of net pay for 3P reserves.

Set out below is a summary of the crude oil, natural gas and bitumen reserves and the value of future net
revenue of the Corporation as at December 31, 2006 as evaluated by GLJ in the Connacher GLI Report. The
preparation date of the Connacher GLJ Report is March 7, 2007. The pricing used in the forecast and constant price
cvaluations is set forth in the notes to the tables. Detailed information with respect to the reserves and future net
revenue altributable to the Corporation's crude oil and natural gas reserves and the Corporation's bitumen reserves is
included in this Annual Information Form under the headings "Oil and Gas Reserves and Resources - Supplemental
Information Regarding the Corporation's Bitumen Reserves" and "Oil and Gas Reserves and Resources -
Supplemental Information Regarding the Corporation’s Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves”, respectively.

Under NI 51-101, proved reserve assignments are based on a 90% probability that total quantities
recovered will equal or exceed proved reserve estimates. Proved plus probable reserves are the most likely case and
arc based on a 50% probability that they will equal or exceed estimates. Proved plus probable plus possible reserves
are the least likely case and are based on a 10% probability that they will equal or exceed estimates.

The evaluations of the Corporalion's bitumen reserves based on constant prices and costs utilize a
net bitumen price derived from pricing data posted as of December 31, 2006, Although December 31, 2006
prices are utilized, production of bitlumen is not anticipated to commence until mid-2007. Accordingly, if
product prices from which the nel bitumen price is derived decline, then the present value of future net
revenue associated wilk reserves and the associated reserves volumes will be Jess than those estimaled in the
Connacher GLJ Report and such reductions may be significant. All evaluations of fulure revenue are afler
the deduction of royalties, development costs, production costs and well abandonment costs but before
consideration of indirect costs such as administrative, overhead and other miscellaneous expenses. The
estimated future net revenues contained in the following tables do not necessarily represent the fair market
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value of the Corporation’s reserves. There is no assurance that the forecast and constant price and cost
assumplions contained in the Connacher GLJ Report will be attained and variances could be material. Other
assumptions and qualifications relating to costs and other matiers are included in the Connacher GLJ
Report. The recovery and reserves estimales of the Corporation's properties described herein are estimates
only. The actual reserves on the Corporation’s properties may be greater or less than those calculated.

RESERVES DATA - FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS

CONVENTIONAL AND NON-CONVENTIONAL RESERVES
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS™

Light/Mediumn Natural Gas
Crude Oil Natural Gas Liquids Bitumen
Gross') Net™ Gross'? Net™ Gross' Met™ Gross" Net
{mbbl) {anbbl} (mmef) (muncf) {mbbl) (mbbil} {mbhbl) (mbbl)

Proved Developed Producing®™® 2,106 1,742 21,524 17,607 1 1 - -
Proved Developed Non-Producing™® - - 3,167 2,615 - - - -
Proved Undeveloped™™ 315 240 - - . - 43841 39,308
Total Proved® 2,421 1,983 24,691 20,221 1 1 43,841 39,308
Total Probable®™ 786 632 8,769 7,158 - - 40307 34,340
Total Proved Plus Probuble™® 3.207 2,615 13,460 27,379 2 1 84,147 74,178
Tota! Possible™ - - . - - - 25,714 21,596
Total Proved Plus Probable Blus Possible®®¢ 3,207 2,615 13,460 21379 2 1 109.861 95,774

NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes After Deducting Income Taxes
Discounted At Discounted At
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% % 5% 10% 15% 0%
(MS$) (M$) (M$) (M$) M$ (M$) (M$) (M%) (M$) (M%)
Proved Developed Producing®™® 159,543 127,039 105,942 91,289 80,557 150,364 120,756 101,435 87,927 71,968
Proved Developed Noa- 15,782 12,554 10,237 8,518 7.209 11,170 8,885 71241 6,021 5092
Producing®™®
Proved Undevelopcd"m 528,477 319,949 196,214 118,765 67,960 410,037 245,832 147,487 85,325 44,145
Total Proved® 703,801 439,543 312,394 218,572 155727 571,512 375472 256,163 179274 127,205
Total Probable™ 850,214 389,295 216,420 144,432 110810 603,624 277,682 158,003 109,383 87,218
Total Proved Plus Probable®®! 1,554,015 848,538 528,813 363,004 266,537 1,175,196 653,154 414,165 288,657 214,423
Total Possible™ 6132064 200,769 87,661 51,283 37,084 435,225 142,512 63,256 38,119 28,439
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus 2,167,279 1,049,607 616,474 414,287 303,621 1,610,421 795,066 477,421 326,776 242,862
Possible@Xx4
FUTURE NET REVENUE
(UNDISCOUNTED)
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®
Future
Net Revenue Future Net
Belore Revenue
Operating Capitnl Aboandonment Income Income Aller Income
Revenue™  Royalties® Expenses Costs Costs Taxes Taxes Taxes
(M3$) (M$) (M$) (H1$) (MS} (M$) (M5) (M$)
Total Proved® 1,954,696 215,170 154,150 271,753 9,822 03,801 132,230 571,572
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 3,923,893 505,718 1,433,916 416,529 13,715 1,554,015 378,819 1,175,196
Totat Proved Plus Probable 5,360,838 713,155 1,871,508 498,308 16,528 2,167,279 556,358 1,610,421

Plus Possiblc®®®
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BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®
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Future Net Revenue Belore
Incowme Taxes (Discounted at

10%/Year}
Production Greup (M$)
Total Proved™ Light and medium crude oil {including 40,124
solution gas and by-products)
Associated gas and non-associated gas 81,548
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
Bitumen 190,721
Tatal Proved Plus Probablet™ Light and medium crude oil (including 51,565
solution gas and by-producis)
Associated gas and non-associated gas 100,851
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
Bitumen 376,398
“Total Proved Plus Probable Plus Possible®X) Light and medium crude oil (including 51,565
solution gas and by-products)
Associated gas and non-associated gas 100,851
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
Bitumen 464,059
RESERVES DATA - CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS
CONVENTIONAL AND NON-CONVENTIONAL RESERVES
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
LightMedium Natural (Gas
Crude Oil Natural Gas Liquids Bituimen
Grow®™  Net™ Gross®  Ne®  Gross®  WNet?  Gross)  Net?
{mbbl) (abbl) {mmcl)  {mnmel) (mbbl) (mbbl) (mbbl) {mbbl)
Proved Developed Producing™® 2,125 1,759 21,531 17,611 1 1 - -
Proved Developed Nop-Producing'™® - - 3,167 2,615 - - - -
Proved Undeveloped™” 315 240 - - - - 438 39,607
Total Proved™ 2,440 1,999 24,698 20,226 1 1 43,841 39,607
Total Probable®™® 794 640 8,769 7,157 - - 40,307 33,958
Tot Proved Plus Probabie™® 3234 2,639 33467 27383 2 ] 84,147 73,565
Total Possible® - - - - - - 25714 21425
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus Possible™® 3.234 2639 33467 27383 2 1 109861 94990
NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
Before Deducting Income Taxes After Deduciing [Income Tuxes
Discounted Al Discounied Al
0% 3% 1% 15% 20% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%
(M$) M%) (M%) (M$) (M$) (M%) (M$) (M$) (MS$) (M$)
Praved Developed Prodocing™® 127,893 103,715 87,603 76,174 67,065 127,532 103,517 87,491 76,109 67,627
Proved Developed Non-
Producing®*® 10,939 8,770 7,194 6,012 5,104 7,768 6,559 5,610 4852 4,230
Proved Undeveloped®™® 457,526 279,244 171,784 103,521 58,135 359,803 217,408 130,752 75,135 37,827
Total Proved® 596,357 391,730 266,581 185,707 130,905 495,103 327,484 223,853 156,116 109,600
Total Probable® 621,112 300,873 178,397 126,108 100,884 441,790 215,884 131,663 96,751 80,367
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 1,217,469 692,603 444 978 311.,8t5 231,788 936,892 543,368 355,516 252,867 19,057
Total Possible'® 392,227 139,383 67,671 43,387 33,24) 278,509 99,304 49,235 32,557 25,703
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After Deducting Income Taxes
Discounted At

% 5% 10% 15% 2% 0% 5% 10% 15% 0%
(M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M%) (M%) (M$) (M%) (M$)
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus 1,609,696 831,986 512,655 355,202 265029  1,215401 042,672 404,751 285,424 215,760
Possible®0x8
FUTURE NET REVENUE
(UNDISCOUNTED)
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
Future
Net Revenue Future Net
Before Revenue
Operating Capital Abandenment Income Income After Income
Revenue™™ Royalties™! Expenses Costs Costs Taxes Taxes Taxes
(M$) (M$) (M$) (M$} (M3} (M$) (M3} {MS)
Total Proved™ 1,631,014 181,930 587,495 257,509 772 596,359 101,256 495,143
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 2,974,322 396,859 999,768 350,562 9,631 1,217,482 280,590 936,802
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus 3,769,898 529,524 1,225,888 393,727 11,051 1,609,708 394,307 1,215,401
Possible®CXD
FUTURE NET REVENUE BY PRODUCTION GROUP
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
Future Net Revenue Before Income
Taxes (Discounted at 10 %/Year)
Production Group (M%)
Tota) Proved™ Light and medium crude oil (including 41,117
solution gas and by-products)
Associated gas and non-associated gas 59,179
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
Bitumen 166,285
Total Proved Plus Probable™* Light and medium crude eil (including 52,640
solution gas and by-products)
Associated gas and non-associated gas 72,018
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
Bitumen 320,324
Total Proved Plus Probable Plus Possible@®¥¥  [ight and medium crude oil (including 52,640
solution gas and by-products)
Associaled gas and non-associated gas 72018
(including natural gas liquids and excluding
solution gas)
188,002

Bitumen
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RECONCILIATION OF COMPANY CONVENTIONAL AND NON-CONVENTIONAL RESERVES BY
PRINCIPAL PRODUCT TYPE BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS™

The following table sets forth a reconciliztion of the changes in Comnacher's working interest, after
royalties, of light crude oil (including NGL's), associated and non-associated natural gas (combined) and bitumen
reserves as at December 31, 2006 against such reserves as at December 31, 2005 based on the forecast price and cost

assumptions set forth in Note 9.

Associated and Non-Associaled

Light and Medjumn Oil Natural Gas Bitumen
Net
Net Proved Proved Net Proved
Net Net Plus Net Net Plus Net Net Plus
Proved Probable Probable Proved Probuble Probable Proved Probable Probable
Ny (B8] SN EH [{Fe)] {10 (L(2(Y X [8h&7] axnE
{mbbt) (mbbl) {mbbh) {mmch) {mmcf) {mmcf) {mbbl) (mbbl) {mbbl)
At December 31, 2005 1,161 744 1,55 236 282 518 - 62,667 62,667
Exiensions 174 185 58 526 385 912 - 11,481 11,481
Improved Recovery 213 17 230 - - - 39,808 (39,B08) -
Techpical Revisions 305 (306) (1) 467 (95) 372 - - -
Discoveries - - - - - - - - -
Acquisitions 406 138 544 22412 6,773 29,184 - - .
Dispositions (8) (145) (153) (83) {187) (270} . - -
Econemic Factors - - - - - - - - -
Production (268) - (268) (3,336) - {3,336) - - -
At December 31, 2006 1,983 632 2,615 20222 7.158 21379 39,808 34,340 74,148

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN NET PRESENT VALUES
OF FUTURE NET REVENUE AFTER INCOME TAXES DISCOUNTED AT 10%
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS™

The following table sets forth changes between future net revenue estimates attributable to Connacher's net
proved reserves as at December 31, 2006 against such reserves as at December 31, 2005 based on constant prices
and cost assumptions set forth in Note 8 and calculated using a discount rate of 10%.

(M$)
Bstimated Future Net Revenue after income taxes a1 December 31, 2005 34,060
Sales and Transfers of Qil and Gas Produced, Net of Production Costs and Royalties (23,516)
Net Change in Prices, Production Costs and Royalties Related to Future Produclion (1,776)
Changes in Previously Estimated Future Development Costs 167,917
Changes in Estimated Future Development Costs (167,604)
Net Change from Extensions and Improved Recovery 175,359
Net Change from Discoveries -
Acquisitions ol Reserves 77477
Dispositions of Reserves -
Net Change Resulting from Revisions in Quantity Estimates 4777
Accretion of Discount 3,353
Net Change in Income Taxes (41,259
Other (5,134)
223,853

Estimated Funire Net Revenite afier income taxes at December 31, 2006

Notes:

(1) "Gross Reserves” are the Corporation's working interest (operating or non-operaling) share before deducting royaliies and without
including any royally interests of the Corporation. "Net Reserves™ are the Corporation’s working interest {(nperating or non-cperating)
share after deduction of royalty obligations, plus the Carporation's royally interests in reserves.

(2)  "Proved” reserves are those reserves thal can be estimated with 2 high degree of certainty to be recoverable. It is 90% likely that the actual
remaining quantities recovered will exceed the estimated proved reserves.

(3} "Probable” reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain 10 be recovered than proved reserves. 1t is equatly fikely that the
actual remaining guantities recovered will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves.

(4) ~ “Possible" reserves are those additional reserves thal are less certain 1o be recovered than probable reserves. There is only a 10%
probability that the quantities actually recovered will equal or exceed the sum of proved plus probable plus possible reserves.
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(5) “Developed Producing” reserves are those reserves that are expected 10 be recovered from completion intervals open at the time of the
estimate. These reserves may be cumenty producing or, if shut-in, they musi have previously been on production, and the date of
resumption of production must be known with reasonable certainty,

(6) "Developed Non-Producing” reserves are those reserves that either have not been on production, or have previously been on production,
but are shut in, and the date of resumption of production is unknown.

(7)  "Undeveloped” reserves are those reserves expected 1o be recovered from know accumulations where a significant expendiwre (for
example, when compared to the cost of drilling a well) is required 1o render them capable of production. They must fully meet the
requirements of the reserves classification {proved, probable, possible) to which they are assigned.

(8) The product prices used in the constant price and cest evaluntions in the Connacher GLJ Report were as follows: (1) Edmontor: Light price:
$67.58/bbl; (2) AECO Spot Gas price: $6.07/mmbtu; and (3) Alberta Sulphur at Plamt Gate: $19.50/1

(9)  The pricing assumptions used in the Connacher GLI Report with respect 1o values of future net revenue (forecast) as well as the inflation
rates used for operating and capital cests are set forth below. GLJ is an independent qualified reserves evaluator appointed pursuant to

NEST-104.
Light Crude Oil Henvy Ol Inflation Exchange Role
LEdmonion
Par Price
40°API Hardisty Ieavy 12° API

($Cdnnhl) (3Cdn/bbl) Gulycor $USACdn
Foreeast
2007 70.25 39.25 20 0.870
2008 68.00 40.00 20 0.870
2009 65.75 39.75 20 0.870
2010 64.50 39.75 20 0.870
2011 64,50 40.25 20 0.870
2012 65.00 41.50 2.0 0870
2013 66.25 42.50 20 0.870
2014 61.75 43.50 20 0.870
2015 69.00 44.25 20 0.870
Thereafter +2.0%fyr +2.0%iyr 20 0.870

{10) Values include processing and other income.
(11) Values include Alberta Royalty Tax Credit.

Weighted average historical prices realized by the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2006 were
$53.85/bbl for light and medium crude and $5.85/mcf for natural gas. Although gas prices are expecied to move
upward in the near term, there is no specific "price path” for the Corporation's gas because of its relatively small
sales volumes and due to the possible influence other larger gas sales contracts negotiated with industrial buyers
may have on the Corporation's realized prices. Although "price paths" represent generic expected trends, actual
pricing may be specific to different producing areas. If additional volumes are developed in a particular area, more
pricing power could accrue to the producer.

Undeveloped Reserves

Proved undeveloped reserves are generally those rescrves related io planned infill drilling locations. Such
reserves may also relate to wells that have been drilled and not yet tied in because of scasonal access issues, the need
for further testing of the wells or construction of pipelines and production facilities for the well.

At December 31, 2006, Connacher's conventional net proved undeveloped reserves of 445 mbbls of oil are
located at Battrum, Saskatchewan and Three Hills, Afberta, The Corporation expects to drill a number of infill
locations at Battrum and Three Hills during 2007 which, if successful, would result in new reserves qualifying for
the proved developed category.

Probable undeveloped reserves relate to wells to be drilled, tied in and brought on-stream in future. The
Connacher GLI Report estimates the Corporation’s working interest probable undeveloped reserves to be 786 mbbls
of light or medium oil and estimates the Corporation's working interest probable undeveloped reserves to be 40,307
mbbls of bitumen.

At Great Divide, proved undevcloped reserves of 43.8 million bbls of bitumen were assigned by GLIJ in the
Connacher GLJ Report. Proved undeveloped reserves will be converied 1o proved developed producing rescrves
over time once the Great Divide project is commissioned and as the steam injected in the SAGI) well pairs heats up
the reservoir enabling it to reach maximum production.

- 14 -
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Significant Factors or Uncertaintics

The Corporation does not anticipate that any important economic factors or significant uncertainties would
affect particular components of the reserves data. Netwithstanding that, a number of factors which are beyond the
Corporation's control can significantly affect the reserves, including product pricing, royalty and tax regimes,
changing operating and capital costs, surface access issues, availability of services and processing facilities and
technical issues affecting well performance. Sec "Risk Factors”.

Future Development Costs

The following table sets forth the development costs deducted in the estimation of future net revenue
attributable to each of the following reserves categories contained in the Connacher GLI Report:

Total Proved Total Proved Tota! Proved Plus

Future Total Proved Plus Probuble Probable Plus

Development Costs Future Future Possible Fulure
Using Development Costs  Development Costs  Development Costs

Constant Doltar Using Forecast Using Forecast Lising Forecast

Cusis Dollar Costs Dollar Costs Dollar Costs
(M$) MS$) (M3) (M$)

2007 121,969 121,969 110,562 97,527
2008 40,530 41,341 1,255 1,255
2009 3,200 3,329 3,121 2913
2010 40 42 32 32
2011 1,800 1,948 22 22
Total for all remaining years 140 188 186,126 293,689
Total, undiscounted 257,509 271,753 416,529 498,308
Total for all years discounted at 10%/year 199,841 207,195 204,438 196,977

Future development costs are expected to be funded from a combination of the following: operational cash
flow, debt and equity financing and/or farmout arrangements with other companies. The timing of such funding
may influence the timing of the developmental work expenditures.

O and Gas Properties and Wells

The following table sets forth the number of wells in which Connacher held a working interest as at
December 31, 2006:

Crude Oil Natural Gas
Gross(D Net) Gross\D NetP

Alberta

Producing 12 11 42 40

Non-producing 8 8 4 4
Saskatchewan

Producing 56 56 - -

Non-producing 32 32 - -
Total 108 107 46 44

Note:

(1) "Gross Wells" are the tolnl number of wells in which Connacher has an interest. "Net Wells* are the number of wells obtained by
aggrepating Connacher’s working interest in each of its gross wells.
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Costs Incurred

The following table summarizes the capital expenditures made by Connacher
properties [or the year ended December 31, 2006.

Property Acquisition Costs

®

Exploration Costs

82-34954

on oil and natural gas

Development Costs
(%

Proved Propertics

Unproved Propertics

6,767,000

Exploration and Developmen!t Activities

39,038,188

20,008,687

The following table sets forth the number of exploratory and devctopment wells which Connacher
completed during its 2006 financial year:

Exploratory Wells

Development Wells

Gross™ Net™P Gross®) Net®V
Oil Wells @ 27 2 9 8.8
Gas Wells - - 3 1.5
Service Wells - - - -
Dry Holes 2 2 1 1
Total Completed Wells 29 29 13 113
Naoles:
(1) “Gross Wells" are the total number of wells in which Connacher has an interest. "Net Wells" are the number of wells obtained by
apgregating Connacher’s working interest in each of its gross wells.
(2) Includes 26 oil sands exploration delineation coreholes.

In 2007 focus will continue to be on Great Divide although other important work will be carried out on the
Corporation's conventional acreage and at the Refinery. A capital budget approaching $250 million is envisaged for
2007, with approximately 80 percent direcied to both Pod One development and startup and to anticipaling
continued evaluation of additional pods and undeveloped acreage in the Great Divide region. It is hoped a formal
applications for the next pod at Great Divide will be submitted early in 2007. Conventional activity will focus on
drilling for natural gas at Marten Creek and other selected regions in northern Alberta, oil development drilling at
Three Hills, Alberta and ongoing projects at Battrum, Saskatchewan. It is also anticipated over $16 million will be
invested in the operation of the Relinery during 2007. '

Properties with No Attributed Reserves

The following table sets out the Corporation’s undeveloped land position effective December 31, 2006,

Undeveloped Acreage
Grosst' Net'?
Alberta
Conveational 114,116 94948
(il Sands 81,920 81,728
Saskatchewan 62,340 51,011
British Columbia 2,858
Total 261,625 230,545
Nole:
(1 "Gross” means the tolal number of acres in which the Corporation has a working interest, “Net" means the sum of the products

obuained by muhiplying the number of gross acres by the Corporalion's percentage working imterest therein.

The Corporation does not expect its rights to explore, develop and exploit any of its unproved property to

expirc within the nexi year.
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The Corporation engaged Sayer to prepare an independent evaluation of the undeveloped land acreage of
the Corporation as at December 31, 2006. In the Sayer Report a fair value of approximately $16.2 million or
approximately $206.85 per gross hectare was assigned 1o Connacher's non-reserve oil and gas properties. This
equates to approximately $83.06 per gross acre. In determining the market value, Sayer based their evaluation on
the following factors:

1. ‘The acquisition cost, provided that there have been no material changes in the unproved property,
the surrounding properties, or the general oil and gas climate since the acquisition;

2. Recent sales by others of interests in the same unproved property,

3. Terms and conditions, expressed in monetary terms, of recent farm-in agreements related to the
unproved properties;

4. Terms and conditions, expressed in monetary terms, of recent work commitments related to the
unproved property; and

5. Recent sales of similar properties in the same general area.
This complies with the criteria set out in paragraph (a), subsection (2), Section 5,10 of NI 51-101.

Pursuant to the Corporation's discretionary capital program for 2007, Connacher anticipaies dirccling the
majority of its 2007 capital budget on the completion of its development project at Great Divide. Additional capital
and related budgetary allocations will be required during 2007 once a final determination is made regarding
transportation and development of the Corporation's next Pod.

Assct Retirement Obligations

The Corporation follows the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' standard on Asset Retirement
Obligations. This standard requires liability recognition for retirement obligations associated with long-lived assets,
which would include abandonment of oil and natural gas wells, related facilities, compressors and gas plants,
removal of equipment from leased acreage and returning such land to its original condition. Under the standard, the
estimated fair value of each asset retirement obligation is recorded in the period a well or related asset is drilled,
constructed or acquired. Fair value is estimated using the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to
abandon the asset at the Corporation's credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. The obligation is reviewed regularly by
management based upon current regulations, costs, technologies and indusiry standards. The discounted obligation
is recognized as a liability and is accreted against income until it is settled or the property is sold and is included as a
component of depletion and depreciation expense. Actual restoration expenditures are charged to the accumulated
obligation as incurred.

As at December 31, 2006, the estimated total undiscounted amount required to setile the asset retirement
obligations in respect of the Corporation's 151 net producing and non-producing wells, net of estimaled salvage
recoveries, was $17.4 million. These obligations will be settted over the useful lives of the undertying assets, which
currently extend up to 20 years. The 10% discounted present value of this amount is $4.8 million. Over the next
three financial years, the Corporation expects to incur $461,000 (§389,000 discounted at 10%) of these expenditures.

In the Connacher GLJ Report, abandonment costs for total proved plus probable plus possible reserves
were cstimated to be $13.7 million, undiscounted, and $3.0 million, discounted at 10%. These cstimates are in
respect of well costs only and do not include costs o abandon pipelines and facilities, which the Corporation has
included in determining its asset retirement obligation.

Tax Herizon
Income earned in Canada is not expected 1o attract taxes until the Corporation utilizes its accumulated tax

pools and loss carry forwards, which exceed $300 million. Based on anticipated capital spending, which augment
the tax pools, the Corporation does not expect to pay current income taxes for the 2006 [iscal year. Depending on
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production, commodity prices and capital spending levels, the Corporation may begin paying current income taxes
in 2007.

Production Estitnates

The following table sets forth the volume of working interest production, before royalties, estimated for
2007 which is reflected in the estimate of future net revenue disclosed in the tables of reserve information in respect
of total gross proved plus probable reserves:

Light Crude Oil Natural Gas Natural Gas Liquids Bitumen
(mbbl) {(mmcl) (bbl) (mbbl)
407 4,122 - 767

The following table indicates the volume of working interest production, before royalties, estimated for
2007 from fields considered to be individually important:

Light Crude Ol  Natural Gas  Natural Gas Liquids Bitnien
(mbbl) (el {mbbl} {(mbbl)
Battrurn, Saskatchewan 301 - - -
Marten Creek, Alberta - 3,018 - -
Great Divide, Alberta - - - 767

Production Ilistory

The following table sets forth certain information in respect of production, product prices received,
royaliies, production costs and netbacks received by the Corporation for each quarter of its most recently completed

financial year:

Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended

March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006 Seplember 30, 2006 December 31, 2006

Average Daily Production

Light and Medium Oil (bb¥/d) 689 1,026 1,084 1,139

Natueal Gas (mcf/d) 2,600 15172 13,028 11,291
Average Net Prices Received

Light and Medium Oil ($/bbl) $40.93 $61.45 $62.53 $46.65

Natural Gas ($/mef) $6.34 $5.66 $5.33 $6.57
Royalties

Light and Medium Gil ($/bbl) $8.25 $15.31 $15.63 $0.97

Natural Gas ($/mef) $1.28 $1.41 $1.32 $1.40
Production Costs

Light and Medium Oil ($/bbl} $8.46 $11.20 $11.86 $10.26

Natural Gas ($/mef) $1.31 $1.03 $1.01 $1.45
Netback Received

Eight and Medium Oil ($/bbl) $24.22 $34.94 $35.13 $26.42

Natural Gas ($/mcf) $3.75 $122 $3.00 $3n

‘The following 1able indicales the Corporation's average daily production for the year ended December 31,
2006 from {iclds considered to be individually important:

Light Crude Oil Natural Gas Matural Gas Liquids
(bbls/d) (mecl/d) (bbls/d)
Batirum, Saskatchewan 723 - -
Muarten Creck, Albena - 9,869 -
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Competitive Conditions

The petroleum and natural gas industry is competitive in all aspects. Connacher competes with numerous
other companies for access to capital to fund its exploration and development activities. It also competes with other
companies in the search for exploration and development prospects and in the marketing of its production.

Connacher attempts to enhance its competitive position by:

- focusing on a limited number of core arcas;

- maintaining high working interests;

- wherever possible, operating properties;

- securing control over infrastructure such as pipelines and gas processing facilities;

- employing highly competent professional staff who use leading-edge technology; and
- striving 1o be a low-cost producer.

Supplemental Information Regurding the Corporation's Bitumen Reserves

The following is a summary of the bitumen reserves and the value of future net revenue of the Corporation
as at December 31, 2006 as evaluated by GLI in the Connacher GLI Report. The Connacher GLJ Report was
prepared using assumptions and methodology guidelines outlined in the COGE Handbook and in accordance with
NI 51-101. The pricing used in the forecast and constant price evaluations is included in the notes set forth on page
14 of this Annua! Information Form.

BITUMEN RESERVES AND NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes After Deducting Income Taxes
Bitumen Discounted At Discounted At

Gross™’ Net™ 0% 5% 10% 15% 0% 0% 5% 10% 15% 2%

{mbbl} {mbbl) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) (MS) (M$) (M) (M$)
Totat Proved @ 43,841 39,808 $20,514 313409 190,72t 114067 63883 404,453 241,216 143,596 81,991 41,249
Total Probable®™ 407306 3440 777,149 344277 IBS677 121873 93,375 551068 245573 136150 93361 74818
Proved Plus Probable
Undeveloped®®™ 84147 74148 297,663 657,686 376395 235540 157,258 955521 486789 279,46 175352 1160W
Total Possible® 15714 21626 613,266 00768 87,661 51,283 37084 435225 142313 63256 3819 28440
Proved Pius nd‘:'fc"l:'l’: S 109860 95T 190927  BSRASS ds405 WM 194N 1INT6 6P 007 234N 144,517

BITUMEN RESERVES AND NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
Before I}educting Income Toxes After Deducting Income Taxes'
Bitumen Discounted At Discounted At

Gross®  Net™ 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 0% 0% 10% 15% 20%

(mbbl)  (mbbl) (M$) (M$) (M$) (M) (M$) (MS$) (M$) (M$) (M%) (M$)
Total Proved® 43841 39,607 449563 272700 166285 98815 54049 354251 212757 126770 71688 34767
Total Probable®™ 40306 33958 568444 266,558 154039 107743 86410 403378 191,289 114364 83767 70,156
Proved Plus Probable
Undeveloped®™®™ 84147 13,565  LOIB007 539,258 320324 206558 140,459 TSI 404046 241134 155455 104973
Total Possible™ 25714 21,425 12227 139,383 61678 43387 33241 278,500 99,304 49,235 32557 25703
Proved Plus Probable Plus
[l;)(();s:iglc Undeveloped 109,561 94990 1410234 67864 388,002 249945 173700 1036138 303,350 200369 188012 130,626

A3T)
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Supplemental Information Reparding the Corporation's Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following is a summary of the crude oil and natural gas reserves and the value of future net revenue of
the Corporation as at December 31, 2006 as evaluated by GLJ in the Connacher GLJ Report. The Connacher GIJ
Report was prepared using assumptions and methodology guidelines outlined in the COGE Handbook and in
accordance with NI 51-101. The pricing used in the forecast and constant price evaluations is included in the notes
set forth on page 14 of this Annual Information Form.

CRUDE OIL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Light/Medivm Crude Oil Natural Gas Natural Gas Liquids

Grossh Net™ Grass' Nel® Gross™ Net™

{anbbl) {anbbl) (mnef) {mnef) (mbbl) (mbbl)
Proved Developed Producing™® 2,106 1,742 21,524 17,607 1 1
Proved Developed Non-Producing™® - - 3,167 2,615 - -
Proved Undeveloped!™® 315 240 - - . -
Total Proved™ 2,421 1,983 24,691 20,221 1 1
Total Probable®™ 786 632 8,769 7,158 - -
Total Proved Plus Probahle®® 3,207 2,615 33,460 27.379 2 1

NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes After Deducting Income Taxes
Discounted At Discounted At

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 1% 5% 10% 15% 0%

{M$) {M3) {M$) (M$) M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) {M$) (M%)
Proved Developed Producing®® 159,543 127,039 105942 91,259 80,557 150364 120,756 101435 §7,927 17,968
Proved Developed Non- 15,781 12,553 10,236 8,518 7,209 11,168 8,584 7.241 6,021 5,092
Producing®®
Proved Undeveloped™ ™ 7,963 6,541 54093 4,698 4077 5,584 4,616 3,890 3,333 2,896
Total Proved™ 183,286 146,133 121,672 104,504 91,844 167,117 134255 112,566 97,282 85,956
Total Probable™ 73,053 45,012 30,739 22,557 17,433 52,547 32,104 21,850 16,022 12,389
Total Proved Plus Probable® 256,339 191,145 152,411 127,062 109277 219565 166,359 134416 113,303 08,345

CRUDE OIL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®

Light/Medium Crude Oil Natural Gas Natural Gas Liquids

Gross'! Net™ Gross? Net® Gross™ Net™
(mmbbl} (mbbl) (mimel) (mmncl) (mbbl) {mbbl)
Proved Developed Pmducing‘w’ 2,125 1,759 21,531 17,611 1 1
Proved Developed Non-Producing™® - - 3,167 2,615 - -
Proved Undeveloped ™™ 315 240 - - - -
Total Proved™ 2,440 1,999 24,698 20,226 1 1
Total Probable® 794 640 8,769 1157 - -
Total Proved Plus Probable®™® 3,234 2,639 33,467 27,383 2 1

NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes After Deducting Income Toxes
[t ed At Discounted At
0% 5% 10% 13% W% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

(M$) (M%) (M3} {M$) (M%) (M$) {M$) (M3} (MS) (M$)

Proved Developed Producing®? 127,893 103,715 87,603 76,174 67,605 127,532 103,517 87,491 16,109 67,627
Proved Developed Non-

Producing®*® 10,939 8,770 7,194 6,012 5,104 1767 6,558 5.610 4852 4,236
Proved Undeveloped™® 7963 6,544 5,499 4,706 4,087 5,552 4,651 3,981 3,467 1,060
Total Proved® 146,795 119029 100,296 86,802 76,856 140,850 114,726 97,083 84,428 74,923
Tota! Probable® 52,668 34,316 24,358 18,306 14,473 38,404 24,590 17,296 12,983 10,211
Tota! Proved Plus Probable®? 199,462 153,345 124,654 105,257 91,329 179,254 139,316 114,379 97,410 85,134

2120 -



82-34954

Qil and Gas Resources

The Connacher GLJ Report also provided calculations of Contingent Resources comprised of "Low
Estimate Resources (>15 metre Pay) - higher certainty”, together with "Best Estimate Resources (13 metre Pay) -
likely certainty” and "High Estimate Resources (>10 metre Pay) - lower certainty". Contingent Resources are those
quantities of oil and gas estimated on a given date 1o be polentially recoverable from known accumulations bul are
not currently economic. Low Estimate recoverable resources are comprised of mapped original oil-in-place
assigned to Pod One (>15 metre Pay) with a fower recovery Tactor than are applied to the estimate of 2P reserves.
Best Estimate Resources are comprised of 2P remaining recoverable reserves together with an estimate of
recoverable resources attributable to five other pods on Connacher’s lands, High Estimate Resources (lower
certainty) include 3P recoverable reserves at Pod One together with recoverable resources at the other five Pods on
Connacher’s acreage, but with a larger aerial extent and a higher recovery factor than attributable under the Best
Estimate Category.

Only Pod One had sufficient well and seismic control to warrant the assignment cf reserves. The other five
pods had insufficient drilling density, seismic mapping or project definition at December 31, 2006 to be categorized
as reserves at this time. Additional drilling and seismic activity could result in upgrading these to reserve status over
time. In the interim, a range of Contingent Resources was assigned to reflect uncertainties. The GLJ Connacher
Report also recognized Best Estimate and High Estimate Prospective Resources attribuiable to undiscovered pods,
utilizing average paramelers from six identifiable pods, including Pod One. Prospective Resources are those
quantities of oil and gas estimated on a given date to be potentially recoverable from undiscovered accumulations.
If discovered, they would be technically and economically viable to recover. There is no certainty that the
Prospective Resources will be discovered. This year, calculations of the present value of the future cash flow from
remaining recoverable reserves, and, remaining recoverable resources (Contingent and Prospective) were included
for the total Great Divide lands, not just Pod One.

Future Net Revenue

Before Tax Before Tax Beflore Tax
Present Volue  Present Value  Present Value
Marketoble Reserves, Tetal Company Interest Net Alter Royalty of 0% at 5% at 10%
Resottr ces {mbbl) {mbbl} M$ M M$
Bitumen il Equivalent Bitumen il Equivalent

1P Reserves and Low Estimate
Contingent Resources 10,533 70,533 65,144 65,144 766,350 437718 243,198
2P Rescrves and Best Estimate
Contingent Resources - 187,818 187,818 167317 167,317 2,884,883 1,216,744 584,014
3P  Reserves  and  High
Estimatc Contingent Resources 265,723 265,723 235115 235,115 4,319,102 1742767 813,795
1P Reserves 2nd Low Estimate
Total Recoverable Resources 110,477 110,477 99,522 99,522 1,392,950 803,222 486,727
2P Reserves and Low Estimate
Total Recoverable Resources 260,625 260,625 32417 232417 ¢ 3,872,084 1,661,404 778,093
3P Reserves and Low Estimate
Total Recoverable Resources 478,953 478,953 423,708 423,708 8,038,038 2,898,700 1,245,053
Totnl 1,374,129 1,374,129 1,223,223 1,223,223 21,293,467 8,760,555 4,150,880

The estimated future net revenues contained in the forcgoing tables do not necessarily represent the fair
market value of the Corporation’s reserves and resources.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

As of the date of this Annual Information Form the name, municipality of residence, positions held with the
Corporation and principal occupation during the preceding five years of each of the directors and officers of the

Corporation are as follows:

Name and Municipality Principal Occupation During the Preceding Director
of Residence Pasitions Held Five Years Since

Richard A. Gusella President, Chief President and Chief Executive Officer of May 30,
Calgary, Alberta Executive Officer  Connacher since May 2001 and Petrolifera from 2001
Canada and Director November 2004 1o March 2005.  Executive

Chairman of Petrolifera since March 2005,

President of Gusella Oil Investments Limited, an

inactive private investment corporation.
Charles W. Berard®® Director Partner, Macleod Dixon LLP, a law firm. May 30,
Calgary, Alberta 2001
Canada
D. Hugh BessellP@0x4 Director Businessman. Prior thereto, Deputy Chairman  December
Toronto, Ontario and Chief Operating Officer of KPMG LLP. 1, 2005
Canada
Colin M. Evans"®@@X3) Director Vice President, Finance, Milestone Exploration  April 5,
Calgary, Alberta Inc., a private oil and natural gas exploration and 2004
Canada production company. President of Evans & Co.

Inc., a private consulting corporation providing

financial and operating advisory services to oil

and gas corporations from 1994 to 2004.
Stewart D, Director President of Camun Consulting Corporation, a  June 12,
McGregor@@XD private investment holding company, since 1994, 2003
Calgary, Alberta
Canada
W.C. (Mike) Seth™®®  Director President, Seth Consuliants Ltd. a private December
Calgary, Alberta ‘ consulting firm.  Prior thereto Chairman of 9, 2005

Canada

Richard R. Kines
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Peter 1. Sametz
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Vice President,
Finance and Chiefl
Financial Officer

Executive Vice
President and
Chief Operating
Officer

McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. and
prior thereto, President and Managing Director of
McDaniel & Associates Consultants Lid.

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer since December 2004 and Chief Financial
Officer of Connacher since June 2003, Prior
thereto, financial consultant of Connacher since
April 2002.

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of Connacher since December 2004.
From February 2004, Vice President Operations
of Connacher. Prior thercto, simultancously
Chief Operating Officer and a director of Surge
Petroleum Inc., a public oil company listed on the
TSX Venture Exchange since July 2000 and a
Principal of Inline Pelrolenm Management
Incorporated from 1997 to February 2004,



Name and Municipality

of Residence

Positions Held
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Principal Oceupation During the Preceding
Five Years

Director
Since

Timothy I. O'Rourke
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Stephen A. Marston
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Cameron M. Todd
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Darren P. lackson
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Stephen J. De Maio

Vice President, Oil
Sands Operations

Vice President,
Exploration

Vice President,
Refining and
Marketing

Vice President,
Operations

Vice President,

Vice President, Oil Sands Operations of
Connacher since December 2004, Prior thereto,
General Manager, Production of Connacher since
August 2001. Prior thercto, consultant to
Connacher.

Vice President, Exploration of Connacher since
January 2005. Prior thereto, Chief Geophysicist
of Real Resources Inc. since January 2001,

Vice President, Refining and Marketing of
Connacher since May 2006. Prior thereto, Vice
Presidemt, Worldwide Marketing of [Dioneer
Natural Resources from June 2002 to May 2006.

Vice President, Operations of Connacher since
November 2006. Pror therete, Production
Manager of Canetic Resources Trust from April
2003 to November 2006 and prior thereto
Production Engineer of Encana Corporation from
May 1994 to April 2003.

Vice President, Project Development of

Calgary, Alberta Project Connacher since November 2006 and Consultant

Canada Development Engineer of Connacher from March 2006 to
November 2006. Prior thereto, Consultant
Engineer of Total E&P Canada from August
2005 to August 2006 and of Deer Creek Energy
Limited from March 2005 to August 2005. Chief
Executive Officer of Efficient Energy Ltd. from

] December 2000 to March 2005.

Grant D. Ukrainetz Treasurer Treasurer of Connacher since June 2006. Prior

Calgary, Alberta thereto, Supervisor, Treasury of Talisman Energy

Canada Inc. and prior thereto Treasury and Risk
Management Analyst of Talisman Energy Inc.

Jennifer K. Kennedy Secretary Partner, Macleod Dixon LLP, a law firm, since

Calgary, Alberta January 2000,

Canada

Noles:

(1} Member of the Audit Committee.

(2) Member of the Human Resources Comgmittee.

3) Member of the Governance Commitiee,

(4) Member of the Reserves Committee.

(5) Member of the Health, Safety and Environment Commitiee.

{0} Connacher does not have an Executive Committee.

N Lead Director.

As at March 23, 2007, the directors and executive officers of Connacher, as a group, beneficially owned,
directly or indirectly, or ¢xercised control or direction over 3,641,787 Common Shares constituting approximately
one percent of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition and Qualificalions

The Corporation's Audit Commitlee consists of three outside and independent direciors, Messrs. Bessell,
Chair, Seth and Evans. The Board has determined that all of ihe members of the Audit Committee are "linancially
literate” as defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-110. An individual is considered financially literate if he has the
ability to read and understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and complexity of accounting
issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can reasonably be expected to be
raised by the issuer's financial staiements. In addition, D. Hugh Bessell has, bascd upon his experience and
educational background, been determined by the Board to be an "audit committee financial expert”. The education
and experience of each member of the Corporation's Audit Committee relevant to the performance of his
responsibilities are as set forth below:

D. Hugh Bessell, Chair

Mr. Bessell is a chartered accountant by training and has an extensive accounting background. He retired
as a partner of KPMG LLP in December, 1999 after holding the position of Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating
Officer, which position he held for approximately six years. He spent a total of 33 years with KPMG LLP and its
predecessor firms, and was Managing Partner of the firm's Calgary office immediately prior to assuming the role of
Deputy Chairman in 1993, Mr. Bessell was a member of the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Alberta and served as its President for a period of time. Mr. Bessell has been granted the FCA designation by both
the Alberta and the Ontario Institutes of Chartered Accountants in recognition of his support and contributions to his
profession and community. His expertise is particularly important in his capacity as Chairman of the Corporation's
Audit Committee and Mr. Bessell has been determined to be an "audit committee financial expert”.

W.C. (Mike Seth)

Mr. Seth is an engineer by training and holds a Bachelors of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering
from the University of British Columbia. He is President of Seth Consultants Ltd., a private consulting firm, and
prior thereto he served as Chairman of McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd., one of the pre-eminent oil and
natural gas reserve evaluators in Canada and internationally. Prior to becoming Chairman of McDaniel Mr. Seth
was President and Managing Director of McDaniel for 37 years. Mr. Seth serves on the boards of various other
junior oil and gas companies (reporting and non-reporting issuers) and of one senior oil and gas income fund. He is
also the founder and a director of Energy Navigator Inc., a private software development firm servicing the
petroleum indusiry.

Colin M. Evans

Mr. Evans holds a Bachelors Degree in Economics from the University of Alberta and has had an cxtensive
business career in most facets of the oil and gas industry since the mid 1960's. He has worked in positions of
increasing responsibility with both large and small private and public companies. He has also worked in the
Canadian securities industry and more recently has advised a variety of oil companies on both operational and
financial matters. Mr. Evans is currently Vice President, Finance of Milestone Exploration Inc., a private oil and
natural gas exploration and production company. From 1994 to 2004 Mr. Evans was the President of Evans & Co.
Inc., a private consulting corporation providing financial and operating advisory services to oil and gas corporations.

Mr. Evans served as Chair of the Corporation's Audit Committee from March 23, 2005 to December 1,
2005.

Responsibilities and Terms of Reference
The Audit Commitiee reviews with management and the external auditors, and recommends to the board of
directors for approval, the annual financial statements of the Corporation and the reports of the external auditors

thereon, the interim financial statements of the Corporation and related financial reporting, including management's
discussion and analysis and earnings press relcases on the annual and interim financial statements of the
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Corporation. The Audit Committee reviews and establishes, in conjunction with the external auditors and
management, audit plans and procedures and meets with the auditors independemtly of management when
considered appropriale. The Audit Commitlee is responsible for reviewing auditor independence, approving all non-
audit scrvices, reviewing and making recommendations to the board of directors on internal control procedures and
management information systems. In addition, the Committee is responsible for assessing and reporting to the Board
on linancial risk management positions. Set out as Schedule D is the text of the Audit Commitice’s charter.

All permissible categories of non-audit services require pre-approval from the Audit Commiltee.
External Auditlor Service Fees

The following summarizes the total fees paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP, the cxternal auditor of the
Corporation, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005:

2006 2005
Audit fees $ 136943 $ 75,000
Review engagement fees - 20,0008
Tax fees . 1,750%
All other related fees™ 88,301 84,057
TOTAL 3 225244 $ 180,807
Notes:
(N Review of the Corporation's interim financial statements.
(2 Tax planning and compliance,
3) Services relsted to corperate and property acquisitions and prospectus financings.

Deloitte & Touche LLP are independent within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Alberta.
PERSONNEL

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had 39 employees at its head office in Calgary. The Corporation
has one field office, with one employee and three contract operators.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares, an unlimited number of
first preferred shares and an unlimited number of second preferred shares (together, "Preferred Shares”), issuable in
series, of which as at December 31, 2006, 197,894,015 Common Shares and no Preferred Shares were issued and
outstanding. The following is a summary of the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the
Common Shares and Preferred Shares of the Corporation.

Common Sharcs

The holders of Common Shares are entitled to: dividends if, as and when declared by the board of direclors;
to one vole per share at meetings of the holders of Common Sharcs of the Corporation; and upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation 1o reccive pro rata the remaining property and assets of the
Corporation, subject o the rights of shares having priority over the Common Shares. All of the Common Shares
currently outstanding are fully-paid and non-assessable,

Preferred Shares

The Preferred Shares are issuable in series and each class of Preferred Shares will have such rights,
restrictions, conditions and limitations as the board of directors may from time to time determine. The holders of
Preferred Shares are cntitled, in priority to holders of Common Shares, to be paid rateably with holders of each other
series of Preferred Shares the amount of accumulated dividends, if any, specified to be payatle preferentially to the
holders of such series and upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, to be paid rateably with
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holders of cach other series of Preferred Shares the amount, if any, specified as being payable preferentially to
holders of such series.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Corporation has not declared or paid any dividends on its Common Shares since incorporation. Any
decision 1o pay dividends on the Common Shares will be made by the board of direclors on the basis of the
Corporation’s earnings, [inancial requirements and other conditions that the board of directors may consider
appropriate in the circumstances.

MARKET FOR SECURITIES
The Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the trading symbol "CLL". The
following table sets out the high and low price for, and the volume of trading in, the Common Shares on the TSX, as

reported by the TSX, on 2 monthiy basis for the financial year ended December 31, 2006.

Monthly Price Range

Yolume High Low

(000's) % $)
January 58,320,073 6.07 347
February 57,514,454 5.84 4.29
March 32,349,746 523 4.64
April 31,868,409 5.05 3.52
May 27,584,050 4,70 3.60
June 20,894,660 442 3.10
July 14,235,409 4.55 3.68
August 13,548,578 4.33 3.76
September 21,065,085 4.13 3.09
October 20,468,912 4.43 317
November 13,414,044 4.21 3.51
December 12,561,871 3,78 3.37

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Connacher Shares is Valiant Trust Company at its principal office in
Calgary, Alberta and BNY Trust Company of Canada at its principal office in Toronto, Ontario.

RISK FACTORS
The Corporation

An investment in the Corporation is subject 1o certain risks related to the nature of the Corporation's
business and its prescnt stage of development. There are numerous factors which may affect the success of the
Corporation's business which are beyond the Corporation’s control including local, national and international
cconomic and political conditions. The Corporation’s business invelves a high degree of risk which a combination
of experience, knowledge and careful evaluation may not overcome. The Corporation’s investment in Petrolifera
exposes the Corporation to risks which may not exist for domestic operations such as political and currency risks.
The Corporation has a limiled history of operations and earnings and there can be no assurance that the
Corporation's business will be successful or profitable or that commercial quantities of oil and natural gas will be
discovered by the Corporation. The Corporation has not paid any dividends and it is unlikely to pay dividends in the
immediate or foreseeable future.
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Additional Financing

Depending on future exploration, development, acquisition and divestiture plans, the Corporation will
require additional financing. The ability of the Corporation to arrange such financing in the future will depend in
part upon the prevailing capital market conditions as well as the business performance of the Corporation. There
can be no assurance that the Corporation will be successful in its efforts to arrange additional financing on terms
satisfactory to the Corporation. Il additional financing is raised by the issuance of shares from treasury of the
Corporation, control of the Corporation may change and sharcholders may suffer additional dilution.

From time to time the Corporation may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other
corporations. These transactions may be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may temporarily increase the
Corporation's debt levels above industry standards.

Industry Conditions

The oil and gas industry is intensely competitive and the Corporation competes with other companies
which possess greater technical and financial resources. Many of these competitors not only explore for and
produce oil and natural gas but, also carry on refining operations and market petroleum and other products on an
international basis. Oil and gas production operations are also subject to all the risks typically associated with such
operations, including premature decline of reservoirs and invasion of water into producing formations.

The marketability and price of oil and natural gas which may be acquired or discovered by the Corporation
will be affected by numerous factors beyond the control of the Corporation. The ability of the Corporation to
market any natural gas discovered may depend upon its ability to acquire space on pipelines which deliver natural
gas to commercial markets. The Corporation is also subject to market fluctuations in the prices of oil and natural
gas, uncertainties related to the delivery and proximity of its reserves to pipelines and processing facilities and
extensive government regulation relating to prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure, allowable production, the export of
oil and gas 2nd many other aspects of the oil and gas business. The Corporation is also subject to a variety of waste
disposal, pollution control and similar environmental laws.

The oil and gas industry in Canada, including the oil sands industry, operates under federal, provincial and
municipal legislation and regulation governing such matters as land tenure, prices, royalties, production rates,
environmental protection controls, income, the exportation of crude oil, natural gas and other products, as well as
other matters. The industry is also subject to regulation by governments in such matters as the awarding or
acquisition of exploration and production rights, oil sands or other interests, the imposition of specific drilling
obligations, environmental protection controls, control over the development and abandonment of fields and mine
sites (including restrictions on production) and possibly expropriation or cancellation of contract rights.

Government regulations may be changed from time to lime in response to economic or political conditions.
The exercise of discretion by governmental authorities under existing regulations, the implementation of new
regulations or the modification of existing regulations affecting the crude oil and natural gas industry could reduce
demand for crude oil and natural gas, increase the Corporation’s costs and have a material adverse impact on the
Corporation.

The oil and natural gas industry is subject to varying environmental regulations in each of the jurisdictions
in which the Corporation may operate. Environmental regulations place restrictions and prohibitions on emissions
of various substances produced concurrently with oil and natural gas and can impact on the selection of drilling sites
and facility locations, potentially resulting in increased capital expenditures.

Stage of Development of Connacher

There is a risk that design and construction of the facilitics and infrastructure to support the Corporation’s
Great Divide oil sands project will not be completed on time, on budget or at all. Additionally, there is a nisk that
the Greal Divide project may have delays, interruptions of operations or increased costs due to many factors,

including, without limitation:

. inability to attract or retain sufficient numbers of qualificd workers;
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. breakdown or lailure of equipment or processes;

. construciion performance falling below expected levels of output or efficiency;
. design errors;

. non-performance by, or financial failure of, third-party contraciors;

labour disputes, disruptions or declines in productivity;
increases in materials or labour costs;

. conditions imposed by regulatory approvals;

. delays induced by weather;

. disruption or delays in availability of transporlation services;
» errors in consiruction;

. changes in Greal Divide's scope;

. unforeseen site surface or subsurface conditions;

. transportation or construction accidents;

. permit requirement violation,

. reservoir performance;

. energy supply disruption; and

. shortages of or delays in accessing drilling rigs and services.

The Great Divide project is not being constructed on a turn-key basis. Additionally, given the state of
development of the Great Divide project, various changes to the project may be made. Based upon current
scheduling, the project is not expected to start commercial SAGD operations until mid-summer 2007. The
information contained herein, including, without limitation, reserve and economic evaluaticns, is conditional upon
receipt of all regulatory approvals and no material changes being made to the project or its scope. The industry is
entering a period where unprecedented oil sands development and +industrial activity is planned at a time when
activity in many other sectors is also high. Connacher will need to compete for equipment, supplies, services, and
labour in this environment which could result in increased costs, shortages of goods and services that delay progress,
or both. Increased competition for equipment, materials and labour may result in increased costs that could have a
material adverse effect on Connacher's business, financial condition or results of operations. As such, there are risks
associated with project cost estimates provided by Connacher. Cost estimates are provided prior to completion of
final scope design and detailed engineering needed to reduce the margin of error. Accordingly, actual costs may
vary from estimates and these differences may be material.

Operating Cosls

The operating costs of the Great Divide project, which have the potential to vary considerably, are
significant components of the cost of production of the petroleum products produced by the Great Divide project.
The operating costs of the Great Divide project may vary considerably during the operating period. The factors
which could affect operating costs include, without limitation;

the amount and cost of labour to operate the Great Divide project;
the cost of catalyst and chemicals;

. the actual stcam oil ratio required to operate the SAGD well pairs;

. the cost of natural gas and electricity;

. power outages, particularty in winter when frecze-ups could occur;

. produced sand causing issucs of erosion, hot spots and corrosion;

. reliability of the facilities;

. the maintenance cost of the facilities;

. the cost to transport sales products and the cost to dispose of certain by-products; and
. the cost of insurance; and

. catasirophic events such as fires, carthquakes, storms or explosions.

Connacher's earnings may be reduced if increases in operating costs are incurred.
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Infrastructiure for the Great Divide Project

Connacher will depend, 1o a large exient, on third party designers, contractors and suppliers 1o design and
construct the necessary facilities and infrastructure for the Great Divide project. Connacher also anticipates that it
will rely on certain infrastructure owned and operated or to be constructed by others, including, without limitation,
pipelines for the transportation of diluent and produced bitumen to the market, natural gas, water source and disposal
pipelines and electrical grid transmission lines for the provision and/or sale of clectricity to Connacher, The failure
of any or all of these third parties to supply utilities, services or construct the infrastructure required to complete the
Great Divide project on a limely basis and on acceptable commercial terms will negatively impact Connacher’s
operaiion and financial results.

In-situ Extraction

Current SAGD technologies for in-situ recovery of heavy oil and bitumen are energy intensive, requiring
significant consumption of natural gas and other fuels in the production of steam which is used in the recovery
process. The amount of steam required in the production process can also vary and impact costs. The performance
of the reservoir can also impact the timing and levels of production using this technology. Commercial application
of this technology is relatively new and accordingly in the absence of long-term operating history there can be no
assurances with respect Lo the sustainability of SAGD operations.

Seasonality of Refining Operations and Sales

The Refinery is subject to a number of seasonal factors which may cause product sales revenues to vary
throughout the year. The Refinery’s primary asphalt market is paving for road construction which is predominantly a
summer demand. Consequently, prices and volumes for our asphalt tend to be higher in the summer and lower in the
colder seasons and during the winter most of the Refinery’s asphalt production is stored in tankage for sale in the
subsequent summer. Seasonal factors also affect gasoline (higher demand in summer months) and distillate and
diesel (higher winter demand). As a result, inventory levels, sales volumes and prices can be expected to fluctuate on
a seasonal basis.

Recovery of Bitumen

Recovering bitumen from oil sands involves particular risks and uncertainties. The project is susceptible to
loss of production, slowdowns, or restrictions on its ability to produce higher value products due to the
interdependence of its component systems, Severe weather conditions can cause reduced production and in some
situations result in higher costs. SAGD bitumen recovery facilities and development and expansion of production
can entail significant capital outlays. Ecquipment failures could result in damage to Connacher's facilities or wells
and liability to third parties against which Connacher may not be able to fully insure or may elect not to insure
because of high premium costs or for other reasons. The costs associated with synthetic crude oil production are
largely fixed and, as a result, operating costs per unit are largely dependent on levels of production.

Access to Diluent Supplies al Favourable Prices

Bitumen is characterized by high specific gravity or weight and low viscosity or resistance to {low. Among
its other uses, diluent is required 1o Tacilitate the Lransportation of bitumen. A shortfall in the supply of diluent may
causc its price to increasc thereby increasing the cost to transport bitumen to market and correspondingly increasing
Connacher's operating cost, decreasing its net revenues and negatively impacting the overall profitabilily of the
Great Divide oil sands project.

Transportation

It is expected that the Corporation will initially truck bitumen to market. Normal hazards associaled with
trucking include proximity to a busy highway (Highway 63) and traffic.

Vehicular traffic 1o and from the Great Divide site will be via Highway 63 for the life of the project.
Collisions between vehicles and wildlife remain a significant hazard.
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Travel by air into the Fort McMurray area is increasing dramatically as oil sands development continucs.
This, too, is an cmerging issue for all operators.

Operational Hazards

The operation of the Great Divide project and the other oil and gas properties of the Corporation will be
subject to the customary hazards of recovering, transporting and processing hydrocarbons, such as fires, explosions,
gascous leaks, migration of harmful substances, blowouts and oil spills, A casually occurrence might result in the
loss of cquipment or life, as well as injury or property damage. The Corporation will not carry insurance with
respect to all potential casualty occurrences and disruptions. It cannot be assured that the Corporatien’s insurance
will be sufficient to cover any such casualty occurrences or disruptions. The project could be interrupted by natural
disasters or other events beyond the control of the Corporation. Losses and liabilities arising from uninsured or
under insured cvents could have a material adverse effect on the project and on the Corporation's business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Abandonment and Reclamation Cosls

Connacher will be responsible for compliance with terms and conditions of environmental and regulatory
approvals and all laws and regulations regarding the abandonment of the Great Divide project and reclamation of its
lands at the end of its economic life, which abandonment and reclamation costs may be substantial. A breach of such
legislation and/or regulations may result in the imposition of fines and penalties, including an order for cessation of
operations at the site until satisfactory remedies are made. In the future Connacher may determine it prudent or be
required by applicable laws or regulations to establish and fund one or more reclamation funds to provide for
payment of future abandonment and reclamation costs.

The Corporation has not recorded an asset retirement obligation for the Montana Refinery as it is currently
the Corporation's intent to maintain and upgrade the Refinery so that it will be operational for the foreseeable future.
Consequently, it is not possible at the present time to estimate a date or range of dates for settlement of any asset
retirement obligation related to the Refinery.

Independent Reviews

Although third parties have prepared reviews, reports and projections relating to the viability and expected
performance of the Great Divide project, it cannot be assured that these reports, reviews and projections and the
assumptions on which they are based will, over time, prove to be accurate.

Volatility of Refinery Margins

Connacher will Tace certain risks associated with the volatility of refinery margins. Refinery operations are
sensitive to wholesale and retail margins for refined products, including asphalt and gasoline. Margin volatility is
influenced by overall marketplace competitiveness, weather, the cost of crude oil and fluctuations in supply and
demand for refined products.

New U.S, Government Standards on Content of Refined Products

An initiative of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency on gasoline would impose reductions in
benzene content, volatility, sulphur, and other parameters. These new requirements, other requirements of the U.S.
Federal Clean Air Act, or other prescntly existing or future environmental regulations could require Connacher to
expend substantial amounts to permit MRC to produce products that meet such requirements.

Terrorist Attacks and the Threat of Tcrrurisl Allacks

The long-term impact of errorist attacks in the United States, such as the attacks on September 11, 2001,
and in Canada and the threat of future terrorist attacks on the energy transportation indusiry in gencral, and on
Connacher in particular, is not known at this time. The possibility that infrastructure facilities may be direct targets
of, or indirect casualties of, an act of terror and the implementation of security measures as a precaution against
possible terrorist attacks will result in increased costs to Connacher's business.
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Debt Service

Connacher intends 1o continue to use its credit facility and term debt to finance its conventional oil sands
and refining expenditures. Restrictive covenants governing Connacher's debt will limit the amount of debt that
Connacher may incur. Connacher's ability to make scheduled repayments or to re-finance its debt obligations will
depend upon its financial and operating performance, which in turn will depend upon prevailing industry and
general economic conditions which are beyond Connacher's control. There can be no assurance that Connacher's
operating performance, cash flow and capital resources will be sufficient to service andfor repay its debt in the
future, in which case Connacher may be required to sell assets to repay its debt, defer capital expenditures or raise
additional cquity, to the extent available. Connacher has deposited US$14 million of the proceeds of the US$180
million term debt arranged in 2006 to service this term debt until the expected start-up dale of Pod One.

Access 1o Human Resources

The labour force in the Fort McMurray and surrounding area is limited and the inability to access the
necessary skilled labourers to construct and operate Connacher's Great Divide project could have an adverse affect
on Connacher's development plans. In addition, rising personnel costs could result in increases in general and
administrative expenses and labour costs associated with the development of the project.

Competition

When operations commence, the Great Divide project will compete with other producers of bitumen and
conventional producers of oil and gas. The petroleum industry also competes with other industries in supplying
energy, fuel and related products to consumers.

A number of companies other than Connacher have announced plans to enter the oil sands business, or
expand existing operations. Expansion of existing operations and development of new projects could materially
increase the supply of bitumen in the marketplace. Depending on the levels of future demand, increased supplies
could have a negative impact on prices.

Royalty Regime

In the event that the Great Divide project is developed and becomes operational, Connacher's revenue and
expenses will be directly affected by the royalty regime applicable to the Great Divide project. The economic
benefit of future capital expenditures at Great Divide is, in many cases, dependent on a satislactory royalty regime.
There can be no assurance that the federal government and the Province of Alberta will not adopt a new royalty
regime which will make capital cxpenditurcs uneconomic or that the regime currently in place will remain
unchanged.

Risks of Foreign Investiment

Through its significant cquity interest in Petrolifera, the Corporation is subject to political, economic, and
other uncertainties, including, bul not himited to, expropriation, changes in energy policies or the personnel
administering them, currency fluctuations and devaluations, exchange controls and royalty and tax increases. In the
event of a dispute arising in conncction with Petrolifera’s operations in Argentina or prospectively in Peru or
Colombia, Petrolifera may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of forcign courts or may not be successful in
subjecting foreign persons to the jurisdictions of the courts of Canada or enforcing Canadian judgements in such
other jurisdictions. DPetrolifera may also be hindered or prevented from cnforcing its rights with respect to a
governmental instrumentality because of the doctrine of sovereign immunity. Accordingly, Petrolifera’s exploration,
development and production activities in Argentina, Peru and Colombia could be substantially aflected by faciors
beyond Petrolifera’s control, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation,

Petrolifera'’s operations may be adversely affected by changes in government policies and legislation or
social instability and other factors which are not within the control of Petrolifera including, among other things, a
change in crude oil or natural gas pricing policy, the risks of war, terrorism, abduction, expropriation,
nalionalizalion, renegotiation or nullification of existing concessions and contracts, laxation policies, economic
sanctions, the imposition of specific drilling obligations and the development and abandonment of fields. In
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addition, the natural gas produced by Petrolifera in Argentina must be sold locally at rates that may not be
comparable to international rates,

Neced to Add Reserves

The Corporation's oil and natural gas reserves and production, and therefore its cash flows and earntngs are
highly dependent upon the Corporation developing and increasing its current reserve base and discovering or
acquiring additional reserves. Without the addition of reserves through exploration, acquisition or development
activities, the Corporation's reserves and production will decline over lime as reserves are depleted. To the extent
that cash flow from operations is insufficient and external sources of capital become limited or unavailable, the
Corporation's ability to make the necessary capital investments to maintain and expand its oil and natural gas
reserves will be impaired. There can be no assurance that the Corperation will be able to find and develop or
acquire additional reserves to replace production at commercially feasible costs.

Environmental Regulation and Risks

Extensive national, state and local environmental laws and regulations in Canada and in foreign
jurisdictions affect nearly all of the operations of the Corporation. These laws and regulations set various standards
regulating certain aspects of health and environmental quality, provide for penalties and other labilities for the
violation of such standards and establish in certain circumstances obligations to remediate current and [ormer
facilities and locations where operations are or were conducted. In addition, special provisions may be appropriate
or required in environmenlally sensitive areas of operation. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will not
incur substantial financial obligations in connection with environmental compliance.

The construction, operation and decommissioning of the Corporation's oil sands projects and reclamation of
the projects’ land are conditional upon various environmental and regulatory approvals issued by governmental
authorities. There is no assurance approvals will be issued for future oil sands projects, or once issued renewed, or
that they will not contain terms and conditions which make the project uneconomic or cause the Corporation fo
significantly alter such projects.

Significant liability could be imposed on the Corporation for damages, cleanup costs or penalties in the
event of certain discharges into the environment, environmental damage caused by previous owners of properties
purchased by the Corporation or non-compliance with environmental laws or regulations. Such liability could have
a material adverse effect on the Corporation. Moreover, the Corporation cannot predict what environmental
legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future or how existing or future laws or regulations will be
administered or enforced, For example, water usage, water table and potable water issues in the Fort McMurray
area are an emerging environmental and regulatory concern. Compliance with more siringent laws or regulations, or
more vigorous enforcement policies of any regulatory authority, could in the future require material expenditures by
the Corporation for the installation and operation of systems and equipment for remedial measures, any or all of
which may have a material adverse effcet on the Corporation. The Corporation has developed a restoration plan that
has been approved.

Kyolo Accord

Canada is a signatory to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change and has ratificd the
Kyote Protocol cstablished thereunder to set legally binding targets to reduce nation-wide cmissions of carbon
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and other so-called "greenhouse gases”. The Government of Capada has put
forward a Climate Change Plan for Canada which suggests further legislation will set greenhouse gases emission
reduction requirements for various industrial activities, including oil and gas production. Future federal legislation,
together with existing provincial emission reduction legislation, such as in Alberta's Climate Change and Emissions
Management Act, may require 1he reduction of emissions andfor emissions intensity frem the Corporation's 0il and
gas exploration and development activities. The direct or indirect costs of such legislation may adversely affect the
Corporation's operations. No assurance can be given that future cnvironmental approvals, laws or regulations will
not adversely impact (i) the ability of the Corporation to conduct its operations or (ii) the Corporation's production
or (iii) the Corporation's unit costs of production. Equipment from suppliers which can meet future cmission
standards may not be available on an cconomic basis and other methods of reducing emissions 1o required levels in
the future may significantly increase operating costs or reduce output. There is a risk that the federal and/or
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provincial governments could pass legislation which would tax such emissions or require, directly or indirectly,
reductions in such emissions produced by energy industry participants, such as the Corporation. Mitigation of the
risk of fulure legislative or regulatory fimits on the emission of greenhouse gases may include the acquisition of
emission reduction or off-set credits from third parties. However, emission reduction or off-set credits may not be
available for acquisilion by the Corporation or may not be available on an economic basis and may not be
recognized or qualify under future legislative or regulatory regimes as mitigation for the emission of greenhouse
gases by the Corporation.

Volatility of Oil and Gas Prices and Markels

The Corporation's financial condition, operating results and future growth are dependent on the prevailing
prices for its oil and natural gas production. Historically, the markets for oil and natural gas have been volatile and
such markets are likely o continue to be volatile in the future. Prices for oil and natural gas are subject to large
fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes to the demand for oil and natural gas, whether the result of
uncertainty or a varicty of additional [actors beyond the control of the Corporation. Any substantial decline in the
prices of oil and natural gas could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation and the level of its oil and
natural gas reserves. Additionally, the economics of producing from some wells may change as a result of lower
prices, which could result in a suspension of production by the Corporation. No assurance can be given that oil and
natural gas prices will be sustained at levels which will enable the Corporation to operate profitably. From time to
time the Corporation may avail itself of forward sales or other forms of hedging activities with a view to mitigating
its exposure 1o the risk of price volatility.

Reserve and Resource Esfimaltes

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved, probable and possible
reserves and resources and cash flows to be derived therefrom, including many factors beyond the control of the
Corporation. The reserve, resource and cash flow information set forth in this Annual Information Form represents
estimates only. The reserves, resources and estimated future net cash flow from the Corporation’s properties have
been independently evaluated by GLJ with an effective date of December 31, 2006. These evaluations include a
number of assumptions relating to factors such as initial production rates, production decline rates, ultimate recovery
of reserves, timing and amount of capital expenditures, marketability of production, future prices of oil and natural
gas, operating costs, abandonment and salvage values, royalties and other government levies that may be imposed
over the producing life of the reserves. These assumptions were based on price forecasts in use at the date of the
relevant evaluations were prepared and many of these assumptions are subject to change and are beyond the control
of the Corporation. Actual production and cash flows derived therefrom wili vary from these evaluations, and such
variations could be material.

Estimates with respect to reserves and resources that may be developed and produced in the future are
often based upon volumetric calculations and upon analogy to similar types of reserves, rather than upon actual
production history. Estimates based on these methods generally are less reliable than those based on actual
production history. Subsequent evaluation of the same reserves based upon production history will result in
variations, which may be malerial, in the estimated reserves.

Reserve and resource estimates may require revision based on actual production experience. Such figures
have been determined based upon assumed oil prices and operating costs. Market price fluctuations of oil prices may
render uneconomic the recovery of certain grades of bitumen. Morcover, short term factors relating to oil sands
resources may impair the profitability of the Great Divide project in any particular period.

The present value of estimated future net cash flows referred to hercin should not be construed as the
current market value of estimated oil and natural gas reserves attributable to the Corporation’s properties. The
estimated discounted future cash flow from reserves are based upon price and cost estimates which may vary from
actual prices and costs and such variance could be material. Actual future net cash flows will also be affected by
factors such as the amount and timing of actual production, supply and demand for oil and natural gas, curtailments
or increases in consumption by purchasers and changes in governmental regulations or taxation.

-33.-




82-34954

Title to Propertics

Although title reviews will be done according to industry standards prior to the purchase of most oil and
natural gas producing properties or the commencement of drilling wells, such reviews do not guarantee or certify
that an unforeseen defect in the chain of title will not arise to defeat the claim of the Corporation which could result
in a reduction of the revenue received by the Corporation.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

There are potential conflicts of interest to which some of the directors and officers of the Corporation will
be subject in conneclion with the operations of the Corporation. Some of the directors and officers are engaged and
will continue to be engaged in the search of oil and gas interests on their own behalf and on behalfl of other
corporations, and situations may arise where the directors and officers will be in direct competition with the
Corporation. Additionally, certain officers and directors of the Corporation are also officers and directors of
Petrolifera and receive compensation from Petrolifera for their services. Conflicts of interest, if any, which arise
will be subject to and be governed by procedures prescribed by the ABCA which require a director or officer of a
corporation who is a party to or is a director or an officer of or has a material interest in any person who is a party to
a material contract or proposed material contract with the Corporation, to disclose his interest and to refrain from
voting on any matter in respect of such contract unless otherwise permitted under the ABCA.

Exchange Rate Risk

Revenue received from the sale of crude oil is generally referenced to a price denominated in US$. All of
MRC's business is conducted in US$. As the Corporation reports its operating results in CDNS, fluctuations in
product pricing and fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the US$ and CDNS$ would affect reported revenues
and reported results. Additionally, the Corporation maintains term debt denominated in US$. To mitigate these
risks, the Corporation has, in the past, fixed the price of a portion of its crude oil sales in CDN$.

Aboriginal Claims

Aboriginal peoples have claimed aboriginal title and rights to a substantial portion of western Canada.
Certain aboriginal peoples have filed a claim against the Government of Canada, the Province of Alberta, certain
governmental entities and the regional municipality of Wood Buffalo (which includes the City of Fort McMurray,
Alberta) claiming, among other things, aboriginal title to large areas of lands surrounding Fort McMurray, including
the lands on which the Great Divide project and most of the other oil sands operations in Alberta are located. Such
claims, if successful, could have a significant adverse effect on Connacher and the Great Divide project. Connacher
continues to consult with, and work with, Aboriginal groups in the Great Divide area.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
There are no material legal proceedings against the Corporation.
INTERESTS OF EXPERTS
Each of Sayer and GLJ have prepared a report or valuation described herein. Neither Sayer or GLJ held
any interests in securities or other property of Connacher when it prepared its respective report or valuation, has

received any such interest since such time or will receive any such interest. No director, officer or employce of
Sayer or GLJ is Lo be elected, appointed or employed by Connacher.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information, including information as to directors’ and officers’ remuncration and indebtedness,
principal holders of the Corporation's sccurities and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation
plans, if applicable, is contained in the Management Information Circular of the Corporation prepared in connection
with the most recent annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation that involved the election of directors.
Additional financial information is provided in the Corporation’s financial statements and management discussion
and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2006, which are contained in the Annual Report of the Corporatjon for
the year ended December 31, 20006.

Copies of this Annual Information Form, the Corporaiion's Annual Report, any inlerim financial stalements
of the Corporation subsequent to those statements contained in the Annual Report, the Corporation's Management
Information Circular and other additional information relating to the Corporation are available on SEDAR at
www. sedar.com.
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SCHEDULE A
REPORT ON RESERVES DATA BY
INDEPENDENT QUALIFIED RESERVES EVALUATOR

To the board of directors of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited (the "Company™}.

We have prepared an evaluation of the Company's reserves dala as al December 31, 2006. ‘Ihe reserves data consist of
the following:

(a) 6] proved and proved plus probable oil and gas reserves estimaled as al Tlecember 31, 2006, using
forecast prices and costs; and

(i1) the related estimated future net reventte; and

(b). (i) proved oil and gas reserves estimased as at December 31, 2006, using constant prices and costs, and

(i1) the related estimated future net revenue,

The reserves data are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the reserves data based on cur evaluation.

We carried out our evaluation in accordance with standards set out in the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook
(the "COGE Handbook") prepared jointly by the Society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers (Calgary Chapter) and the
Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy & Petreleum (Petroleum Society).

Those standards require that we plan and perform an evaluation to obtain reasonable assurance as 10 whether the
reserves data are free of material misstatement. An evaluation also includes assessing whether the reserves data are in
accordanee with principles and definitions in the COGE Handbook.

The following table sets forth the estimated future net revenue (before deduction of income taxes) attributed 10 proved
plus probable reserves, estimated using forecast prices and costs and calculated using a discount rate of 10 percent,
included in the reserves data of the Company evaluated by us for the year ended December 31, 2006, and identifies the
respective portions thereof that we have audited, evaluaied and reviewed and reported on to the Company's board of
directors.

Independent Description and Location of Net Present Value of Future Net Revenue
Qualified Preparation Date of Reserves (Country (before income taxes, 10% discount rate -$M)
Reserves Evaluation Report or Foreign
Evaluator Geographic Area)

Audited Bvalated | Reviewed Total
GLJ Petroleum March 7, 2007 Canada - $528 809 - $528,809
Consultants

In our opinion, the reserves evaluated by us have, in all material respects, been determined and are in accordance with
the COGE Handbook.

We have no responsibility to update our reports referred 1o in paragraph 4 for cvents and circumstances oceurring afier
their respective preparation dates.

Because the reserves data arc based on judgments regarding future events, acwal results will vary and the variations
may be material.

EXECUTED as to our repert referred 1o above:
GLJ Petroleum Consultants Ltd., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, March 9, 2007.

(Signed) "Terry L. Aarsby”

Terry L. Aarsby, P. Eng.
Vice-President
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SCHEDULE B
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS ON OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURE

Management of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited (the "Corporation”) are responsible for the preparation and disclosure
of information with respect to the Corporation's oil and gas activities in accordance with securities regulatory requirements. This
information includes reserves data, which consist of the following:

(a) i) proved and proved plus probable oil and gas reserves estimated as at December 31, 2006 using
forecast prices and costs; and

(i) the related estimated fulure net revenue; and
(b) @) proved oil and gas reserves estimated as at December 31, 2006 using constant prices and costis; and
(i) the relaied estimated future net revenue,

An independent qualified reserves evaluaior has evaluated the Corporation's reserves data. The report of the
independent qualified reserves evaluator is presented in Schedule A and will be filed with securities regulatory authorities
concurrently with this report.

The Reserves Committee of the board of directors of the Corporation has

(a) reviewed the Corporation’s procedures for providing information to the independent qualified reserves
evaluator;
(b) met with the independent qualified reserves evaluator to determine whether any restrictions affected the

ability of the independent qualified reserves evaluator to report without reservation; and
(c) reviewed the reserves dala with management and the independent qualified reserves evaluator.
The Reserves Committee of the board of directors has reviewed the Corporation’s procedures for assembling and

reporting other information associated with oil and gas activities and has reviewed that information with management. The board
of directors has, on the recommmendation of the Reserves Committee, approved

(¥ the content and filing with securities regulatory authorities of the reserves data and other oil and pas
information;

() the filing of the report of the independent qualihed reserves evaluator on the reserves data; and

(<) the content and filing of this report.

Becanse the rescrves data are based on judgements regarding future events, actual resulls will vary and the variations
may be material.

(signed) Richard A. Gusella (signed) D. Hugh Bessell
Richard A. Gusella D. Hugh Bessell

President and Chief Executive Officer Director

(signed) Richard R. Kines (signed) Stewart D. McGregor
Richard R, Kincs Stewan B, McGregor

Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer Director

March 23, 2007
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SCHEDIULE C
CONNACHER'S 26% INTEREST IN PETROLIFERA'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND FUTURE NET REVENUE

The following is a summary of the Corporation's 26% interest in Peirolifera's oil and gas reserves and future net
revenue as al December 31, 2006 as evaluated by GLJ in the Petrolifera GLJ Report. The information contained
within this Schedule C has been derived from the Petrolifera ATF which is posted on SEDAR (www.sedar.com).

RESERVES DATA - FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS

CRUDE OIL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Light/Meditun Crude Oil Natural Gas Oil Equivalent

Gross™ Net™ Gross™ Net™ Gross™ Net™

(mbbl) {inbbl} {mmcl) {inmef) {inbbl) {mbbl)
Proved Developed Producing®™ 1,338 1,158 2,467 2,134 1,749 1513
Proved Developed Non-Producing™® 37 32 - - 37 32
Proved Undeveloped™" 1,361 1,177 1,239 1,072 1,567 1356
Folal Proved® 2,736 2,367 3,707 3,206 3,353 2,901
Total Probable® 2,343 2027 3,781 3,271 2,973 2,572
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 5.079 4,304 7.488 6,477 6,326 5473

NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes

Aflter Deducting Income Taxes

Discounted At Discounted At
0% 5% 10% 15% 0% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%
™M$ M M M MH MH M M (ME _(MS)
Proved Developed Producing™* 24450 40,894 38,031 35657 13646 32,508 30,096 27,850 26002 24,447
Proved Developed Non-Producing™® 988 809 684 593 524 644 522 434 370 322
Proved Undevelaped™® 16738 30,337 25384 21463 18301 23,873 19323 13,828 13,079 10,873
Total Proved®™ 82176 72040 640909 57,713 52471 57,425 49940 44,112 39451 35644
Total Probable™ 81,715 64746 5269F 43,834 37,147 53126 41,848 33860 28011  23.608
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 163.891 136,186 116,790 101,547 89,618 110,551 91,788 77973 67462 59.252
FUTURE NET REVENUE
(UNDISCOUNTED)
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®
Future
Net Revenne Future Net
Operating Abandonment  Before Income Revenue After
Revenue' Rouynltics’ Exprenses Capital Costs Costs Taxes Income Taxes Income Taxes
(M$) (M$) (M$) (M$) {M$) (M$) {M$) [(:353]
Totat Proved® 134,800 18,198 23,393 10,720 307 82,177 24,7152 57,425
Total Proved Plus 251,817 33,995 41,777 11,786 367 163,891 53,341 110,550
Probable™
FUTURE NET REVENUE BY PRODUCTION GROUP
BASED ON FORECAST PRICES AND COSTS®
Future Net Revenue Before
Incoine Taxes (Discounted al
10%/Year)
Production Group ($000's)
Totad Proved™ Light and medium crude ail 62,545
Associated gits and non-associated gas 1,554
Total Proved Plus Probalile™® Light and medium crude oil 113,174
Associated gos and non-associated gas 3,616



RESERVES DATA - CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS

Proved Developed Producing™®

CRUDE OIL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES

BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
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Proved Developed Non-Producing™®

Proved Undeveloped™™®

Toal Proved®

Total Probabte®

Total Proved Plus Probabile™®

LightMedium Crude Oil Natural Gas Oil Equivalent
Gross™ Net™ Gross™D Net® Gross? Nett”
(mbbl) (mbbl) {mmcl) {iminel) (mbbl) {inbbl)

1,339 1,159 2469 2,136 1,751 1515

a8 - - 38 33
1,367 1,182 1,243 1,076 1,574 1,361
2,744 2,373 3,713 3nz2 3,362 2,908
2,357 2,039 3,791 3,279 2,989 2585
5,101 4,412 7.504 6,491 6,351 5,494

NET PRESENT VALUE OF FUTURE NET REVENUE
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®

Before Deducting Income Taxes

After Deducting Income Taxes

Discounted At Discounted At
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%
M$ (M$) (M$) {M$) (M$) (MS) (M3) (M3) ™M$) (M$)
Proved Developed Producing!™® 43,520 40,211 37481 35188 33229 327222 29,603 27464 25679 24,165
Proved Developed Non- 1,072 866 725 624 549 76! 591 479 401 345
Producing™®
Proved Undeveloped™® 38,434 31,819 26,666 22,571 19.264 24,990 20,298 16,670 13,806 11,506
Total Proved™ 83,026 72,896 64,872 58,384 53,042 57972 50,492 44,613 39,886 36,015
Total Probable™ 82928 65,572 53,286 44,287 37,507 53916 42,390 34,253 28,310 23.846
Total Proved Plus Probable™® 165,955 138,467 118159 102,671 90,549 111,889 92,882 78,866 68,196 59,862
FUTURE NET REVENUE
(UNDISCOUNTED)
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®
Future
Net Revenue Future Net
Before Revenue
Operating Cnpital Abandonment Incoms: Income After Income
Revenue Royalties Expenses Costs Costs Taxes Toxes Taxes
{M3$) (M$) {M$) {M$) (M$) (M$) (M%) (MS)
Total Proved® 134,264 18,126 22,156 10,699 257 83,026 25,054 519712
Total Proved Plus Probable®® 250,526 33.821 38,723 11,739 84 165,954 54,068 111,887

Total Proved™

Total Proved Plus Probable®™®

Notes:

FUTURE NET REVENUE BY PRODUCTION GROUP
BASED ON CONSTANT PRICES AND COSTS®

Production Group

Future Netl Kevenue Before Income
Taxes (Discounled at 10%/Yenr)

{$000's)

Light and medium crude oil
Associated gas and non-associated gas

Light and medium crude ol
Associated gas and non-associated pas

64,230
642

116,665

1.494

(1) "Gross Reserves” are the Corporation’s working interest (operating or non-operating) shire before deducting royalties and witheut
including any royally interests of the Corporation. "Net Reserves” arc the Corporation's working interest {operating or non-operaling)
share after deduction of royalty obligations, plus the Corporation’s royalty itlerests in reserves,

(?)  "Proved” reserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degree of certainly to be recoverable. I is 909 Likely thal the aclual

remaining quantities recovered will exceed the estimated proved reserves.
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"Probable” reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain 10 be recovered than proved reserves. It is equally likely that the
actual remaining quantities recovered will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves.

"Possible” reserves are those additional reserves that are less ceriain 10 be recovered than probable reserves. It is unlikely that the actual
remaining quantities recovered will exceed the sum of the estimated proved plus probable plus possible reserves.

"Developed Producing” reserves are those reserves that are expected to be recovered from completion intervals open al the lime of the
estimate, These reserves may be cumently producing or, if shut-in, they must have previously been on production, and the date of
resumption of production must be known with reasonable certainty.

“Developed Non-Producing” reserves are those reserves that either have not been on production, or have previously been on production,
but are shulin, and the date of resumption of production is unknown.

“Undeveloped” reserves are those reserves expected to be recovered from know accumulations wherz a significant expenditure (for
example, when compared 1o the cost of drlling a well) is required 1o render them capable of production. They must fully meet the
requirements of the reserves classification (proved, probable, possible) to which they are assigned.

The product prices used in the constan? price and cost ¢valuations in the GLJ Report were as follows: (1) Light sweel crude oil price at
Edmonton: $73.16/bbl, (2) Natural gas a1 Spot Plant Gate: $5.87/mmbtu and (3) Natural gas liguids (Edmonton butane): $54.06/bb).

The pricing assumptions used in the Petrolifera GLJ Report with respect to the inflation rates used for operating and ciapital costs and
exchange rales are st forth below and are as al December 31, 2006.

Infiation Rate Exchange Rate
S%lyenr $US/SCdn
Year Forecast
2007 20 0.870
2008 20 0.8703
2009 20 0.870
2010 0 0.570
2011 20 0.870
2012 20 0.870
2013 20 0.870
2014 20 0.870
2015 20 0.870
2016 20 0.87¢
2017 20 0.870
Thereafter pAH 0.870

The crude oi} price received by Peirolifera is based on the following formula: ((WTI - Quality Differentizd) x Price Factor /0.98 + Price
Premivm/Exchange Rate

Where: WTI=W'TI price limited by ceiling price of $35.00/bbl
Quality Differential = 0.37
Price Factor = 0.68966
Price Premium (WTI $55 to $80/bbl) = WTI - 55) x 0.305

Forecast prices used in the above formula are as follows:

WTI
Year Forecast $USAB

na? 62.00
008 60.00
2009 58.00
W0 57.00
a1 57.00
w12 51.50
13 58.50
A4 59.75
w15 61.00
m6 62.25
w17 63.50
018 64.77
mie 66,07
20 67,39
021 6873
m22 7011
023 .51

Gas prices were forecast to be $2.3%/mmbiu in 2007 and 1o escalate at 2 percent per year thereafler. This ferecast is based on gas marketing
information provided by Petrotifera. GLY is an independent qualified reserves evaluator appointed pursuant to N1 51-101.
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The following table summarizes Connacher's share of the capital expenditures made: by Petrolifera on oil and
natural gas properties for the portion of the year ended December 31, 2006 during which Connacher consolidated
Petrolifera's accounts with Connacher's financial results, See “General Development of the Business”.

Property Acquisition Costs Exploration Costs Development Costs
(%) ) %
Proved Properlics Unproved Properties
_ 64,963 1,302,309 1,349,737
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SCHEDULE D
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Audit Commitiec (the "Committee") of the board of directors {the "Board") of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited
(the "Corporation”) shall have the oversight responsibility, authority and specific duties as described below.

Compaosition

The Committee will be comprised of three or more directors as determined by the Board. Hach Committee member
shall satisfy the independence, financial literacy and experience requirements of applicable sccurities laws, rules or
guidelines, any applicable stock exchange requirements or guidelines and any other applicable regulatory rules. In
particular, cach member of the Committee shall have no direct or indirect material relationship with the Corporation
which could reasonably be expected to materially interfere with the member's independent judgment.
Determinations as to whether a particular Director satisfies the requirements for membership on the Commitiee shall
be made by the full Board and shall be reviewed at least annually.

Members of the Commiitee shall be appointed from time to time by the Board. Each member shall serve until his
successor is appointed, unless he shall resign or be removed by the Board or he shall otherwise cease to be a director
of the Corporation. If a member of the Committee ceases to be independent for reasons outside that member's
reasonable control, the member shatl immediately notify the Chair of the Board as to this fact and shall resign his or
her position as a member of the Committee on the earliest of (i) the appointment of his or her successor; (ii) the next
annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation; and (iii) the date that is six months from the occurrence of the
event which caused the member to not be independent. The Board shall fill any vacancy if the membership of the
Committee is less than three Directors,

The Chair of the Committee may be designated by the Board or, if it does not do so, the members of the Committee
may elect a Chair by vote of a majority of the full Committee membership.

Operation

The Committee shall have access to such officers and employees of the Corporation and to the Corporation’s
independent external auditors, and to such information respecting the Corporation, as it considers to be necessary or
advisable in order to perform its duties and responsibilities. The Committee has the authority to engage independent
counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out its duties and to set and pay the compensation for
any such counsel and advisors, such engagement to be for the Corporation's sole account and expense.

Meetings of the Committee shall be conducted as follows:

1. The Committee shall meet at least four times annually at such times and at such locations as the Chair of
the Committee shall determine, provided that meetings shall be scheduled so as to permit timely review of
the quarterly and annual financial statements and reports. The independent auditors or any one member of
the Commiltee may also request a meeting of the Committee,

28]

The quorum for meetings shall be a majority of the members of the Committee, present in person or by
telephone or by other telecommunication device that permits all persons participating in the meeting to hear
cach other,

a The Chair shall, in consultation with management and the external auditors, establish the agenda for the
meetings and instruct management to ensure that properly prepared agenda malerials are circulated to the
Committee with sufficient time for study prior to the mecting.

4. Every question at a Comnmitiee meeting shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast.

5. The Chief Executive Officer shall be available to advise the Commitiee, and may allend meetings at the
invitation of the Chair of the Commitiee. Other management representatives may be invited to attend. The
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independent external auditors shall be given notice of, and shall be entitled to attend, each meeting of the
Committee at the expense of the Corporation. The Chair of the Committee shall hold in camera meetings
of the Committes, without management present, at every Committee meeting.

6. A Committee member, or any other person selected by the Committee, shall be appoinied at each meeting
to act as secretary for the purpose of recording the minutes of each meceting.

7. The Commitice may delegate from time to time to any person or commitiee of persons any of the
Commitlee's responsibilities that fawfully may be delegated.

The Committee provides an avenue for communication, particularly for outside directors, with the independent
external auditors and financial and senjor management and the Board. The independent external auditors shall have
a direct line of communication to the Committee through ils Chair. The Committee, through its Chair, may contact
directly any employee in the Corporation as it deems necessary, and any employee may bring belore the Commiitee
on a confidential basis any matter involving financial practices or transactions.

Responsibililics

The Committee is part of the Board. Iis primary function is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilitics with respect 10: (i) the preparation and disclosure of the financial statements, and accompanying
reports, to be provided to shareholders and regulatory bodies; (ii) the system of internal control and management
information systems of the Corporation that management has established; and {iii) the external audit process. In
addition, the Committee shall assist the Board as requested in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to
(i} financial policies and strategies; (ii) financial risk management practices; and (iii) transactions or circumstances
which could materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Corporation.

The role of the Committee is one of stewardship and oversight. Management is responsible for preparing the
financial statements and financial reporting of the Corporation and for maintaining internal control and management
information and risk management systems and procedures. The external auditors are responsible for the audit or
review of the financial statements and other services they provide.

The Committee should have a clear understanding with the external auditors that the independent auditors must
maintain an open and transparent relationship with the Committee and the Board, and that the ultimate
accountability of the external auditors is to the shareholders of the Corporation.

The Committee shall provide the Board with a summary of all meetings together with a copy of the minutes from
such meetings. Where minutes have not yet been prepared, the Chair shall provide the Board with oral reports on
the activities of the Committee. All information reviewed and discussed by the Committee at any meeting shall be
referred to in the minutes and made available for examinalion by the Board upon request to the Chair,

Specilic Duties

1. Financial Statements and Financial Reporting.

The Commitice shall:

(a) review with management and the external auditors, and recommend to the Board for approval, the
annual financial statements of the Corporation, the reports of the external auditors thereon and
related financial reponting, including Management's Discussion and Analysis and financial press
releases;

(b) review wilth management and the external auditors, and recommend 1o the Board for approval, the
interim financial statements of the Corporation and related financial reporting, including
Management's Discussion and Analysis and financial press releases;
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review with management and recommend to the Board for approval, any [inancial statements of
the Corporalion which have not previously been approved by the Beard and which are to be
included in a prospectus of the Corporation;

consider and be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Corporation’s
disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Corporation's financial
statements (other than disclosure referred to in clauses (a) and (b) above), and periodically assess
the adequacy of such procedures;

review with management, the external auditors and, if necessary, legal counscl, any litigation,
claim or contingency, including tax assessments, that could have a material effect upon the
financial position of the Corporation, and the manner in which these matters may be, or have been,
disclosed in the financial statements;

review the appropriateness of the accounting practices and policies of the Corporation, the use and
effect of judgment on accounting measurements, the adequacy of accruals and estimates used by
management in preparing {inancial statements and review any proposzd changes in accounting
policies and procedures;

review accounting, tax and financial aspects of the operations of the Corporation as the Committee
considers appropriate; and

include in the annual information form each year, as required, a copy of the Terms of Reference of
the Committee and a report to shareholders on the Committee's activities in satisfying its
responsibilities during the year in compliance with these terms of reference.

Relationship with External Auditors.

The Committee shall:

(@

(b)
(©)

C)]

(©

H

consider and make a recommendation to the Board as to the appointment or re appointment of the
external auditors, ensuring that such auditors are participants in good standing pursuant to
applicable securities laws;

consider and make a recommendation to the Board as to the compensation of the external auditors;
review and approve the annual audit plan of the external auditors,

oversce the work of the external auditors in performing their audit or review services and oversee
the resolution of any disagreements between management and the external auditors;

review and discuss with the external auditors all signilicant relationships that the external auditors
and their affiliates have with the Corporation and its affiliates in order to determine the external
auditors’ independence, including, without limitation, (A) requesting, receiving and reviewing, on
a periodic basis, a formal written statement from the external auditors delineating all relationships
that may reasonably be thought to bear on the independence of the external auditors with respect
to the Corporation, {B) discussing with the external auditors any disclosed relationships or
services that the external auditors believe may affect the objectivity and independence of the
external auditors, and (C) recommending that the Board 1ake appropriate action in response to the
external auditors' report to satisfy itself of the external auditors' independence;

pre approve all non audit services (where such non audit services are considercd 1o be above the
de minimus level referred to in applicable law) to be provided to the Corporation (and any
subsidiaries thereof) by the external auditors and review fee arrangements for such services (the
Committee may delegate to one or more of its members the authority to pre approve non audit
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services so long as such pre approval is presented 1o the full Committee at its first scheduled
meeting following such pre approval); and

review and approve the hiring policies of the Corporation regarding employees and former
employecs of the present and former external auditors of the Corporation,

Internal Controls.

The Committee shall:

(a)

{b)

©

(d

review with management and the external auditors, the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control and management information systems and procedures of the Corporation (with particular
attention given to accounting, financial statements and financial reporting maiters) and determine
whether the Corporation are in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements and
with the Corporation’s policies;

review the external anditors' recommendations regarding any matters, including internal control
and management information systems and procedures, and management's responses thereto;

establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints, submissions and
concerns reparding accounting, internal controls or auditing maiters on an anonymous and
confidential basis; and

review with external auditors any corporate transactions in which Directors or officers of the
Corporation have a personal interest.

Financial Risk Management.

The Committee shall:

(a)

(b)
(©

()

review with management and the external auditors their assessment of significant financial risks
and exposures;

review and assess the steps that management has taken to mitigate such risks;
review annually the insurable risks and insurance coverages of the Corperation; and

report the results of such reviews to the Board for the purpose of assisting the Board in identilying
the principal business risks associated with the businesses of the Corporation.
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OIlL AND GAS LIMITED

PRESS RELEASE MARCH 29, 2007

CONNACHER FILES YEAR END DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS

Calgary, Alberta — Connacher Oil and Gas Limited (CLL - TSX) today filed its Annual
Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2006 which includes Connacher's
reserves data and other oil and gas information for the year ended December 31, 2006
together with the report on reserves data by independent qualified reserves evaluator on
Form 51-101F2 and the report of the management and directors on oil and gas disclosure
on Form 51-101F3 as mandated by National Instrument 51-101 - Standards Disclosure
for Oil and Gas Activities of the Canadian Securities Administrators. Connacher today
also filed its Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Management's Discussion
and Analysis for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Copies of Connacher's
Annual Information Form, Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2006 may be obtained via
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Connacher is a Calgary-based oil and natural gas exploration and production company.
Its principal asset is its 100 percent interest in reserves, resources and lands in the Great
Divide regions of Alberta's oil sands. Connacher also has conventional crude oil and
natural gas properties in Alberta and Saskatchewan, owns a 9,500 bbl/d refinery in Great
Falls, Montana and owns a 26 percent basic and fully-diluted interest in, and assists in the
management of, Petrolifera Petroleum Limited. This investment has a current market
value in excess of $200 million.

For further information

Richard A Gusella

President and Chief executive Officer

Connacher Oil and Gas Limited

Phone: (403) 538-6201 Fax: (403) 538-6225
inquiries@connacheroil.com  www.connacheroil.com

Suilc 2600, Watermark Tower
530 — 8" Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 35
Telephone: (403) 538-6201 Tacsimile: (403) 538-6225
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PRESS RELEASE MARCH 23, 2007

CONNACHER REPORTS 2006 RESULTS

Calgary, Alberta ~ Connacher Oil and Gas Limited (CLL - TSX) achieved significant operational and financial
progress during 2006, The Company’s financial and operating metrics were expansive and positive.

Connacher made big steps in 2006 on our oil sands properties at Great Divide, Alberta. The development of the
high quality oil sands reservoir at Great Divide’s Pod One project is well advanced. Start up is expected to
commence in the summer of 2007. Meanwhile, other pods have been identified for future growth. Connacher
also plans to submit an application to regulators (including due consultation with all stakeholders) to proceed
with an additional 10,000 bbl/d project (the “Algar Project”) at its Pod Two located east of Pod One at Great
Divide. Qur conventional natural gas production and our oil refinery are supporting our oil sands initiative as
planned. Connacher’s investment in Petrolifera Petroleum has performed exceptionally well, with significant
growth in market value.

Highlights of the 2006 year were as follows:

e Conventional production more than tripled to 2,725 boe/d

o Revenues expanded approximately 25 times to reach $245 mullion
Cash flow from operations before working capital ad) usiments'” increased 9 fold to $40 million

e Cash flow per share" increased 450 percent, despite a 75 percent increase in weighted average
outstanding shares issued to finance growth
Capital spending including acquisitions reached $452 million
Almost $600 million of debt and equity financing was completed during the year, assuring control of
Great Divide

¢ Great Divide Pod One 10,000 bbl/d SAGD oil sands development project approved, financed and
underway, on time and on budget

¢ Pod Two development application being finalized - subject to regulatory and final approval by
Connacher’s Board of Directors, another 10,000 bbl/d project to follow completion of Pod One

o Proved conventional and bitumen reserves up 30 times over 2005 level
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The following table summarizes the company’s financial and operating highlights for the full year, compared to
2005 reported results.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

2006 2005 % Change

FINANCIAL
($000 excent per share amounts)
Revenues net of royalties $244,684 $5,795 2400
Cash flow from operations 40,196 4,358 822

Basic, per share 0.22 0.04 450

Diluted, per sharc ¢ 0.21 0.04 425
Net eamings 6,953 991 602

Basic and diluted, per share 0.04 0.01 300
Capital expenditures and acquisitions 451,525 16,807 2,587
Proceeds on disposal of oil and gas properties 10,000 - -
Bank debt 229,254 - -
Working capital 118,626 75,427 59
Cash on hand 142,391 75,511 89
Shareholders’ equity 385,398 129,108 196
Total assets 712,930 134,813 429
OPERATING
Production

Natural gas (mef/d) 10,473 827 1,166

Crude oil (bbl/d) 980 729 34

Equivalent (boe/d) @ 2,725 867 214
Pricing

Crude oil (3/bbl} 53.85 42.33 27

Naturatl gas (3/mcf) 5.85 1.37 327
Selected Highlights ($/boe) @

Weighted average sales price 41.83 36.91 13

Royalties 9.87 8.16 21

Operating and transportation costs 8.32 7.73 8

Netback 24.67 23.23 6
Reserves (mboe) @

Proved (1P) 50,381 1,501 3,256

Probable 42,555 70,598 (40}

Total proved plus probable (2P) ) 92,9306 72,099 29
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Shares outstanding at end of period (000) 197.894 139.940 4]
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic (000) 184,469 106,114 74

Dituted (000) 188,432 111,846 68
Volume traded during the year (000) 323,825 338,402 (C))
Common share price ($)

High 6.07 4.20 45

Low 3.09 0.49 531

Close, end of year 3.49 3.84 (9N

1} Cash flow from operations before working capital changes and cash flow per share do not have standardized meanings prescribed by Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companics, Cash
flow from operations before working capital changes includes al! cash flow from operating activities und is caloulated before changes in non-
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cash working capital. The most comparable measure calculated in accordance wilh GAAP would be net carnings. Cash flow from operations
before working capital changes is reconciled with net earnings on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and in the accompanying
Munagement's Discussion & Analysis. Management uses these non-GAAP measurements for its own performance measures and to provide its
shareholders and investors with a measurement of the company’s efficiency and its ability to fund a portion of its luture growth expenditures.
All references to barrels of oil equivalent (boe) are calculated on the basis of 6 mcf: 1bbl. Boes may be misieading, particularly if used in
isolation. This conversion is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a
value equivalency at the wellhead.

The reserve estimates for 2006 and 2005 were prepared by an independent professional petroleum enginecring firm in accordance with National
Instrument 51-101 (NI 51-101), Under NI 51-101, proved reserve assignments are based on a high degree of certainty with a targeted 90 percent
probability that total quantities received will equal or exceed proved reserve estimates. Proved plus probable reserves are the most likely case
with a targeted 50 percent probability that they will equal or exceed estimates. Proved plus probable plus possible reserves are based on a low
degree of certainty with a 10 percent probability that they wili equal or exceed estimates,

After preduction of 1 millien boe in 2006.

No dividends have been declared by the company since its incorporation,

Summary fourth quarter 2006 results are contained in the enclosed MD&A.

Connacher Qil and Gas Limited experienced a year of great expansion in 2006. As indicated above, revenues
exploded to $245 million; cash flow increased almost ten fold to $40 million; conventional production more
than tripled to 2,725 boe/d and our proved reserve base expanded 30 fold to over 50 million boe, following the
initial recognition of proved reserves at our Great Divide Pod One oil sands project in northeastern Alberta.

During the year we successfully implemented our integration strategy to enable a smaller producer like
Connacher to successfully manage its involvement in a steam assisted gravity drainage ("SAGD") oil sands
project. This included:

o purchasing Luke Energy Ltd. for its natural gas reserves, exploratory potential, cash flow and credit
capacity to allow us to physically hedge against natural gas costs to be incurred with the steam
generating process at Pod One;

e addressing crude oil pricing differential risk by purchasing a small but efficient and profitable refinery
(and associated product inventory) located just across the Canada-US border at Great Falls, Montana,
Following the purchase, which also provided revenue, cash flow and considerable earnings, we
expanded throughput capacity and improved operating efficiency,

e strengthening our balance sheet with successful equity and term debt financings totaling $591 million,
thereby assuring Connacher the ability to develop Pod One on its own. Shares were also issued in
conjunction with the aforementioned purchases to ensure financial viability and to avoid undue balance
sheet leverage. Of particular nole was our successful private placement of an attractively priced US$180
million issue of seven year term debt 1o assist in financing the $256 million Pod One project and to
repay the bridge loan incurred 1o acquire the Montana refinery. As a result, Connacher secured the
balance of funding required to complete its initial oil sands project. The company was able to secure the
Joan solely with its oil sands and refining interests, leaving Connacher with optimum financial {lexibility
and the debt capacity of its conventional properties and its valuable holdings of Peltrolifera Petroleum
Limited, which during the year exceeded $300 million; and

» addressing execution risk. In initiating its Pod One plant and site construction and arranging for the
drilling of its 15 SAGD well pairs for steam injection and production, Connacher was able to reduce
execution and cost escalation risk by careful pre-planning and adopling a modular approach, particularly
for its plant construction program. In this manner, Connacher has been able to build most of its long lead
essential and expensive components in nearby fabrication shops away from the plant site, which is
remote and would have been prone to increasing inflationary cost pressures. Under our approach,
components can be skid-mounted and transported by road to Pod One when the timetable is appropriate.
By introducing an oil field mentality to the process, Connacher is confident of its general ability to
control costs and complete on time.
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This strategy translates into a reduction of operaling cost risk, construction cost risk, balance sheet risk and
downstream crude oil price differential risk. It forms an integral part of Connacher’s integraled approach and
will set precedents for future developments by the company in the region.

Considerable drilling success was encountered at Marten Creek, Alberta and elsewhere in northern Alberla
during the current 2007 winter drilling season. Also, approximately 80 core holes and an extensive 3D seismic
program were completed on our Great Divide main lease block during this period.

As a consequence, Connacher will be updating its reserve estimates for both conventional properties and its ol
sands properties during the second quarter of 2007 and will communicate the results of this update upon
acceptance by our Board of Directors of reports to be prepared by GLJ Petroleun Consultants (“GLJ”) of
Calgary, Alberta.

Construction at Great Divide Pod One is proceeding favorably with a view to commissioning and startup during
the summer 2007. Drilling of the SAGD well pairs has been efficient and yielded favorable results. Readers
are referred to our website at www.connacheroil.com for pictorial updates of our progress. Connacher has
introduced innovative, cost-saving and environmentally friendly technology to its Pod One plant and remains
mindful of sound relationships with regulators and stakeholders, including First Nations people, in its operations
in this area of northem Alberta. Transportation alternatives are under late-stage evaluation and a decision on
the preferred alternative is pending.

Successful follow up drilling at Pod Two has enabled Connacher to arrive at a decision to proceed with an
application to develop another 10,000 bbl/d small scale commercial operation (the “Algar Project”) at Great
Divide. It is anticipated the application for Algar will to be submitted in May 2007 with a view to
commencement of construction sometime in early 2008, subject to final approval by Connacher’s Board of
Directors and following due consultation with stakeholders and receipt of regulatory approval. Preliminary
design and advance equipment ordering would likely occur throughout the second half of 2007. This sequential
development will enable Connacher to retain its access to personnel and suppliers while it starts up and
commences production at Pod One. It is consistent with Connacher’s commitment of sustainability and
repeatability of growth opportunities for its shareholders.

Connacher’s total capital budget for 2007 has initially been established at $249 million, with the majority of this
amount directed to completion of our development project at Great Divide Pod One. When the final decision
on transportation and development of Pod Two occurs, additional capital and related budgetary allocations will
be required at some point during 2007.

Connacher’s outlook remains very buoyant and exciting.

Connacher is a Calgary-based oil and natural gas exploration and production company. Its principal asset is its
100 percent interest in reserves, resources and lands in the Great Divide regions of Alberia’s oil sands.
Connacher also has conventional crude oil and natural gas properties in Alberta and Saskatchewan, owns a
9,500 bbl/d refinery in Great Falls, Montana and owns a 26 percent basic and fully-diluted interest in, and
assists in the management of, Petrolifera Petroleum Limited. This investment has a current market value in
excess of $200 million.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This press release contains forward-looking statements, including but not limited to estimated reserves, resources and
future net revenues related thereto, future exploration and development plans, anticipated capital expenditures and sources
of funding in respect thereof, anticipated start-up of Pod One and current plans with respect to the development for Pod
Two, including plans for regulatory application and commencement of construction including final approval by
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Connacher’s Board of Directors. These statements are based on current expectations that involve a number of risks and
uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. These risks include, but are not
limited to risks associated with the oil and gas industry {(e.g. operational risks in development, exploration and production
delays or changes in plans with respect to exploration or development projects or capital expenditures; the uncertainty of
reserve and resource estimates; the uncertainty of estimates and projections in relation to production, costs and expenses
and health, safety and environmental risks), risks associated with construction and commencement of {irst production, the
risk of commodity price and foreign exchange rate fluctuations, the uncertainty associated with geological interpretations
and risks relating to sccuring required approvals and consents 1o proceed with future development opportunities,
Additional risks and uncertaintics are described in the company's Annual Information Form which is filed on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.

The reserves, resources and future net revenue in this press release represent estimates only. The reserves, resources and
future net revenue from the company's properties have been independently cvaluated by GLIJ Petroleum Consultants with
an effective date of December 31, 2006. This cvaluation includes a number of assumptions relating to factors such as
initial production rates, production decline rates, ultimate recovery of reserves and resources, timing and amount of capital
expenditures, marketability of production, future prices of bitumen, crude oil and natural gas, operating costs,
abandonment and salvage values, royaliics and other government levies that may be imposed during the producing life of
the reserves and resources. These assumptions were based on price forecasts in use at December 31, 2006 and many of
these assumptions are subject to change and are beyond the control of the company. Actual production, sales and cash
flows derived therefrom will vary from the evaluation and such variations could be material, The present value of
estimated future net cash flows referred to hercin should not be construed as the current market value of estimated
bitumen, crude oil and natural gas reserves attributable to the company's propertics.

Forecast capital expenditures are based on Connacher's current budgets and development plans which are subject to
change based on commodity prices, market conditions, drilling success and potential timing delays. Additionally, forecast
capital expenditures do not include capital required to pursue future acquisitions or for the development of additional oil
sands projects, such as Pod Two. Anticipated production has been estimated based on the proposed drilling program with
a success rate based upon historical drilling success and an evaluation of the particular wells to be drilled and has been
risked.

For further information

Richard A Gusella

President and Chief executive Officer

Connacher Qil and Gas Limited

Phone: (403) 538-6201 Fax: (403) 538-6225
inquirics@connacheroil.com  www.connacheroil.com

Suite 2600, Watermark Tower
530 - 8" Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 358
Telephone: (403) 538-6201 Facsimile: {403) 538-6225
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is dated as of March 23, 2007 and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
of Connacher Qil and Gas Limited (“Connacher” or the “company™) for the years ended 2006 and 2005 as contained in
the Company’s annual report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and are presented in Canadian dollars. This MD&A provides
management’s view of the financial condition of the company and the resulls of its operations for the reporting periods.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Information in this report contains forward-looking information based on current expectations, estimates and projections
of future production, capital expenditures and available sources of financing and estimates of reserves, resources and
Suture net revenues and exploration and development plans. It should be noted forward-looking information involves a
number of risks and uncertainties and actual results may vary materially from those anticipated by the company. There
can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations upon which these forward-looking statements are based
will occur. Forward-looking statements are subject 1o risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those discussed in
the company’s Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2006, which include, without limitation,
changes in market conditions, law or governing policy, operating conditions and costs, operating performance, demand
Jor crude oil and natural gas, price and exchange rate fluctuations, commercial negotiations, regulatory processes and
approvals and technical and economic factors. Although Connacher believes that the expectations represented in such
Jorward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. The
Jorward-looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. The
Sforward-looking statements included in this MD&A are made as of the date of the MD&A and Connacher undertakes no
obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect new information, subsequent events or otherwise
unless so required by applicable securities laws. Throughout the MD&A, per barrel of oil equivalent (boe) amounts have
been calculated using a conversion rate of six thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of crude oil (6:1). The
conversion is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable to the burner tip and does not
represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. Boes may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Strategic Prioritics Progress in 2006

Operale with large focused working|Great Divide — 100% working interest retained through the financing of Pod
interest One
Battrum Saskatchewan crude oil and Marten Creek natural gas

Apply financial discipline Great Divide (Pod One) financing arranged with term debt — non-recourse to
conventional assets & equity in Petrolifera

Successful equity financings in 2005 and 2006 totaling $220 million

Cash Mow finances conventional and rclinery projects; available banking
lines of credit

Focus on projects with characteristics of|Develop Great Divide Pod One and use as a template to develop additional
sustainability, repeatability pods

Mitigate and manage risks of smaller|Purchased Luke Energy Ltd. (“Luke™) (gas producer) for natural gas requircd
company in the oil sands for stcaming Pod One at Great Divide
-integrated approach Purchase of Montana refinery to mitigale price differential risk and potential
for marketing Greal Divide bitumen production
Initiatives io mitigate environmental concerns
-low impact seismic {(minimum line width)
-SAGD provides smaller surface footprint than mining
-produced gas conserved
-evaporator/package boiler
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW
CONVENTIONAL PRODUCTION, PRICING AND REVENUE

For the ycars ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Daily production / sales volumes

Crude oil — bbl/d 980 729 785

Natural gas — mcl/d 10,473 827 1,620

Combined — boe/d 2,728 867 1,055
Product pricing (§)

Crude oil — per bbl 53.85 42.33 31.42

Natural gas — per mcf 5.85 1.37 3.62

Boe — per boe 41.83 36.91 28.95
Revenue ($000)

Petroleum and natural gas — gross 41,607 11,678 11,180
Royalties (9,821) (2,583) (2,139
Petroleum and natural gas revenue — net 31,786 9,095 9,041

In 2006, net petroleum and natural gas revenues were up 256.3 percent to $31.8 million from $9.1 million in 2605. This
was primarily attributable to a substantial increase in natural gas production resuiting from the Luke acquisition in March
2006, Natural gas sales volumes increased 1,166 percent and crude oil sales volwnes increased 34 percent in 2006. As a
consequence of increased world oil prices in 2006, the company’s average crude oil selling price increased by 27 percent
to $53.85 per barrel compared to $42.33 per barrel in 2005, Natural gas sales prices increased 327 percent in 2006, but
this was primarily due to the influence of low natural gas prices received in Argentina in 2005 when the results of
Petrolifera Petroleum Limited (“Petrolifera” were consolidated with those of Connacher. As a result of the Luke
acquisition, the company’s product mix is more balanced. Crude oil sales represented 46 percent of the company’s total
production revenue in 2006 and natural gas sales contributed 54 percent.

ROYALTIES ON CONVENTIONAL PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS SALES

2006 2005
Total Per hoe Total Per boe
Petroleum and natural gas rovaltics $9,821 59.87 $2,583 $8.16
Percentage of petroleum and natural gas revenue 23.6% 22%

Royalties represent charges against production or revenue by governments and landowners. Royaltics in 2006 were $9.8
million ($9.87 per boe, or 23.6 percent of petroleum and natural gas revenuc) compared to $2.6 million in 2005 ($8.16 per
boe, or 22 percent of petroleum and natural gas revenuc).

From year to ycar, royalties can change bascd on changes to the weighting in the product mix which is subject to different
royally rates, and rates usually escalate with increased product prices. The increase from 2005 10 2006 reflects market
conditions related 1o increased product prices and production volumes.
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For the years ended December 31

2005
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% Change

{3000 except per boe)

Total Per boe Total Perboe  Total Per boe
Average daily production (boe/d) 867 214
Petroleum and natural gas revenue $41,607 541.83 $11,678 $36.91 256 13
Royalties (9.87) (2,583) (8.16) 280 2}
Net revenue 31.96 9,095 2875 250 11
Operating costs (8.32) (2,445 (7.73) 238 8
Operating netback $23,516  §23.64 $6,650 $21.02 254 13

(1) Calculated by dividing related revenue and costs by total boe produced, resulting in an overall combined company netback. Netbacks do not
have a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and, therefore, may not be comparable 1o similar measures used by other companies. This
10n-GAAP measurement is a useful and widely used supplemental measure that provides management with performance measures and provides
shareholders and investors with a measurement of the company’s efficiency and its ability to fund future growth through capital expendilures.

Operating netbacks arc reconciled to net camings below.

For 2006 operating costs of 8,270 were 238 percent higher than in the prior year, and on a per unit basis, increased by 7.6
percent to $8.32 per boe reflecting the higher cost environment in 2006 and the substantial increases in production
volumes during the year, However, higher product prices resulted in higher operating netbacks in 2006.

NETBACK BY PRODUCT TYPE
For the year ¢nded December 31 2006
. il Gas
($000, except per unit amounts) (bbl/d) (mcf/d)
Average daily production 980 10,473

Revenue

$19,257 | $53.85 | $22,350 $5.85

Royalties

4534) | 12.68) | (5287 (1.38)

Operaling costs

(3,829) | (10.71)

(4,441) (1.16)

Netback

$10,894 | $30.46 | 512,622 $3.30

Reconciliation of Operating Nctback to Net Earnings

For the year ended December 31

2006

2005

($000, cxcept per unit amounts)

Total | Per boe

Total | Per boe

Operating netback as above

$23,516 | $23.04

$6,650 | $21.02

Interest income

1,024 1.03

700 221

Refining margin — nct

29,206 29.36

General and administrative

(3,880) (3.91)

(2,660) | (8.40)

Stock-based compensation

(7816) |  (7.86)

1,192 | @677

Finance charges

(5,086) | (5.11)

(308) 0.97)

Forcign cxchange (loss) gain

@287 | (.31

30 0.09

Depletion, depreciation and amortization

{32,949) | (33.13)

(5,797 | (18.32)

Income laxes

{3.870) (3.89)

870) | (2.7%)

Equity interest in Petrolifcra carnings and dilution gain

11,161 11.16

4,437 14,02
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REFINING REVENUES AND MARGINS

The operating results of the refinery since its acquisition on March 31, 2006 to December 31, 2006 arc summarized

below,

Refinery Throughput

Crude charged 8,713 bblAd
Refinery production 9,498 bbl/d
Sales of produced refined products 9,661 bbl/d
Sales of refined products (includes purchased products) 10,053 bbl/d
Refinery utilization @ 94%
{1) Note in Q4 refinery capacity was increased to 9,900 bbl/d.
Fecdstocks
Sour crude oil 92%
Other feedstocks & blend 8%
Revenues and Margins
Refining sales revenue ($000) 211,874
Refining — crude oil and operating costs ($000) 182,668
Refining — margin ($000) 29,206
Refining margin (%) 13.8%
Sales of Produced Refined Products (Volume %)
Gasolines 35.6%
Diesel fuels 17.6%
Jet fuels 34%
Asphalt 40.2%
LPG and other 3.2%
Total 100%
Averages Per Barrel of Refined Products Sold
Refining sales revenue $76.63
Less: Refining - crude oil and operating costs $66.07
Refining margin $10.56

On March 31, 2006, Comnacher completed the acquisition of an 8,300 bbl/d refinery and rclated assets, including
substantial product inventory, in Great Falls, Montana.
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The refinery is a good strategic fit with Connacher’s oilsands development, as it is well-located — the closest U.S. refinery
to Alberta’s oilsands. It processes Canadian heavy crude into a range of higher value products including regular and
premium gasoline, jet fuel, diesel, home heating oil and asphalt. The refinery thus provides a physical hedge protecting
Connacher’s future il sands revenues against crude oil/bitumen price differentials.

The refinery is a complex operation and includes reforming, isomerization and alkylation processes for formulation of
gasoline blends, hydro-treating for sulphur removal and fluid catalytic cracking for conversion of heavy gas oils to
gasoline and distillate products. It also is a major supplier of paving grade asphalt, polymer modified grades and asphalt
emulsions for road construction. The Mentana refinery markets products 1o retailers in Montana and neighbouring states
by truck and rail transport.

Shortly after taking over the refinery, the company undertook a 20 day turnaround to complete normal maintenance and
de-bottlenccking activities. As a result, throughput capacity was increased to 9,000 bbl/d. Through the year, subsequent
optimizations have increased crude throughput capacity to 9,900 bbl/d. Since the tumaround, the refinery has operated
continuously with no downtime and crude throughpui has averaged 9,400 bbl/d with an average annual capacity
utilization of 94%.

Connacher’s refinery operation achieved an outstanding year in 2006 with record levels of throughput, profit and profit
margin. This performance was due to improved efficiencies implemented subsequent to the acquisition, increased
throughput and sales volumes, and high product prices and differentials for the heavy crude feedstocks used as a result of
market conditions.

During the year, the company also made significant environmental improvements to the operation. These included capital
projects to remove excess sulphur from boiler fuel and recovery and remediation of an old wastewater aeration pond.
Sulphur removal in the boiler fuel has now been improved by over 200 times from the previous operation. Sulphur
removal is accomplished by means of a unique process which converts the sulphur to a product now being used
commercially for envirommental remediation in other parts of the U.S.

Other improvements initiated during the year included the construction of a new 150,000 barrel asphalt tank
(commissioned in March 2007) and expanded rail loading facilities, both undertaken to handle the increased throughput
achieved during the year.

Connacher employs a well-trained and experienced staff in Great Falls. The company was successful in retaining most of
the key personnel associated with the refinery, as well as recruiting a number of other experienced professionals. Key
processes and systems have been fully integrated into the company. Connacher’s operation includes a strong training and
development program as well as rigorous procedures for safety and environmental protection.

In 2007, Connacher plans to continue making environmental and capacity enhancements at the Montana refinery. We are
designing new high efficiency boilers, further increasing rail load-out capabilities, improving wastewater treatment
facilities, and further enhancing our sulphur treatment process.

As well, Connacher has initiated a major Clean Fuels project targeted to allow the production of ultralow sulphur diesel
and gasoline in 2008,

Engineering and marketing studies havc also been initiated to assess the possibility of major expansion of the refinery’s
heavy oil capacity.

INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME

In 2006, the company earned interest of $1 million (2005 - $700,000) on excess funds invesied in secure short-term
investiments.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2006, general and administrative (“G& A™) expenses were $3.9 million compared to $2.7 million in 2003, an increase
of 46 percent, reflecting increased costs associated with being a public company as well as increased staffing that occurred
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in 2006 in connection with the acquisition of the Montana refinery and 10 support the development of Great Divide. G&A
of $1.0 million was also capitalized in 2006 (2005 - $205,000}.

Non-cash stock-bascd compensation costs of $11.8 million were recorded in 2006 (2005-81.6 million). These charges
reflect the fair value of all stock options granted and vested in cach year. Of this amount, $7.8 million was expensed (2005
- $1.2 million), $3.5 million was capitalized (2005 - $410,000) and $500,000 was charged to refining operating costs in
2006.

FINANCE CHARGES

Financing charges were $5.1 million in 2006 compared to $308,000 reported in 2005. These charges increased
significantly from 2005 due to the issuance of debt in 2006, including the US$51 million bridge loan used to fund the
acquisition of the Monlana refinery and the conventional line of credit. In addition, an unrealized foreign exchange loss of
$4.3 million was incurred in 2006 primarily due to the conversion of US$180 million oil sands term loan 1o Canadian
dollars for reporting purposes.

The company s main exposure 1o foreign currency risk relates to the pricing of its crude oil sales, which are denominated
in US dollars, and the translation of the US$180 million oil sands term loan, On an economic basis, the company’s crude
oil and bitumen rescrves hedge the company’s exposure 1o forcign currency fluctuations of its US dollar denominated oil
sands term loan.

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION (“DD&A™)

DD&A expense is calculated using the unit-of-production method based on total estimated proved reserves. DD&A in
2006 was $32.9 million, a 468 percent increase from last year due to increased production volumes and due to the
significant additions made 1o capital assets in 2006. This equates to $33.13 per boe of production compared to $18.32 per
boe last year.

Capital costs of $156.7 million (2005 - $11.3 million) related to the Great Divide oil sands project, which is in the pre-
production stage, have been excluded from the depletion calculation, Additionally, undeveloped land acquisition costs of
$16.2 million (2005 — $2.5 million) were excluded from the depletion calculation, while future development costs of $3.2
million (2005 - $1.8 million) for proved undeveloped reserves were included in the depletion calculation.

Included in DD&A is a charge of $348,000 (2005 - $165,000) in respect of the company’s estimated asset retirement
obligations. These charges will continue to be necessary in the future to accrete the currently booked discounted liability
of $7.3 million to the estimated total undiscounted liability of $17.4 million over the remaining economic life of the
company’s oil and gas properties.

CEILING TEST

Qil and gas companics are required to compare the recoverable value of their oil and gas assets to their recorded carrying
value at the end of cach reporting period. Excess carrying values over ceiling value are to be written ofl against carnings.
No write-down was required for any reporting period in 2006 or 2003,

TAXES

The income 1ax provision of $3.9 million in 2006 includes a current tax provision of $7.4 million, principally related to
US refinery operations and a future tax recovery of $3.5 million reflecting the benefit of increased tax pools.

At December 31, 2006 the company had approximately $25.8 million of non-capital losses which do not expire before
2009, $253.5 million of deductible resource pools and $20.7 million of deductible financing costs.

EQUITY INTEREST IN PETROLIFERA PETROLEUM LIMITED
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Connacher accounts for its 26 percent equity investment in Petrolifera on the equity method basis of accounting. Undil the
third quarter of 2005, Petrolifera was consolidated with Connacher, Connacher’s equity interest share of Petrolifera’s
earnings in 2006 was $11.1 million (2005 - $27,000 loss)

DILUTION GAIN

In 2004 and in 2003, the company’s equity interest in Petrolifera was diluted as a result of Petrolifera issuing common
shares. In November 2004, the company’s equity interest was reduced from 100 percent to 61 percent; in March 2005 it
was reduced to 40 percent, in late 2005, it was reduced to 33 percent and in 2006 it was further reduced to 26 percent.
These reductions resulted in a dilution gain to the company of $23,000 in 2006 and $4.5 million in 2005.

NET EARNINGS (LOSS)

In 2006 the company reporied carnings of $7.0 million ($0.04 per basic and diluted share outstanding). This compares 1o
earnings of $991,000 or $0.01 per basic and diluted share for 2005. Earnings per boe produced was $6.98 compared to
$3.13 last year.

SHARES QUTSTANDING

For 2006, the weighted average number of common shares outstanding was 184,468,631 (2005 — 106,113,563) and the
weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding, as calculated by the treasury stock method, was 188,431,809
(2005 — 111,845,687). The substantial increase in shares outstanding year over year reflects the issuance from treasury of
55,461,382 common shares for cash proceeds of $130 million and in connection with the acquisitions of Luke and the
Montana refinery assets.

As at March 23, 2007, the company had the following securities issued and outstanding:
« 198,218,448 common shares; and
+ 15,840,057 share purchase options.

Details of the exercise provisions and terms of the outstanding options are noted in the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
At December 31, 2006, the company had working capital of $118.6 million, including $123 million of cash dedicated to
funding the remaining costs of completing Pod One.

In 2006 the company drew US$51 million on a bridge loan facility to partially fund the acquisition of the Montana
refinery assets, which closed on March 31, 2006, This bridge loan was repaid in full on October 20, 2006 from the
proceeds of a US$180 million term loan facility that was fully drawn on that date (the “oil sands term loan™). The primary
purpose of the oil sands term loan is to fund the development of the company’s first oil sands project at Great Divide in
northern Alberta (“Pod One™). Afier also depositing US$14 million into an account to fund the estimated interest costs
during the course of completing the Pod Onc project and afier paying US$4 million in costs o complete the transaction,
the balance of oil sands term loan proceeds have been designated solely 1o fund the total cstimated remaining cosis
neccssary to complete Pod One.

The oil sands term loan has a seven year term, lis principal is amortized by one percent per year commencing in 2008,
Additional repayments will be due if certain cash flow performance thresholds are attained. Principal payments on the oil
sands term loan are not expecled to be significant in the first six years. The oil sands term loan is a floating-rate facility,
bearing interest either at a US Dollar Base Rate plus a margin or a US Eurodollar rate plus a margin. In October 2006, the
company cnicred into an interest rate swap with a financial institution whereby the floating rate on US$90 million of the
oil sands term loan was fixed at an all-in rate of 8.516 percent over the term of the loan. All interest on the oil sands term
loan is being capitalized until Pod One becomes operational.

On October 20, 2006 the company also secured a US$15 million revolving line of credit (“refining line of credit™) to fund
the working capital requirements of the refinery in Great Falls, Montana. The refining line of credit has a five year term
and bears interest at a US Eurodollar rate plus a margin or at a US Dollar Base Rate plus a margin.
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The oil sands term loan and the refining line of ¢credit are secured by debenture and mortgage agreements covering all of
the assets of the refinery and all of the company’s interest in the Great Divide oil sands assets. These two facilities are
non-recourse to the company’s conventional petroleum and natural gas assets or 1o its investment in Petrolifera.

The company also has available a $55 million extendible revolving loan facility (the “conventional line of credit”) with no
scheduled repayments, At December 31, 2006, $19.5 million was drawn in the form of bankers’ acceptances under this
facility at an interest rate of 5.62 percent inctuding margin. The facility matures on April 13, 2007 and is extendible upon
request by the company, at the lender’s option for 364 days. The conventional line of credil is secured by a $50 million
fixed and floating charge debenture and a general assignment of book debts over the company’s conventional crude oil
and natural gas assets, and is non-recourse to the company’s Great Divide oil sands, its refining assets or to ils investment
in Petrolifera.

Cash flow from operations before working capital changes (“cash flow”™), cash flow per share and cash flow per boe do
not have standardized meanings prescribed by GAAP and therefore may not be comparablz to similar measures used by
other companies. Cash {low includes all cash flow from operating activities and is calculated before changes in non-cash
working capital. The most comparable measure calculated in accordance with GAAP would be net earnings. Cash flow is
reconciled with net camings on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and below.

Cash flow per share is calculated by dividing cash flow by the weighted average shares outstanding; cash flow per boe is
calculated by dividing cash flow by the quantum of crude oil and natural gas {expressed in boe) sold in the period.
Management uses these non-GAAP measurements for its own performance measures and to provide its shareholders and
investors with a measurement of the company’s cfficiency and its ability to fund a portion of its future growth
expenditures.

In addition to available cash, unused debt facilities and cash flow, additional sources of funding in the form of additional
equity issuances or additional debt financing may be utilized to provide sufficient funding for working capital purposes
and for the company’s anticipated capital program in 2007.

The company’s only financial instruments are cash, accounts receivable and payable, bank debt and the interest rate swap.
The company maintains no off-balance sheet financial instruments.

Reconciliation of net earnings to cash flow from operations before working capital changes:

Twelve months ended December 31

($000) 2006 2005
Net eamnings $6,953 $om
ltems not involving cash;

Depletion, depreciation and accretion 32,949 5,797
Stock-based compensation 8,293 1,192
Financing charges 2,237 150
Future income tax provision (recovery) (3,533) 768
Employec future benefits 381 -
Foreign exchange (gain) loss 4,287 (30)
Lease inducement amortization (268} (72)
Difution gain (23) (4,465)
Equity intercst in Petrolifcra loss (carnings) {11,073) 27
Cash flow from operations before working capital changes $40,196 $4.358

For 2006, cash flow was $40.2 million ($0.22 per basic and $0.21 per diluted share), 822 percent higher than the $4.4
million reported ($0.04 per basic and diluted share} in 2005.
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Cash flow per boe was $40.41 in 2006 compared to $13.77 in 2005. This represents 97 percent of the average company
selling price per boe compared to 37 percent in 2005 and an increase of 193 percent over 2005.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures totaled $452 million in 2006. A breakdown of the expenditures follows:

Twelve months ended December

{($000) 2006 2005
Acquisition of Luke $204,658 $-
Acquisition of refinery assets 66,333 -
Minor property acquisitions 6,767 1,700
Qil sands expenditurcs 144,765 7.224
Conventional oil and gas expenditures 23,152 7.783
Refinery expenditures 5,850 -

$451.525 516,807

Additionally, the company disposed of non-core properties for proceeds of $10 million in the fourth quarter of 2006.
Oil sands expenditures include exploratory core hole drilling, seismic, lease acquisition and facility costs. In 2006, 26
exploratory core holes were drilled.

Conventional oil and gas expenditures include costs of drilling, completing, equipping and working over conventional oil
and gas wells as well as undeveloped land acquisition and seismic expenditures.

A significant part of the company’s capital program is discretionary and may be expanded or curtailed based on drilling
results and the availability of capital. This is reinforced by the fact that Connacher operates most of its wells and holds an
approximate 87 percent working interest in its conventional properties, providing the company with operational and
{iming controls.

Recent Financings

In February 2006, the company issued 19,047,800 common shares at $5.25 per share for gross proceeds of $100 million to
fund exploration and development activities associated with conventional crude oil and natural gas activities and the Great
Divide Oil Sands project, for general corporate purposes, for working capital and to partially fund the acquisition of Luke.
Proceeds of the financing were utilized as follows:

As stated at the As actually
($000) time of financing applied
Gross proceeds $100.000 $100.000
Underwriters commission and issue costs 0.250 6.250
Available for exploration and devclopment, general corporate  purposcs
for working capital and to fund a portion of the Luke acquisition $93,750 $93,750

In September 2006, the company issued 5,714,300 common sharcs on a “flow-through” basis at $5.25 per common share
for gross proceeds of $30 million to fund cxploration activities including the further delineation of the company’s oil
sands propertics through the drilling of additional corc holes and shooting 3D seismic. Proceeds of the financing were
utilized as follows:

As stated at the As actually
(3000) time of financing applied
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Gross proceeds $30.000 $30.000
Underwrilers comimission and issue costs 2,075 1.883
Available for exploration activities $27.925 $28.117

Refer also to the “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” above, for a discussion of the US$130 million and US$15 million
debt facilities entered into in Oclober 2006.

Great Divide Qil Sands Project, Northern Alberta

The company holds a 100 percent working interest in approximately 90,000 acres of oil sands leases in northern Alberta.
To date, the focus has been on an approximate 1,586 acre tract (“Pod One”) on which approximately $155 million has
been invested to the end of 2006 to acquire the oil sands leases, 1o delineate the oil bearing reservoir, and for certain
facilities refated to the project. Capital development costs for Pod One are expected to approximate $256 million. These
costs will be incurred in 2007,

Acquisition of Luke Energy Ltd. (“Luke™)

In March 2006 the company closed the purchase of Luke for cash consideration of $92.7 million and the issuance of 29.7
million Connacher comman shares from treasury.

Luke produced natural gas, largely at Marten Creek in northern Alberta and operated most of its high working interest
propertics. This production was considered strategic to Connacher, as it provides a physical hedge to its initial
requirements for natural gas to create steam for the company’s SAGD oil sands project (Pod One) at Great Divide, Based
on purchased production volumes and anticipated development programs, the Luke purchase is expecled to provide
surplus natural gas volumes for sale in the marketplace and meet future Connacher requirements at Great Divide. Luke

was amalgamated with Connacher on January 1, 2007

Acquisition of Refining Assets in Montana

In March 2006, the company acquired an 8,300 bbl/d refinery Jocated in Great Falls, Montana, USA, for cash of $61
million and one million Conntacher common shares issued from treasury.

This acquisition was considered strategic to provide Connacher with protection against wider and more volatile type of
heavy crude oil price differential swings. These have become increasingly frequent in the current higher oil price
environment for the type of heavy oil which would be produced at Great Divide. Since its acquisition, the refinery has
been a profitable and strong business unit contributing to the company’s cash flow.

Connacher completed the purchase of the refining assets and related inventory through a new wholly-owned subsidiary,
Montana Refining Company, Inc. (“MRC™), Its continued profitability will depend largely on the spread between market
prices for refined petroleum products and the cost of crude oil.

MRC’s principal source of revenuc is from the sale of high value light end products such as gasoline, diescl and jet fuel in
markets in the western United Statcs. Additionally, MRC sclls a high grade asphalt into the local market. MRC’s principal
expenses relate to crude oi! purchascs and operating expenses.

In April 2006, MRC completed a scheduled plant “umaround” maintenance program of its refinery facilitics. Such
turnarounds are normally scheduled every two to five years. Turnaround costs are capitalized and amortized over the
period 1o the next scheduled turnaround.

With minimal additional anticipated capital investment, MRC will be capable of producing low sulfur gasoline and diesel
as required in 2008,

The above mentioned regulatory compliance items or other presently existing or future environmental regulations, could
causc management to make additional capital investments beyond those described above and/or incur additional operating
costs 10 meet applicable requirements.
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In 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law. Among other things, the Act creates tax incentives
for small refiners preparing to produce low sulphur gasoline and digsel. The Act provides an immediate deduction of 75%
of certain costs paid or incurred to comply with tthese standards and a tax credit based on production for up to 25% of
those costs. Management intends (o ulilize these incentives when it makes these required expenditures.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2006 the company paid professional legal fees of $1.8 million (2005 - $539,000) to a law {irm in which an officer and
director of the company are partners. Transactions with the foregoing related parties occurred within the normal course of
business and have been measured at their exchange amount on normal business terms, The exchange amount is the
amount of consideration established and agreed 1o by the rclated parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The signtficant accounting policies used by the company are described below. Certain accounting policies require that
management make appropriate decisions with respect to the formulation of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reporied amounts of assets, liabilitics, revenues and expenses. Changes in these estimates and assumptions may have a
material impact on the company's financial results and condition. The following discusses such accounting policies and is
included herein to aid the reader in assessing the critical accounting policies and practices of the company and the
likelihood of materially different results being reported. Management reviews its estimates and assumptions regularly.
The emergence of new information and changed circumstances may resuit in changes to estimates and assumptions which
could be material and the company might realize different resuits from the application of new accounting standards
promulgated, from lime to time, by various regulatory rule-making bodies.

The following assessment of significant accounting polices is not meant to be exhaustive.
Oil and Gas Reserves

Under Canadian Securities Regulators’ “National Instrument 51-101-Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities”
(“NI1 51-1017) proved reserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degree of certainty to be recoverable.
In accordance with this definition, the level of certainty should result in at least a 90 percent probability that the quantities
actually recovered will equal or exceed the estimated rescrves. In the case of probable reserves, which are less certain to
be recovered than proved reserves, NI 51-101 states that it must be equally likely that the actual remaining quantities
recovered will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves. Possible reserves are those
reserves less certain 1o be recovered than probable reserves. There is at least a 10 percent probability that the quantities
actualty recovered will exceed the sum of proved plus probable plus possible reserves.

The company’s oil and gas reserve estimates are made by independent reservoir engineers using all available geological
and reservoir data as well as historical production data. Estimates are reviewed and revised as appropriate. Revisions
occur as a result of changes in prices, costs, fiscal regimes, rescrvoir performance or a change in the company’s plans. The
reserve cslimates are also used in determining the company’s borrowing base for its credit facilities and may impact the
same upon revision or changes to the reserve estimates. The cffect of changes in proved oil and gas reserves on the
financial results and position of the company is described under the heading “Full Cost Accounting for Oil and Gas
Activities”.

Full Cost Accounting for Oil and Gas Activitics

The company uses the full cost method of accounting for cxploration and devclopment activities, In accordance with this
method of accounting, all costs associated with exploration and development are capitalized whether successful or not.
The aggregate of net capitalized costs and estimated future development costs is depleted using the unit-of-production
method based on estimated proved oil and gas reserves.

Major Development Projects and Unproved Propertics

Certain costs related to acquiring and evaluating unproved properties are excluded from net capitalized costs subject to
depletion until proved reserves have been determined or their value is impaired. Costs associated with major development
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projects are not depleted until commencement of commercial production. All capitalized costs are reviewed quarterly and
any impairment is transferred to the costs being depleted or, if the propertics are located in 2 cost centre where there is no
reserve base, the impairment is charged directly to income.

Ceiling Test

The company is required to review the carrying value of all property, plant and equipment, including the carrying value of
oil and gas assets, for potential impairment. Impairment is indicated if the carrying value of the long-lived asset or oil and
gas cost centre is not recoverable by the future undiscounted cash flows. If impairment is indicated, the amount by which
the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value of the long-lived asset is charged to earnings.

The ceiling test is based on estimales of reserves prepared by qualified independent evalvators, production rate, petroleum
and natural gas prices, future costs and other relevant assumptions. By their nature these estimates are subject to
measurement uncertainty and the impact on the consolidated financial statements could be material.

Assct Retirement Obligations

The company is required to provide for future removal and site restoration costs by estimating these costs in accordance
with existing laws, contracts or other policies. These estimated costs are charged to carnings and the appropriate liability
account over the expected service life of the asset. When the future removal and site restoration costs cannot be
reasonably determined, a contingent liability may exist. Contingent liabilitics are charged to earnings only when
management is able to determine the amount and the likelihood of the future obligation. The company estimates future
retirement costs based on current costs as estimated by the company’s engineers adjusted for inflation and credit risk.
These estimates are subject to management uncertainty.

Legal, Environmental Remediation and Other Contingent Matters

In respect of these matters, the company is required to determine whether a loss is protable based on judgment and
interpretation of laws and regulations and determine if such a loss can be estimated. When any such loss is determined, it
is charged to earnings. Management continually monitors known and potential contingent matters and makes appropriate
provisions by charges to carings when warranted by circumstance.

Income Taxes

The company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method tax assets are recognized
when it is more than likely realization will occur. Tax liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between
recorded book values and underlying tax values. Rates used to determine income tax asset and liability amounts are
enacted tax rates expected to be used in future periods when the timing differences reverse. The period in which a timing
difference reverses are impacted by future income and capital expenditures. Rates are also aifected by legislation changes.
These components can impact the charge for {uture income taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation

The company uses the fair value method to account for stock options. The determination of the amounts for stock-based
compensation are based on estimates of stock volatility, interest rates and the term of the option. These estimates by their
nature arc subject to measurement uncertainty.

NEW SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company has assessed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have becr issued but that are not yet
effective and has determined that the following may have a significant impact on the company.

Beginning with the year ending December 31, 2007 the company will be required to adopt, if applicable, the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™) Sections 1530, 3251, 3855 and 3865 on “Comgrehensive Income”, “Equity”,
“Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement”, and “Hedges” respectively, all of which were issued in January
2005. Under the new standards additional financial statement disclosure, namely Consolidated Statement of Other
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Comprchensive Income, has been introduced that will identify certain gains and losses, including the foreign currency
translation adjustments and other amounts arising from changes in fair value, to be temporarily recorded outside the
income statement, In addition, ali financial instruments, including derivatives, are 1o be included in the company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet and measured, in most cases, at fair values. Requirements for hedge accounting have been
further clarified. Although Connacher is in the process of evaluating the impact of these standards, the company does not
expect these standards to have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Over the next five years the CICA will adopt its new strategic plan for the direction of accounting standards in Canada,
which was ratified in January 2006. As part of the plan, Canadian GAAP for public companics will converge with
Intemnational Financial Reporting Stands (“IFRS™) over the next five ycars. The company continues 10 monitor and assess
the impact of the convergence of Canadian GAAP with IFRS.

MRC’s financial results are reported in accordance with Canadian GAAP and are consolidated with Connacher’s other
business units. The preparation of MRC's financial results require certain estimates and judgments that affect the rcported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from those estimates under difterent assumptions or conditions.
Connacher’s management considers the following new MRC accounting policies to be the most critical to understanding
the judgments that are involved and the uncertainties that could impact on the company’s results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Inventory Valuation

Crude oil and refined product inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Since acquiring the
refining assets in March 2006, management re-evaluated the inventory costing method and has chosen the average cost
method in order 10 conform to impending Canadian GAAP changes. The effect of this change was to decrease inventory
by $2.5 million at December 31, 2006 (see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Net realizable value is
determined using current estimated selling prices,

Deferred Maintenance Costs

MRC’s refinery units require regular major maintenance and repairs which are commonly referred to as “turnarounds”.
Catalysts used in certain refinery processes also require routine “change-outs”. The required frequency of the maintenance
varics by unit and by catalyst, but generally is every two to five years. Tumaround costs are capitalized and amortized
over the period to the next scheduled turnaround or change-out. In order to minimize downtime during tumarounds,
contract labor as well as maintenance personnel are utilized on a continuous 24 hour basis. Whenever possible,
turnarounds are scheduled so that some units continue to operate while others are down for maintenance. The costs of
turnarounds are recorded as deferred charges and are amortized over the expected periods of benefit.

Employec Future Bencfits

As a consequence of the refinery acquisition and related employment of refinery personncl, the company’s new US
subsidiary, MRC, adopted new cmployee future benefit plans with effect from March 31, 2006,

A new non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covers only MRC’s employees from March 31, 2006. MRC’s
policy is to make regular contributions in accordance with the funding requircments of the United Statcs Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, Benefits are to be based on the employee’s years of service and compensation.
MRC also established new defined contribution (US tax code “401(k)”) plans that cover all of its employces from March
31, 2006. The company’s contributions arc based on cmployces’ compensation and partially maich cmployce
contributions.

Long-lived Refining Assets

Depreciation and amortization is calculated based on estimated uscful lives and salvage values. When assets are placed
into service, cstimates are made with respect to their useful lives that are believed to be reasonable. Howcever, factors such
as new technologies, competition, regulation or environmental matlers could cause changes to estimates, thus impacting
the future calculation of depreciation and amortization. Long-lived assets are also evalunted for potential impairment by
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identifying whether indicators of impairment exist and, if so, assessing whether the long-lived assets are recoverable from
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. The actual amount of impairment loss, if any, (o be recorded is equal to the
amount by which a long-lived asset’s carrying value exceeds its {air value. Estimates of future discontinued cash flows
and fair values of assels require subjective assumptions with regard to future operating results and actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Goodwill
Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Luke in 2006,

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired, is assessed for impairment
annually. Goodwill and all other assets and liabilitics have been allocated to the company’s segments, referred to as
reporting units, To assess impairment, the fair value of each reporting unit is determined and compared to the book value
of the reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit ts less than the book value, then a second test is performed to
determine the amount of the impairment, The amount of the impairment is determined by deducting the fair value of the
reporting unit’s assets and liabilities from the fair value of the reporting unit to determine the implied fair value of
goodwill and comparing that amount to the book value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Any excess of the book value of
goodwill over the implied fair value of goodwill is the impairment amount.

RISK MANAGEMENT - MRC

Certain strategies could be used to reduce some commodity prices and operational risks. No attempt will be made to
eliminate all market risk exposures when it is believed the exposure relating to such risk would not be significant to future
earmings, financial position, capital resources or liquidity or that the cost of eliminating the exposure would outweigh the
benefit. MRC’s profitability will depend largely on the spread between market prices for refined products sold and market
prices for crude oil purchased. A substantial or prolonged reduction in this spread could have a significant negative effect
on earnings, financial condition and cash flows.

Petroleum commodity futures contracts could be utilized to reduce exposure to price fluctuations associated with crude oil
and refined products. Such contracts could be used principally to help manage the price risk inherent in purchasing crude
oil in advance of the delivery date and as a hedge for fixed-price sales contracts of refined products. Commodity price
swaps and collar options could also be utilized to help manage the exposure to price volatility relating to forecasted
purchases of natural gas. Contracts could also be utilized to provide for the purchase of crude oil and other feedstocks and
for the sales of refined products. Certain of these contracts may meet the definition of a hedge and may be subject to
hedge accounting,

The supply and use of heavy crude oil from the company’s Great Divide Oil Sands Project, as a feedstock for the refinery,
would provide a physical hedge to tlus exposure, as planned.

MRC’s operations are subject to normal hazards of operations, including fire, explosion and weather-related perils.
Various insurance coverages, including business interruption insurance, are maintained in accordance with industry
practices. However, MRC is not fully insured against certain risks because such risks arc not fully insurable, coverage is
unavailable, or, in management’s judgment, premium costs are prohibitive in relation to the perceived risks.

Additionally, the company has rccently issued parental guarantecs and indemnifications on behalf of MRC. This is
considered 10 be in the normal course of business, The company has not entered into any olf-balance sheet arrangements,

BUSINESS RISKS

Connacher is cxposed 1o certain risks and uncertaintics inherent in the oil and gas business. Furthermore, being a smaller
independent company, it is exposed to financing and other risks which may impair its ability to realize on its asscts or to
capilalize on opportunities which might bccome available to it. Additionally, through the company’s investment in
Petrolifera which operates in foreign jurisdictions, it has become exposed (o other risks including currency fluctuations,
political risk, price controls and varyimg forms of fiscal regimes or changes thereto which may impair Petrolifera’s ability
to conduct profitable operations.
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The risks arising in the oil and gas industry include price fluctuations for both crude oil and natural gas over which the
company has limited control; risks arising from exploration and development activities; production risks associated with
the depletion of reservoirs and the ability to market production. Additional risks include environmental and safety
concerns.

The company will require a significant amount of natural gas in order to generate steam for the SAGD process used at
Great Divide. The company is exposed to the risk of changes in the price of natural gas, which could increase operating
costs of the Great Divide project. This risk is mitigated to a certain extent by the production and sale of natural gas from
the company’s gas propertics at Marten Creck acquired with the purchase of Luke.

Additionally, the company is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations since oil prices and its long term debt are denominated
in US dollars, while the majority of its operating and capital costs are denominated in Canadian dollars. On an economic
basis, the company’s crude oil and bitumen reserves hedge the company’s exposure 10 foreign currency fluctuations of its
US dollar denominated oil sands term loan.

Bitumen is generally less marketable than light or medium crude oil, and prices received for bitumen are generally lower
than those for crude oil. The company is therefore exposed to the price differential between crude oil and bitumen;
fluctuations in this differential could have a material impact on the company’s profitability. The purchase of the Montana
Refinery was meant 10 help mitigate the risk exposure.

The company relies on access to capital markets for new cquity 1o supplement internally generated cash flow and bank
borrowings to finance its growth plans. Periodically, these markets may not be receptive 1o offerings of new equity from
treasury, whether by way of private placement or public offerings. This may be further complicated by the limited market
liquidity for shares of smaller companies, restricting access to some institutional investors. An increased emphasis on
flow-through share financings may accelerate the pace at which junior oil and gas companies become cash-taxable, which
could reduce cash flow available for capital expenditures on growth projects. Periodic fluctuations in energy prices may
also affect lending policies of the company’s banker, whether for existing loans or new borrowings. This in turn could
limit growth prospects over the short run or may even require the company to dedicate cash flow, dispose of properties or
raise new equity to reduce bank borrowings under circumstances of declining energy prices or disappointing drlling
results.

The success of the company’s capital programs as embodied in its productivity and reserve base could also impact its
prospective liquidity and pace of future activities. Control of finding, development, operating and overhead costs per boe
is an important criterion in determining company growth, success and access to new capital sources.

The company attempts to mitigate its business and operational risk exposures by maintaining comprehensive insurance
coverage on its assels and operations, by employing or contracting competent technicians and professionals, by instituting
and mainiaining operational health, safety and environmental standards and procedures and by maintaining a prudent
approach to exploration and development activities. The company also addresses and regularly reports on the impact of
risks to its shareholders, writing down the carrying values of assets that may not be recoverable.

Furthermore, the company generally rclics on equity financing and a bias towards conservative financing of its operations
under normal industry conditions to offsct the inherent risks of domestic and international oil and gas exploration,
development and production activities. In the past the company has entered into forward sale, fixed price contracts to
mitigate reduced product price risk and foreign exchange risk during periods of price improvement, primarily with a view
{0 assuring the availability of funds for capital programs and to enhance the creditworthingss of its assets with its lenders.
While hedging activitics may have opportunity costs when realized prices excced hedged pricing, such transactions are
not meant to be speculative and arc considered within the broader framework of financial stability and flexibility.
Management continuously reviews the necd to utilize such financing techniques.
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COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, GUARANTEES, CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The company’s annual commitments under leases for office premises and operating costs, software license agreements
and other cquipment, and ong term debt arc as follows:

Contractual obligations ($000) 2007  2008-2010  2011-2012 Subsequent to Total
2012
Term debt and short-term loans $19,500 $2,360 $4.079 $205,296 $231,235
Assel retirement obligations 166 31 75 7,050 7,322
Operating leases 1,426 6,355 3,323 7,649 18,753
Employee future benefits 488 - - - 488
Other long term obligations 638 1,069 - “ 1,707
Total $22,218 $9,815 57,477 $219,995 $259,505

The above table excludes ongoing crude oil and refined product purchase commitments of the Montana refinery which are
in the normal course of business and are contacted at market prices, where the products are for resale into the market.

Additionally, the company has various guarantees and indemnifications in place in the ordinary course of business, none
of which are expected to have a significant impact on the company’s financial statements or operations.

The company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures have been designed 1o ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
company is accumulated, recorded, processed and reported to the company’s management as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. The company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded, based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this MD&A, that the company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of such period are effective to provide reasonable assurance that material
information related to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is communicated to them as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the company is responsible for designing adequate internal controls over the company’s financial
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with Canadian GAAP.

It should be noted that while the company’s Chiel Exccutive Officer and Chicef Financial Officer believe that the
company’s disclosure controls and procedures provide a rcasonable level of assurance that they are cffective and that the
internal controls over financial reporting are adequately designed, they do not expect that the financial disclosure controls
and procedures or internal control over financial reporting will prevent all ersors and fraud. A control system, no matter
how well conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system arc met.

FOURTH QUARTER

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the company drew down in full the US$180 million oil sands term loan in order to
secure financing for the costs of completing Pod One at the Great Divide project and to repay the bridge loan incurred to
purchase the Montana refinery, Spending during the fourth quarter related to Pod One amounted to approximately $65
million.
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OUTLOOK

The company’s business plan anticipates substantial growth. Emphasis will continue to be on delineating and developing
the Great Divide Oil Sands Projcct in Alberta while continuing to develop the company s recently -expanded conventional
production base and profitably operating the Montana refinery. Additional financing may be required for the Great Divide
Oil Sands Project, the company s conventional petroleum and natural gas assets and for the Montana refinery.

Additional information relating to Connacher, including Connacher’s Annual Information Form, has been filed on
SEDAR at www.sgdar.com,

QUARTERLY RESULTS

Fluctuations in results over the previous eight quarters are due principally to variations in oil and gas prices and the
acquisitions of Luke and the Montana refinery in 2006, both of which increased revenues substantially. Additionally,
operating and general and administrative costs increased due to higher staff levels necessitated by the company’s growth.
Depletion, depreciation and amortization increased as a result of higher production volumes and additions to capital
assets.

2005 2006

Sept 30
Three Months Ended Mar 31 Jun 30 ® Dec3l Mar3l Jun30 Sept 30 Dec 31

Financial Highlights ($000 except per share amounts) — Unaudited

Revenue net of royalties 1,488 2,107 3,222 2978 3,635 61,239 103,110 76,700
Cash flow from operations before working capital
changes 265 877 1978 1,238 1,725 9,499 14,957 14,015
Basic, per share" - 001 002 00 0.01  0.05 0.08 0.08
Diluted, per share @ - 001 002 00 0.01 0.05 0.08 0.07
Net earnings (loss) 1,673 (230) (1,034) 582 (666) (2,419) 6,771 3,267
Basic and diluted per share 0.02 - {0.01) - - (0.01) 0.03 0.02
Capital expenditures 6,047 5,649 2870 2,241 300,836 34,280 41,449 74,960
Proceeds on disposal of PNG properties - - - - - - - 10,000
Bank debt - 250 - - 17,600 70,365 62,380 229,254
Working capital surplus {(deficiency) 5,588 854 67,440 75,427 (11,061) (42,483) (39942) 118,620
Cash on hand 828 2,629 67,708 75,511 - 7505 14,450 142,391
Shareholders’ equity 41,079 41,090 113,081 129,108 337,584 340,639 378,730 385,3%8
Operating Highlights
Production / sales volumes
Natural gas - mef/d 1,328 1,416 497 86 2,600 15,172 13,028 11,291
Crude 0il - bbl/d 629 702 808 775 689 1,026 1,084 1,139
Equivalent - boe/d @ 850 938 891 789 1,122 3,554 3,256 3,021
Pricing
Crude oil - $/bbl 30.02 41.23 5340 4154 4093  61.45 62.53 46.65
Natural gas - $/mef 1.18 099 1.88 7.55 6.34 5.66 5.33 6.57
Selected Highlights - $/boe @
Weighted average sales price 24.04 3235 4948 4161 3983 4188 42.16 42,15

Royalties 4.82 806 11.73 7.76 802 1043 10.72 2.00
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Operaling costs 7.01 7.42 7.69 8.90 8.24 1.63 7.99 9.27

Operating netback @ 1221 1687 3006 24.95 23.57  23.82 23.45 23.88

Common Share Information

Shares outstanding at cnd of period (000) 92,753 93,013 134,236 139,940 191,237 191,924 197878 197,804

Weighted average shares outstanding for the period

Basic (000) 91,189 92,875 103,851 136,071 154,152 191,672 193,587 193,884

Diluted (000) 94,197 95,555 106,397 142,507 160,574 198,931 200,572 204,028
Volume traded during quarter (000) 40,486 16,821 180,848 100,246 148,184 86,347 48,849 46,444
Common share price (3)

High 1.22 1.05 2.69 420 6.07 5.05 4.55 4.43

Low 0.49  0.68 0.76 1.09 3.47 3.10 3.09 3.17

Close (end of period) 093 082 2.54 3.84 4.95 4.30 3.60 3.49

(0

2)

3
“)

Casl flow from operations before working capital changes and cash flow per share do not have standardized meanings prescribed by Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“*GAAP™) and therefore may not be comparable 10 similar measures used by other companies. Cash
flow [rom operations before working capital changes includes all cash flow from operating activities and is calculated before changes in non-
cash working capital, The most comparable measure calculated in accordance with GAAP would be net earnings. Cash flow from operations
before working capital changes is reconciled with net ecarnings on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and in the accompanying
Menagement Discussion & Analysis. Management uses these non-GAAP measurements for its own performance measures and to provide its
shareholders and investors with a measurement of the company's efficiency and its ability to fund & portion of its future growth expenditures.
All references to barrels of oil equivalent (boe) are calculated on the basis of 6 mef : 1 bbl. Boe may be misleading, particularly if used in
isolation. This conversion is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the bumer tip and does not represent a
value equivalency &t the wellhead.

In the third quarter of 2005, the company discontinued consolidating the financial and operational results of Petrolifera Petroleum Limited.
Comparative figures have not been restated.

Operating netback is 2 non-GAAP measure used by management as a measure of operating efficiency and profitability. It is calculated as
petroleum and natural gas revenue less royalties and operating costs.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Connacher Qil and Gas Limited

December 31
($000) 2006 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents $19,603 $75,511
Restricted cash (Note 15(c)) 122,788 -
Accounts receivable 30,956 1,605
Refinery inventories (Note 4) 24,437 -
Due from Petrolifera (Note 5) 32 221
Prepaid cxpenses 1,525 407
199,341 77,744
Property and equipment (Nole 6) 384,311 45,242
Goodwill (Note 3) 103,676 -
Deferred charges (Note 7) 4,005 256
Investment in Pcirolifera (Note 5) 21,597 10,496
Futurc income tax assct (Notc 8) - 1,075

5712,930 $134,813
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LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $57,571 52,184
Income taxes payable 3,644 132
Current portion of bank debt {Note 9) 19,500 -
80,715 2,316
Asset retirement obligations (Note 10) 7,322 3,108
Deferred credits - 281
Employee future benelits (Note 11) 388 -
Bank debt (Note 9) 209,754 -
Future income taxes {Note 8) 29,353 -
327,532 5,705
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital and contributed surplus (Note 12) 376,500 127,033
Cumulative translation adjustment {130) -
Retained earnings 9,028 2,075
385,398 129,108
$712,930 $134,813

Commitments, contingencies and guarantees (Note 16)

Approved by the Board
Signed Signed

“D.H. Bessell”, Director “C.M. Evans”, Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Connacher Qil and Gas Limited
Years Ended December 31
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($000, except per share amounts) 20006 2005
REVENUE
Petroleum and natural gas revenue, net of royaltics $31,786 $9,095
Refining and markeling salcs 211,874 -
Interest and other income 1,024 700
244,684 9,795
EXPENSES
Petroleum and natural gas operating costs 8,270 2,445
Refining - crude oil purchases and operating costs 182,668 -
General and administrative 3,886 2,660
Stock-based compensation (Note 12) 7,816 1,192
Finance charges 5,086 308
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 4,287 (30)
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 32,949 5,797
244,962 12,372
Loss before income taxes and other items (278) (2,577)
Current income tax provision (Note 8) 7,405 102
Future income tax provision (recovery) (3,535) 768
3,870 870
Loss before other items (4,148) (3,447
Equity intcrest in Petrolifera carnings (loss) (Note 5) 11,078 27
Dilution gain (Note 5) 23 4,465
NET EARNINGS 6,953 991
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,075 1,084
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $9,028 $2,075
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 15(a))
Basic and diluted 50.04 $0.01




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
Connacher QOil and Gas Limited
Years Ended December 31
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($000) 2006 2005
Cash provided by (used in) the following activilies:
OPERATING
Net carnings $6,953 $991
Items not involving cash:
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 32,949 5,797
Stock-based compensation (Note 12) 8,293 1,192
Financing charges 2,237 150
Employee future benefits 381 -
Future income tax provision (recovery) (3,535) 768
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 4,287 30)
Dilution gain (23) (4,465)
Lease inducement amortization (268) (72)
Equity interest in Petrolifera (eamings) loss (11,078) 27
Cash flow from operations before working capilal changes 40,196 4,358
Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 15 (b)) (9,271) (485)
30,925 3,873
FINANCING
Issue of common shares, net of share issue costs 123,188 86,512
Increase in bank debt 280,078 -
Repayment of bank debt (57,707) -
Issue of shares by Petrolifera, net of share issue costs - 6,228
Deferred financing costs - (258)
345,559 92,482
INVESTING
Acquisition and development of oil and gas properties (175,033) (16,807)
Proceeds on disposal of oil and gas properties 10,000 -
Increase in restricted cash (Note 15(c)) (122,788) -
Acquisition of Luke Energy Lid. (Note 3) (92,692) -
Acqusition of refimng assets (Note 3) (61,273) -
Acquisition of other asscls (5,185) -
Purchase of Petrolifera shares (Note 5) - {(6,000)
Collection of Petrolifera note (Note 5) - 750
Change in non-cash working capital (Note 15(b)) 14,122 396
(432,849) (21,661)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (56,365) 74,694
Impact on cash resulling from de-consolidation of Petrolifcra (Note 5) - (3,097
Impact of foreign exchange on foreign currency denominated cash balances 457 -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 75,511 3,914

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 519,603 $75,511

Supplementary information — Note 15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Connacher Oil and Gas Limited
Years Ended December 31. 2006 and 2005

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Connacher Oil and Gas Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Connacher” or the “company™) and are presented in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. Operating in Canada, and in the U.S. through its subsidiary Montana Refining Company, Inc.
(“MRC”), the company is in the business of exploring, developing, producing, refining and marketing conventional
petroleum and natural gas and has recently commenced exploration and development of bitumen in the oil sands of
northern Alberta. Prior to the de-consolidation of Petrolifera in 2005 (Note 3) it also conducted a conventional petroleum
and natural gas business in Argentina.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term deposits with initial maturities of three months or less, when purchased.

Inventory Valuation

Crude oil and refined product inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Subsequent to the
acquisition of the refining assets, the company has adopted the average cost method; net realizable value is determined

using current estimated selling prices.
Deferred charges

Costs incurred in respect of transactions not compleied have been temporarily capitalized and will be recognized on
completion of the transactions,

Petroleum and natural gas operations

The company follows the full cost method of accounting whereby all costs relating to the exploration for and development
of crude oil and natural gas rescrves arc capitalized on a country by country cost centre basis.

Capitalized costs of petrolcum and natural gas propertics and related cquipment withi a cost centre are depleted and
depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on estimated proved crude oil and natural gas rcserves before
royalites as determined by independent consulting engineers. For the purpose of this calculation, production and reserves
of natural gas are converted to equivalent units of crude oil based on relative energy content (6:1).

The company applies a “ceiling test” to the net book value of petroleum and natural gas properties to cnsure that such
carrying value does not exceed the estimated fair valuc of the propertics. The carrying value is assessed 1o be recoverable
when the sum of the undiscounted cash flows cxpected from the production of proved reserves and the lower of cost less
impairment of unproved properties cxceeds the carrying value. If the carrying value is assessed to not be recoverable, the
calculation compares the carrying value (o the sum of the discounted cash flows expected from the production of proved
and probable reserves and the lower of cost less impairment of unproved properties. Should the carrying value exceed this
sum, an impairment loss is recognized. The cash flows are estimated using projected future product prices and costs and
are discounted using the credit adjusted risk-free interest rate.
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Costs of acquiring and evaluating unproved properties are excluded from costs subject to depletion and depreciation until
it is determined whether or not proved reserves are atiributable to the properties or impairment occurs. Costs associated
with major development projects are not depleted until commencement of commercial production. All capitalized costs
are reviewed quarterly and any impairment is transferred to the costs being depleted or, if the properties are located in a
cost centre where there is no reserve base, the impairmient is charged dircetly o income.

To date, all costs, including financing costs, incurred in relation to the oil sands project in Northern Alberta have been
capitalized as the project is considered to be in the pre-production stage. Judgment is required in order to determine when
commercial operations have commenced. Once commercial operations have been achieved, revenue will be recognized,
operating costs will be expensed to earnings and the capitalized costs of the project will be added 1o the full cost pool and
depleted wsing the unit-of-production method.

Gains or losses on sales of properties are recognized only when crediting the proceeds to the cost pool would result in a
change of 20 percent or more in the depletion and depreciation rate.

Furniture, equipment and leascholds

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost and ar¢ being depreciated on a declining balance basis at rates of 20 percent
to 30 percent per year. Leaseholds are amortized over the lease term.

Refining Assets

Depreciation and amortization is calculated based on estimated useful lives and salvage values. When assets are placed
into service, estimates are made with respect to their useful lives that are believed to be reasonable. However, factors such
as competition, regulation or environmental matters could cause changes to estimatcs, thus impacting the future
caiculation of depreciation and amortization. Long-lived refining assets are also evaluated for potential impairment by
identifying whether indicators of impairment exist and, if so, assessing whether the long-lived assets are recoverable from
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. The actual amount of impairment loss, if any, to be recorded is equal to the
amount by which a long-lived asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value. Estimates of future discontinued cash flows
and fair values of assets require subjective assumptions with regard to future operating results and actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Deferred Maintenance Costs

The refining assets require regular major maintenance and repairs which are commonly referred to as “turnarounds”.
Catalysts used in certain refinery processes also require routine “change-outs”. The required frequency of the mainienance
varies by assct type and by catalyst, but generally is every two to five years. The costs of tumarounds are recorded as
deferred charges and are amortized over the period to the next scheduled tumaround or change-out.

Investment in Petrolifera Petroleumn Limited

The investment in Petrolifera Petrolcum Limited (“Petrolifera™) is accounted for on an equity basis, whereby the carrying
value reflects the company s investment, at the lower of cost and fair value, and the company’s equity interest share of its
accumulated income and losses. Any permanent decline in value would be charged to earnings.

Income taxes

The company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, income tax liabilities and
assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributed to differences between the amounts reported in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases, using substantively enacted income tax rates. The effect of a change in
income tax rates on future income tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs.
Future tax assets recognized are assessed by management at each balance sheet datc for impairment. An impairment is
recognized when management assesses that it’s not more likely than not that the asset will be recovered.
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Goodwill

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired, is assessed for impairment
annually. Goodwill and all other asscts and liabilities have been allocated to the company’s segments, referred to as
reporting units. To assess impairment, the fair value of each reporting unit is determined and compared to the book value
of the reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the book value, then a second test is performed to
determine the amount of the impairment. The amount of the impairment is determined by deducting the fair value of the
reporting unit’s assets and liabilities from the fair value of the rcporting unit to determine the implied fair value of
goodwill and comparing that amount to the book value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Any excess of the book valuc of
goodwill over the implied fair value of goodwill is the impairment amount.

Asset retirement obligations

The company recognizes an asset retirement obligation liability for abandoning oil and natural gas wells, rclated facilities,
compressors and gas plants, removal of equipment from leascd acreage and returning such land to its original condition by
estimating and recording the fair value of each asset retirement obligation arising in the period a well or related assel is
drilled, constructed or acquired. This fair value is estimated using the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
to abandon the asset at the company’s credit adjusted risk-frce interest rate and includes estimates for inflation. The
obligation is reviewed regularly by management based upon current regulations, costs, technologies and industry
standards. The discounted obligation is initially capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related oil and natural gas
property and a corresponding liability is recognized. The Hability is accreted against income until it is settled or the
property is sold and is included as a component of depletion and depreciation expense. The amount of the capitalized
retirement obligation is depleted and depreciated on the same basis as the other capitalized oil and natural gas property
costs. Actual restoration expenditures are charged to the accumulated obligation as incurred and costs for properties
disposed are removed.

Employee future benefits

The costs of the defined benefit pension plan and other retirement benefits are actuarially determined using the projected
benefit method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary
escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs. For the purpose of calculating the expected
return on plan assets, those assets are valued at a market-related value. The cost of the company’s portion of the defined
contribution plan is expensed as incurred.

Flow-through shares

The resource expenditure deductions for income tax purposes related to exploratory and development activities funded by
flow-through share arrangements are renounced to investors in accordance with tax legislation. Accordingly, share capital
is reduced and the future income tax liability is increascd by the tax benefits rclated to the cxpenditures at the time they
are renounced.

Foreign currency translation

The company has asscssed the operations of MRC (o be scll-sustaining. Asscts and liabititics of self-sustaining forcign
operations arc translaled into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in cffect at the balance sheet date and revenues and
expenses are translatced at the average monthly rates of exchange during the periods. Gains or fosses on translation of sctf-
sustaining foreign operations arc included in currency translation adjustment in shareholders’ cquity.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, amounts due from/to Petrolifera, bank debt
and accounts payable. All carrying values of financial instruments approximate fair value unless otherwise noted. The fair
value of interest rate swaps and all payments reccived or made under interest rate swaps arc recorded as part of financing
COSts.
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Joint venture operations

A part of the company’s activities are conducted with others, and these consolidated financial statcments reflect only the
company’s proportionale interest in such activitics.

Revenue recognition

Petroleumn and natural gas sales and refined product sales are recognized as revenuc at the time the respective
commodities are delivered to purchasers.

Stock-based compensation

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The amount is expensed or capitalized and credited 1o contributed surplus over the vesting period. Upon exercise of the
options, the exercise proceeds together with amounts credited to contributed surplus, are credited to share capital,

Segment reporting
Management has determined that the company operates in the following segments:

Canada Oil and Gas includes the exploration, development, production and sales in western Canada of
conventional and unconventional hydrocarbon reserves.

Canada Administrative includes assets not related directly to any of the company’s other business segments, being
primarily the company’s investment in Petrolifera. Income and expense in this segment are comprised mainly of equity in
the earnings of Petrolifera, financing charges, stock-based compensation and general and administrative expenses.

USA Refining includes the refining and marketing of refined petroleum products from the company’s refinery
in Great Falls, Montana.

Arpgentina Qil and Gas includes the exploration, development, production and sales of conventional crude oil and
natural gas in Argentina, through the company's investment in Petrolifera during the time its results were consolidated.

The above have been defined as the operating segments of the company because they (a) produce products which are
sufficiently differentiated from cach other so as to be separately identifiable, (b) are those whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
each segment and assess its performance; and (c) are those for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment accounting policics are the same as those described in this summary of significant accounting policies. Transfers
of asseis between segments are recorded at book amounts.

Mcasurement uncertainty

The timely preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires that management make cstimates and assumptions and use judgment regarding the reported
amounts of assels and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of reveriues
and expenses during the period. Such estimates primarily relate to unscttied transactions and events as of the date of the
consolidated financial statcments. Accordingly, actual results may differ from cstimated amounts as future confirming
events occur. Income taxes are subject 1o re-assessment by tax authoritics. Estimates of the stage of completion of capital
projects at the financial statement date affect the calculation of additions to property, plant and equipment and the related
accrued liability.

Amounts recorded for depreciation, depletion and accretion, asset retirement costs and obligations, amounts used for
ceiling test and impairment calculations and amounts used in the determination of future taxes are based on estimates of
natural gas and crude oil reserves and future costs required to develop those reserves. By their nature, these estimates of
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reserves, including the estimates of future prices and costs, and the related future cash flows are subject to measurement
uncertainty.

Credit risk

The majority of the accounts receivable is in respect of refining operations. The company generally extends unsecured
credit to customers and therefore, the collection of accounts receivable may be affected by changes in economics or other
conditions. Management believes this risk is mitigated by the size and reputation of the companies to which credit has
been extended. The company has not historically expericnced any material credit loss in the collection of accounts
receivable.

Commodity and financial risk management

The company periodically enters into fixed price crude oil sales contracts for the physical delivery of its crude oil to
reduce the exposure to commodity price (luctuations; and occasionally these contracts are denominated in Canadian
dollars to mitigate foreign exchange risks. At December 31, 2006 there were no such contracts in place. Additionally, the
company is exposed to interest rate risk as a portion of the company’s bank debt is subject 1o floating interest rates.

Per share amounts

Basic per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year.
The company follows the treasury stock method to calculate diluted per share amounts. The treasury stock method
assumes that any proceeds from the exercise of in-the-money stock options and other dilutive instruments plus the amount
of stock-based compensation not yet recognized would be used to purchase common shares at the average market price
during the period.

3 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
During 2006, Connacher completed the following transactions:

{a) Acquisition of Luke Energy Litd.

The company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of Luke Energy Lid. (“Luke”) on March 16, 2006.
The results of operations of Luke have been included in the financial statements since that date. Net assets acquired and
consideration paid were as follows:

(5000)

Net assets acquired:
Petroleum and natural gas assets $153,755
Goodwill 103.676
Asset retirement obligations (Note 10) : (2,109)
Working capital deficit (19.308)
Future income tax liability (31,356)

Net assels acquired $204.658

Considcration paid:

Cash $92.692
Common shares (Note 13) 111.966
$204.658

Included in cash considcration paid are transaction costs of $1.2 million, The value of the common share consideration
paid was determined by reference to the market value of the company s shares at the time of announcing the acquisition.
Effective January 1, 2007, Luke was amalgamalted with Connacher.
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{b) Acquisition of refining assects
On March 31, 2006 the company acquired all of the assets of a refinery in Great Falls, Montana. The refinery’s resulis of
operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements from that date. Net assets acquired and
consideration paid were as follows:

{($000)
Net assets acquired:
Refining assets $46,337
Inventory 19,996
Net assets acquired $66.333

Consideration paid:

Cash $61,273
Common shares (Note 12) 5.060
$66,333

Included in cash consideration paid are transaction costs of $1.2 million. The value of the common share consideration
paid was determined by reference to the market value of the company’s shares at the time of announcing the acquisition.

The purchase agreement commits the vendor to resolve any environmental liabilities arising over the next five years for
environmental matters existing at the purchase date.

As a means to facilitate the expeditious transition of the ongoing refinery business, MRC assumed all of the ongoing
purchase and sales contracts with suppliers and customers of the refinery. These contracts are all short-term in nature and
necessitated some guarantees from Connacher, all considered to be in the normal course of business.

4, REFINERY INVENTORIES
Inventories at December 31 consist of the following:

($000) 2006 2005
Crude oil $3.520 $-
Other raw materials and unfinished products < 1,292 -
Refined products & 17,440 -
Process chemicals ¥ 909 -
Repairs and maintenance supplies and other 1,276 -
$24.437 3-
43)] Other raw materials and unfinished products include feedstocks and blendstocks, other than crude oil. The

inventory carrying value includes the costs of the raw materials and transportation.

(2) Refined products include gasoline, jet fuels, diesels, asphalts, liquid petroleum gases and residual fuels. The
inventory carrying value includes the cost of raw materials including transportation and direct production costs,

3) Process chemicals include catalysts, additives and other chemicals. The inventory carrying value includes the cost
of the purchased chemnicals and related freight.

Subsequent to the acquisition of the refincry, management changed the method of inventory cost determination from the
last in, first out (LIFQ) method 1o the average cost method. Had the LIFO method been used throughout 2006, inventory
at December 31, 2006 would have been increased by $2.5 million, refinery cost of sales would have been decreased by
$2.4 million and net income would have been increased by $1.5 million.
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3. INVESTMENT IN PETROLIFERA PETROLEUM LIMITED (“PETROLIFERA™)

In the third quarter of 2005 the company discontinued consolidating the financial results of Petrolifera, as the company
was no longer considercd to control Petrolifera due to the election of independent dircctors and the reduction in its
ownership pereentage below 50%. The investment in Petrolifcra has since been accounted for following the cquity basis
of accounting,

The impact of not consolidating Petrolifera had the effect of reducing the company’s net assets by $4.1 million as follows:

($000)

Cash $(3.097
Other current asscts (321)
Future income tax asset (985)
Property and equipment (4,110)
Current liabilities 381
Asset retirement obligations 442
Non-controlling interests 3.564
Changes in net asscts $(4.126)
Connacher’s investment in Petrolifera at the time of de-consolidation $4.126
Increases (decreases) in investment:

Equity interest in Petrolifera’s loss from the time of deconsolidating to December 31, 2005 (27
Collection of Promissory Note and reclassification of amounts due from Petrolifera {1,047
Purchase of shares in Petrolifera 6,000
Dilution pain on shares issued by Petrolifera to unrelated parties afier de-consolidation 1444
Investment in Petrolifera. December 31, 2005 10,496
Equity in Petrolifera’s 2006 carnings 11,078
Dilution gain resulting from issuance of Petrolifera shares in 2006 23
Investment in Petrolifera, December 31, 20006 $21,597

Dilution gains have been recognized whenever changes have occurred in the company’s equity interest in Petrolifera,
most notably relative to Petrolifera’s $7 million private placement financing completed in March 2005 when Connacher’s
equity interest holding was reduced from 61 percent to 40 percent, resulting in a dilution gain of $3 million. Although
Connacher participated in Petrolifera’s $21.3 million initial public offering in November 2005 by investing $6 million,
Connacher’s equity investment interest was reduced to 35 percent and a further dilution gain of $1.5 million was then
recognized.

In consideration for the assistance provided to Petrolifera in securing two Peruvian licenses for exploratory lands and for
the provision of financial puaranices respecting Petrolifcra’s annual work commitments in the two licensed blocks in
2005, Connacher was granted an option to acquire 200,000 common shares at $0.50 per share and was granted a 10
percent carried working interest (“CWI™) through the drilling of the first well on cach block. Petrolifera has the right of
first purchase of this CWI should Connacher elect to sell it at some future date. The CWI is convertible at the holder’s
election into a two percent gross overriding royalty on cach license after the drilling of the first well on each block.

Under the terms of a Management Services Agreement with Petrolifera which expires in May 2007, Connacher provides
all management, operational, accounting and general and administrative services necessary or appropriate 1o manage and
operate Petrolifera. The fee for this service $15,000 per month. At December 31, 2006, Connacher was owed $32,000 for
these services, and for other amounts advanced and other amounts paid on Petrolifera’s behalf (2005 - $221,000).
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6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated

Diepletion,
Depreciation and Net
($000) Cost Amortization Book Value
2006
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment $377,172 $43,816 $333,350
Refining assets 51,959 2,319 49,640
Furniture, equipment and leaseholds 2,625 1,310 1,315
£431,756 547,445 $384,311
2005
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment $60,291 515,680 $44,611
Fumiture, equipment and leaseholds 1,058 427 631
$61,349 $16,107 $45,242

In 2006, the company capitalized $4.5 mitlion (2005 - $615,000) of general and administrative expenses, including stock-
based compensation of $3.5 million (2005 - $410,000), related to conventional petroleum and natural gas activities and oil
sands activities and $7.9 million (2005 — $nil) of interest and financing costs related to major development projects.

Depletion, depreciation and accretion expense includes a charge of $348,000 (2005 - $165,000) to accrete the company’s
estimated asset retirement obligations (Note 10).

The ceiling test as at December 31, 2006 excludes $16.2 million (2005 — $2.5 million) of undeveloped land and $156.7
million (2005 — $11.2 million) of major development projects, principally related to o1l sands assets in the pre-production
stage, which have been separately evaluated by management for impairment. Based on the ceiling test and other
assessments, no impairment has been recorded at December 31, 2006.

Connacher’s oil and natural gas reserves were evaluated by qualified independent evaluators as at December 31, 2006 ina
report dated March 9, 2007. The evaluation was conducted in accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators’
National Instrument 51-101, using the following base price assumptions adjusted for the company’s product quality and
transporiation differentials:

Bitumen
Wellhcad WTI @ Cushing Alberta Spot
Current ($US/bbI) {CDN$/mcf)
(CDN$/bbI)
2007 31.50 62.00 7.25
2008 32.75 60.00 7.50
2009 33.50 58.00 7.50
2010 33.37 57.00 7.50
2011 34.50 57.00 7.50
+ approximately 2% y 0
afler 2012 + approximately 2% thereafier

7. DEFERRED CHARGES

The balance of $4 million as at December 31, 2006 represents deferred maintenance costs. Deferred charges of $256,000
at December 31, 2005 relate to costs incurred in respect of transactions incomplete at that date and which were
subsequently capitalized to property, plant and equipment.
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8. INCOME TAXES
The following table reconciles income taxes calculated at the Canadian statutory rate with recorded income taxes:

Years Ended December 31 ($000) 20006 2005
Eamings before income taxes $10.823 $1.861
Canadian statutory rate 35.4% 39.0%
Expected income taxcs {recovery) 3,831 726
Non-deductible Canadian crown payments 1,729 555
Canadian resource allowance (945) (371)
Impact of reduction in Canadian tax rates and other (3,955) 245
Foreign taxes (recovery) 973 (17
Capital taxes 502 119
Non taxable portion of capital gains 762 -
Equity income and dilution gain (1,962) (8532)
Non deductible stock-based compensation 2,935 465
Provision for taxes $3.870 $870

The company had the following future tax assets (liabilities) relating to temporary timing differences:

As at December 31 ($000) ) 2006 2005
Book value in excess of tax basis of property, plant and equipment $(37,628) $(2,370)
Non-capital losses carried forward 7,754 1,075
Foreign exchange gain on debt 882 -
Partnership deferral (5,930) -
Investment in Petrolifcra (1,980) -
Deferred maintenance costs (1,547) -
Share issue costs 6,463 2,370
Assel retirement obligation 2,158 -
Other 475 -
Net future income tax asset (liability) $(29,353) $1.075

At December 31, 2006 the company had approximately $25.8 million of non-capital losses which cxpire at various
periods to 2026, $253.5 million of deductible resource pools and $20.7 million of deductible {inancing costs.

9. BANK DEBT
The company had the following loans outstanding, as at December 31:

($000) 2006 2005
Conventional line of credit 319,500 3-
Refincry line of credit - -
Oil sands term loan 209,754 -
Total 229,254 -
Less current portion 19,500 -

Long-lerm portion $:209,754 §-
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At December 31, 2006, the company had available a $55 million Extendible Revolving Loan Facility (the “Conventional
line of credit™). Borrowings arc available in the form of prime loans, bankers’ acceptances, US dollar base rate loans,
LIBOR loans and letters of credit. As at December 31, 2006, $19.5 million in bankers’ acceplances were oulstanding at a
rate of 5.62 percent and $168 thousand in letters of credit were issued. The facility’s borrowing base is redetermined
semi-annually bascd on the lending value of the company’s conventional crude oil and natural gas reserves, as determined
by the company’s lenders in accordance with customary practice. The facility matures on April 15, 2007 and is extendible
upon request by the company and at the lender’s option for 364 days. The Conventional line of credit is secured by a $50
million fixed and floating charge debenture and a general assignment of book debts over the company’s conventional
crude oil and natural gas reserves and assets, and is non-recourse to the company’s Great Divide oil sands, its refining
assets and its investment in Petrolifera.

At December 31, 2006 the company also had available a US$15 million revolving line of credit (the “Refinery line of
credit™) to fund the working capital requirements of the refinery in Great Falls, Montana. Borrowings arc available under
this facility in the form of US dollar base rate loans, US Eurodollar rate loans and letters of credit. As at December 31,
2006 no amounts were drawn on this facility other than US$1.7 million of letters of credit. This facility matures October
20, 2011 and is sccured by debenture and mortgage agreements covering all of the assets of the refinery and all of the
company’s interest in its Great Divide oil sands assets but is non-recourse to the company’s conventional petroleum and
nalural gas assets and investment in Petrolifera.

In October 2006, the company secured a US$180 million, scven-year term loan (the “Oil sands term lean™). The full
amount of the loan was drawn to fund US$51 million of the acquisition cost of the Montana refinery, to fund a US $14
million debt-service reserve account and to fund all of the remaining budgeted costs to complete the development of Pod
One, the company s first oil sands project at Great Divide in northern Alberta. The loan is a floating rate facility, bearing
interest either at a US dollar base rate plus a margin or a US Eurodollar rate plus a margin. The loan’s Eurodollar interest
rate as at December 31, 2006 was 8.61 percent. In October 2006 the company entered into an interest rate swap with a
financial institution whereby the floating rate on US$90 millien of the loan was fixed at an all-in rate of 8.516 percent
over the term of the loan. All interest on this loan is being capitalized until Pod One becomes operational. One percent of
the principal is required to be repaid annually, commencing in the fourth quarter of 2008.  The oil sands term loan is
secured by debenture and mortgage agreements covering all of the assets of the refinery and all of the company’s interest
in its Great Divide oil sands assets, but is non-recourse to the company’s conventional petroleum and natural gas assets
and to its investment in Petrolifera.

As indicated above, at December 31, 2006, the company had in place an interest rate swap to convert the effective rate on
one-half of the oil sands term loan to an all-in fixed interest rate of 8.516 percent. The fair value of this interest rate swap
at December 31, 2006 was a liability of $1.4 million.

Principal repayments under the aforementioned loans are due as follows: ($000)

2007 $19,500
2008 524
2009 2,008
2010 2,098
2011 2,098
Thereafter 202,936

$229,254

10. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the obligation associated with the
company’s retirement of its conventional petrolcum and natural gas propertics and facilitics and its oil sands properties
and facilities,
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Year ended December 31 ($000) 2006 2005
Asset retirement obligations, beginning of year $3.108 $2.905
Liabilities incurred 2,384 el
Liabilities acquired (Note 3(a)) 2,109 -
Liabilities settled with Petrolifera deconsolidation - (442)
Liabilitics disposed {864) (24)
Change in estimaied future cash flows 237 203
Accrelion expense 348 165
Asset retirement obligations. end of vear $7.322 $3.108

At December 31, 2006 the estimated total undiscounted amount required to settle the asset retirement obligations was
$17.4 million (2005 - $5.4 million). These obligations are expected to be settled over the useful lives of the underlying
assets, which currently exiend up to 20 years into the future. This amount has been discounted using a credit-adjusted risk-
free interest rate of six percent and an inflation rate of 2.0 percent,

The company has not recorded an asset retirement obligation for the Montana refinery as it is currently the company’s
intent to maintain and upgrade the refinery so that it will be operational for the foreseeable future. Consequently, it is not
possible at the present time to estimate a date or range of dates for settlement of any asset retirement obligation related to
the refinery.

11. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

During 2006, the company established the following retirement/savings plans for its employees: a defined benefit pension
plan and a defined contribution savings plan for its new US-based employces and a defined contribution savings plan for
its Canadian employees.

(a) The defined benefit pension plan

As a consequence of the refinery acquisition and related employment of refinery personnel, the company’s new US
subsidiary, Montana Refining Company, Inc. (“MRC™), adopted a new non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan
(the “Plan”) covering MRC’s employees on March 31, 2006, MRC’s policy is to make regular contributions in
accordance with the funding requirements of the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as
determined by regular actuarial valuations. The company’s pension obligation is based on the employees’ years of service
and compensation, effective from, and after, March 31, 2006.

MRC is responsible for administering the plan. MRC has retained the services of an independent and professional
investment manager, as fund manager, for the related investment portfolio. Among the factors considered in developing
the investment policy are the Plan’s primary investment goal, rate of return objective, investment risk, investment time
horizon, role of asset classes and asset allocation.

Details of this Plan and the December 31, 2006 actuarial valuation are as follows:

Pension benefits

($000)

Components of net benefits cost

Current scrvice cost $365
Interest cost 16
Net benefit cost 8381

Change in benefit obligation:
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Benefit obligation at acquisition of refinery -
Current service cost 365
Interest cost 16
Forcign currency translation 7
Benefit obligation at December 31, 2006 3388

Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consists of:

Accrued benefits 5(388)

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2006

Discount rate 5.75%

Long-term rate of compensation increase 3.00%

(b) The MRC defined contribution savings plan for United States employees

MRC also established new defined contribution (US tax code “401(k)™), savings plans that cover all of its employees from
March 31, 2006. MRC’s contribwtions are based on employees’ compensation and partially match employee
contributions, In 2006, MRC contributed $201,000 to this plan.

(c) The defined contribution savings plan for Canadian employees

In 2006, the company established a new defined contribution savings plans for its Canadian employees, whereby the
company matches employee contributions to a maximum of eight percent of each employee’s salary. In 2006, the
company coatributed $121,500 to this plan.

12, SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
Authorized

The authorized share capital comprises the following:

 Unlimited number of common voling shares

» Unlimited number of first preferred shares

» Unlimited number of second preferred sharcs

Issued
Only common shares have been issued by the company.

Number Amount
of Shares ($000)
Balance, December 31, 2004 89,626,743 $38,756
Issued for cash in public offerings (a) 45,541,000 90,001
Issued upon exercise of stock options (d) 981,000 666
Issued upon exercise of warrants (e) 3,791,705 1,986
Share issuc costs (3,980)
Tax effect of share issue costs 2,339

Tax effect of expenditures renounced pursuant to the issuance of flow
through common shares (f) (2,697)
Balance, December 31, 2005 139,940,448 125,071
Issued for cash in privale placement (b) 19,047,800 100,001

Issued for cash in public offerings (c) 5,714,300 30,000
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Issued for Luke acquisition (Note 3) 29,699,282 111,966
Issued for refinery acquisition (Note 3) 1,000,000 5,060
Issued upon exercise of options {d) 998,365 1,017
Issued upon exercise of warrants (g) 1,493 820 881
Share issue costs (8,390)
Tax cffect of share issue costs 2,924
Tax effect of expenditures renounced pursuant to the issuance of {low through (5.448)
common shares (g) ’
Balance, December 31, 2006 197,894,015 $363,082

Contributed Surplus:

Balance, December 31, 2004 $535
Fair value of share options granted in 2005(d) 1,588
Assigned value of options exercised in 20035 (161)

Balance, December 31, 2005 1,962
Fair value of options granted in 2006 (d) 11,777
Assigned value of options exercised in 2006 (321

Balance Contributed Surplus, December 31, 2006 $13,418

Total Share Capital and Contributed Surplus:
December 31, 2005 $127.033
December 31, 2006 $376,500

{a) Public Offerings — 2005

In September 2005 the company issued from treasury 40,541,000 common shares at $1.85 per share. In December 2005
the company issued from treasury another five million common shares on a flow-through basis at $3.00 per share,
renouncing resource expenditures of $15 million effective December 31, 2003,

(b) Private Placement — 2006
In February 2006, the company issued 19,047,800 common shares from trcasury at $5.25 per share on a private placement

basis.

(c) Flow-through Share Issue - 2006

In September 2006, the company issued from treasury 5,714,300 common shares on a flow through basis at $5.25 per
share. The company agrecd to renounce the related resources expenditurcs of $30 million to the flow through investors
cffective December 31, 2006, The company has until December 31, 2007 1o incur the cligible resource expenditures. As
at December 31, 2006 $6.5 million of these expenditurcs have been incurrcd.

{d) Stock Options

A summary of the company’s outstanding stock options, as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and changes during those
years is presented below:
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2006 2005
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Average Avcrage

Shares . . . Shares X X
Exercise Price Excrcise Price
QOutstanding, beginning of year 8,592,600 $1.49 3,988,600 $0.53
Granted 8,739,255 $4.81 5,994,000 $194
Exercised {998,365) $0.70  (981,000) $0.51
Expired (121,000) $3.68 (409,000) $1.05
Outstanding, end of year 16,212,490 $3.31 8,592,600 $1.49
Exercisable, end of ycar 6,563,864 $2.14 3,159,809 $1.03

All stock options have been granted for a period of five years, Options granted under the plan are generally fully
exercisable after three years and expire five years after the date granted. The table below summarizes unexercised stock

options.

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted  Average
Average Remaining Average Remaining
Number Exercise Contractual MNumber Exercise Contractual
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Price Life Outsianding Price Life

At December 31 2006 2005
$0.20-30.95 3,137,235 $0.69 1.7 4,276,600 $0.67 32
$1.00-%1.9% 1,996,000 $1.61 24 1,886,000 f1.61 5.0
$2.00-%$3.99 3,679,000 $3.18 3.1 2,430,000 5234 4.9
$4.00 - $5.99 7,400,255 $4.99 33 - $- -

16,212,490 §3.31 8,592,600 $1.49

In 2006 a compensatory non-cash expense of $8.3 million (2005 - $1.2 million) was recorded, reflecting the fair value of
stock options amortized over the vesting period. Of this amount, $7.8 million (2005 - $1.2 million) was expensed as G&A
and $0.5 million was charged to refining operating costs. A further $3.5 miilion (2005 - $0.4 million) was capitalized to

property and equipment.

The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

with weighted average assumptions for grants as follows:

2006 2005
Risk free interest rate 4,1% 3.0%
Expected option life (ycars) 3 3
50% 50%

Expecied volatility

The weighted average fair value at the date of grant of all options granted in 2006 was $1.81 per option (2005 - $0.65).

{c¢) Share purchasc warrants

A summary of the company’s outstanding share purchase warrants, as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and changes during

the ycars is presenicd below:
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2006 2005
Qutstanding, beginning of year 1,493,820 5,300,525
Exercised (1,493,820) (3,791,705)
Expired - (15,000
Qutstanding, end of ycar - 1,493,820

(f) Flow-through shares (2004)

The company renounced $7 million of resource expenditures to flow-through share investors effective December 31,
2004. The related tax effect of those expenditures has been recorded in 2005 in the amount of $2.7 million and the
company incurred the expenditures in 2005 as required.

(g) Flow-through shares (2005)

Effcctive December 31, 2005, the company renounced $13 million of resource expenditures to flow-through investors.
The related tax effect of $5,448,000 on those expenditurcs was recorded in 2006. The company incurred all of the
required expenditures related to these flow-through shares in 2006.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2006 the company paid professional legal fees of $1.8 million (2005 - $539,000) to a law firm in which officers or
directors of the company are partners. Transactions with the related party occurred within the normal course of business
and have been measured at their exchange amount on normal business terms. The exchange amount is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to with the related parties.

14, SEGMENTED INFORMATION

In Canada, the company is in the business of exploring and producing conventional petroleum and natural gas and has
recently commenced exploration and development of bitumen in the oil sands of northem Alberta. In the U.S,, the
company is in the business of refining and marketing petroleum products. Prior to the de-consolidation of Petrolifera in
2005 (Note 5) it also conducted a conventional petroleum and natural gas business in Argentina. The significant aspects of
these operating segments are presented below. Included in Canadian administrative assets is the company's carrying value
of its investment in Petrolifera.

Year ended December 31 Canada Canada USA Argentina

(3000) Qil and Gas Administrative Refining  Oil and Gas Total
2006

Revenues, net of royaltics $31,786 $-  §211,874 $- §$243,660
Equity interest in Petrolifcra eamings - 11,078 - - 11,078
Dilution gain - 23 - - 23
Interest and other income 600 - 424 - 1,024
Crude oil purchase and operating costs 8,270 - 182,668 - 196,938
General and administrative 3,886 - - - 3,886
Stock-bascd compensation - 7,816 - - 7,816
Finance charges 4,992 - 94 - 5,086
Forcign exchange loss 4,287 . - - 4,287
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 29,366 - 3,583 - 32,949
Taxes (recovery) (5,165) - 9,035 - 3,870
Net carnings (loss) (13,2500 3,285 16,918 - 6,953
Propcrty and equipment. net 333.358 1.314 49,639 - 384,311
Capital expenditures and acquisitions 378,173 1,169 72,183 - 451,525
Tolal assets 582,325 22,795 107,548 262 712,930

2005 (1)
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Revenues, net of royalties £8,202 3- $- $893 $9,095
Equity interest in Petrolifera loss - 27) - - 27
Dilution Gain - 4,465 - - 4,465
Interest and other income 678 - - 22 700
Opcrating costs 2,126 - - 319 2.445
General and administrative - 2.348 - 312 2.660
Stock-based compensation - 1,178 - 14 1,192
Finance charges 261 - - 47 308
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 5 - - (35) (30)
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 5,304 - - 493 5,797
Taxcs (recovery) 893 - - (23) 870
Net earnings (loss) (3,262) 4 465 - (212) 991
Property and equipment, net 44,611 631 - - 45242
Capital expenditures 14,771 269 - 1,767 16,807
Total assets 134,182 631 - - 134,813
(1) 2005 comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current year's presentation.
15, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(a) Per share amounts
The following table summarizes the common shares used in per share calculations.
For the years ended December 31 2006 2005
Weighed average common shares outstanding 184,468,631 106,113,563
Dilutive effect of stock options and stock purchase warrants 3,963,178 5,732,124
Weighed average common shares outstanding — diluted 188,431,809 111,845,687
{b) Net change in non-cash working capital
For the years ended December 31 ($000) 2006 2005
Accounts receivable $(25,284) $Q277)
Refinery inventorics (4,441) -
Due from Peirolifcra 189 61
Prepaid expenses (692) (124)
Accounts payable and accrucd liabilities 31,567 251
Income taxes payable 3,512 -
Total $4,851 $(89)
Summary of working capital changes:
($000) 2006 2005
Oncrations (9271 5(485)
Investing 14,122 396
$4.851 80
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(c) Supplementary cash flow information

For the vears ended December 31 2006 2005
($000)

Interest paid $6.578 $67
Income taxes paid 3,655 3
Stock-based compensation capitalized 3,485 410

Al December 31, 2006 cash of $122.8 miilion is restricted for use in paying expenditures for a designated oil sands project
under the terms of the Oil sands term loan (Note 9).

16. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES
The company’s annual commitments under leases for office premises and operating costs, field compression equipment,
software license agreements and other equipment are as follows:

2007 - $1.7 million; 2008 - $2.6 million; 2009 - $2.6 million, 2010 - $2.2 million; 2011 - $1.6 million; total thereafier
$9.3 million.

Additionally, the company has various guarantees and indemnifications in place in the ordinary course of business, none
of which are expected to have a significant impact on the company’s financial stalements or operations.

END



